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China CITIC Bank International Limited

REERT (BIR) BRAE ([FERT (BER) ) BHEE
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(EBR) AR ~ BEBRI KRB BIDAT

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”) isawholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH”), which in turn is 70.32%-owned by
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and 29.68%-owned by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. (“BBVA”) of Spain.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both the wealth
management and international business objectives of Greater China and overseas
customers, CNCBI aspires to be the “China Bank of Choice”, with the best international
standards and capabilities.

CNCBI’s footprint in Greater China includes 35 branches in Hong Kong, as well as
branches and presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau. CNCBI also has
overseas branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore.
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The China Bank of Choice
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Our Mission

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise
the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core
to our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our
network capability in China, coupled with our customer-
centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership
and success are a key competitive advantage of ours.

ZioMB(E  Our Core Values

UERE Customer-centric

81 = EE Progressive

BESW Execution

SIE8E Value Creating

SESA Building People, Building Team

BIFHE Integrity
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Financial Performance

2014 HBERE 2014 Financial Highlights

2E(FEBT) For the year (HKS$ million) 2014 2013 % change
F A B Net interest income 4,157 3,331 +24.8
FER BUA Non-interest income 1,849 1,416 +30.6
JETh Operating expenses (2,453) (2,089) +174
B RBFOREER Impairment losses on loans and advances (181) (84) +114.4
75t Al % A Profit before taxation 3,374 2,554 1321
st Income tax (573) (419) +36.9
[i% 5 & 1 & A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,801 2,135 +31.2
REZRA(BEET) At year end (HK$ million) 2014 2013 % change
ERERBR Loans and advances 150,720 127,017 +18.7
BERE Total assets 249,141 216,308 +15.2
7 5 #88R Total deposits 203,087 170,834 +18.9
% R = Shareholders’ equity 19,941 17,176 +16.1
B 7 b & Financial ratios 2014 2013

BEARTE R E Capital adequacy 17.3% 16.5%
EFEEHARPES L X Average liquidity 64.9% 55.3%

B & Loans to deposits 74.2% 74.4%

PN IR PN Cost to income 40.9% 44.0%
PEIRT (B BR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



IREREGER (BEET)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

BEEAE (FBBT)

Total assets (HKS million)

RERER (BEET)
Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

13 2,135 13 216,308 13 17,176

12 1557 12 177,181 12 15,052

11 1410 11 171426 11 13,105

10 1,057 10 148209 10 13,352

S5 BB BR 5 Year Financial Summary

2FEL£E(FEBT) For the year (HKS million) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
F B A Net interest income 4,157 3,331 2,339 1,862 1,813
FER B A Non-interest income 1,849 1,416 1377 1,557 1,193
LT Operating expenses (2,453) (2,089) (1,808) (1,652) (1,452)
BER LB EE Impairment losses (charged)/

(/) /B8 written back on loans and advances (181) (84) 91) 75 (262)
5t A& Profit before taxation 3,374 2,554 1,866 1,692 1,160
TSt Income tax (573) (419) (309) (282) (103)
% B8 FE 1 Y F) Profit attributable to shareholders 2,801 2,135 1,557 1410 1,057
RELZBH(BEE®E ) At year end (HKS$ million) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
B KEBR Loans and advances 150,720 127,017 105,092 93,718 88,818
(B B Impairment allowance 538 476 546 543 658
BE®E Total assets 249,141 216,308 177,181 171,426 148,209
FHF BU S EEMLME  Average interest earnings assets 225,872 182,077 169,560 153,209 131,337
TR Total deposits 203,087 170,834 145017 139,164 120,451
% R = Shareholders' equity 19,941 17,176 15,052 13,105 13,352
B 7% b = Financial ratios 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
BART B L& Capital adequacy 17.3% 16.5% 18.2% 18.3% 19.0%
2EFHRBESLHLE  Average liquidity 64.9% 55.3% 59.4% 43.6% 44.7%
BTFLh % Loans to deposits 74.2% 74.4% 72.5% 67.3% 73.7%
ERHEERELX Loans to total assets 60.5% 58.7% 59.3% 54.7% 59.9%
GAETEEELLX Collective assessment coverage 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.4% 0.4%
BX 7S S A B K Cost to income 40.9% 44.0% 48.7% 483% 483%
5 & E O R K Return on average total assets 1.2% 1.1% 0.9% 0.9% 0.8%
- 15 % R 2w [0 i 2K Return on average shareholders’ equity 14.9% 13.2% 10.8% 10.2% 8.2%
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Financial Performance

F* Deposits*
1. RERNE S By type 2014 2013
KR Current 9.5% 10.1%
E&E Savings 16.5% 17.1%
E H Fixed 74.0% 72.8%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. ZREHMBE D By maturity 2014 2013
BNE & & On demand 26.0% 27.2%
DR 3E A Less than 3 months 60.9% 56.8%
HBBR3MEAENRIF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 11.9% 13.6%
BBIFETESF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 1.2% 2.4%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. RE®BE S By currency 2014 2013
ABTT HKD 48.2% 47.7%
ET usb 25.1% 19.2%
i Others 26.7% 33.1%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, FRIRB¥E Number of deposit accounts 2014 2013
347,226 314,492
* UEPTFRAER *  Based on customer deposits only
43.4% 25.9%
49.6% 74.0%
W EAREBIRTITED
Personal & Business Banking Group
Total Deposits Certiicates of Deposit Total Loans 0.1%
Breakdown B i Breakdown
Others
NCIVSE R E e
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group
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Financial Performance

Loan Portfolio

RIT¥E D By industry sectors 2014 2013
FAREANER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
TITHEEkERA: Industrial, commercial and financial:
b el Property development 3.7% 0.1%
MEIKE Property investment 11.3% 11.1%
SR Financial concerns 5.6% 3.2%
fRELK L Stockbrokers 0.5% 0.2%
HELRTEES Wholesale and retail trade 11.1% 10.8%
Rlis Manufacturing 4.8% 4.6%
B3 N ERRE Transport and transport equipment 1.4% 1.8%
IRELED) Recreational activities 0.2% 0.2%
B Information technology 0.0% 0.7%
Hith Others 3.1% 1.8%
EPNE Individuals:
BEIEABEERE - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[FLAZERE2ERE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
rEl] RIEEERE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
STEIEF] ER Scheme 0.1% 0.0%
BEEMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 7.5% 8.1%
ERREE Credit card advances 0.2% 0.2%
Hith Others 4.5% 4.6%
=T Trade finance 10.4% 12.2%
AREBAIME T E K EF  Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 35.6% 40.4%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
RibE D M E D By geographical spread 2014 2013
o Hong Kong 51.7% 51.2%
FR A3 Mainland China 33.5% 34.7%
EE USA 1.0% 1.0%
b Singapore 7.2% 5.8%
EHh Others 6.6% 7.3%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
REHE D By maturity 2014 2013
BNEHER Repayable on demand 4.0% 2.6%
DR Less than 1 year 54.0% 52.3%
Hid 1 FEDR 5 F Over 1 year but less than 5 years 28.1% 28.7%
i 5 F Over 5 years 13.2% 16.1%
mETHH Undated 0.7% 0.3%
ak Total 100.0% 100.0%
REKE S By currency 2014 2013
BT HKD 44.6% 42.6%
=TT usD 41.7% 45.5%
A Others 13.7% 11.9%
&=t Total 100.0% 100.0%
BERIRBEEE Number of loan accounts 2014 2013
395,041 351,924
—Z—FER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chairman

| am very pleased to announce that China CITIC Bank International
Limited ("CNCBI") and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) achieved
record results again in 2014. Profit attributable to shareholders amounted
to HK$2.80 billion, up strongly by 31.2% year-on-year following over 30%
increase in 2013. Total assets also grew substantially to HK$249.14 billion as
at end-2014, 15.2% higher than a year ago.

Given a mild improvement in global economic conditions and persistently
low interest rates, the operating environment for the Hong Kong banking
industry remained largely stable in 2014. As at end-2014, total deposits
and total loans of all authorised institutions increased by 9.7% and 12.7%
respectively. The Group's performance was ahead of its peers, as its customer
deposit base expanded by 18.9% in 2014 while customer loans including
trade bills were up 18.7%, resulting in a slight decrease in the loan-to-
deposit ratio to 74.2% as at end-2014 from 74.4% a year earlier.

The Group's impressive profit growth in 2014 was primarily driven by
24.8% and 30.6% gains in interest and non-interest income respectively.
Such growth was achieved without compromising our standard of credit
risk management. Although loan impairment losses increased by HKS61
million to HK$181 million in 2014, while the impaired loan ratio rose by 15
basis points to 0.47%, these levels remained low and manageable when
compared with the averages over the last five years.

Looking ahead, the US appears to be the only major economy that may
enjoy greater recovery momentum. Both the Eurozone and Japan are
wrestling with deflation pressure, while China is poised to embrace lower
GDP growth as it continues to implement structural reforms. In addition,
geopolitical tensions arising from the conflict between Russia and Ukraine,
coupled with a strong US dollar and the Swiss National Bank’s decision to
remove its currency cap with the euro, may cause capital outflows from
emerging economies and send shock waves across financial markets, thus
casting a shadow on global economic prospects.
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Report of the Chairman

Looking on the bright side, the risk of a tighter monetary environment
can be reduced. Although the US Federal Reserve has phased out its
quantitative easing programme, the recent plunge in oil prices has allayed
fears about a rapid rise in inflation pressure. It is expected that the pace and
magnitude of interest-rate hikes in the US should be moderate. Meanwhile,
both the European Central Bank and the monetary authority of Japan are
likely to ensure that there is ample liquidity in their banking systems to
stimulate economic growth. Moreover, China made its first interest-rate cut
since 2012 last November and in February this year, it lowered the reserve
requirement ratio for banks and reduced interest rates again, showing a
more accommodating monetary policy is in store.

With the “Shanghai-Hong Kong Connect” programme launched in
November 2014, mainland Chinese investors have been allowed to trade
a selection of stocks listed in Hong Kong and vice versa. This programme
is expected to strengthen the role of Hong Kong as a prime offshore RMB
centre, resulting in more cross-border fund flows and financing activities.
In view of the Group’s leading position in cross-border businesses, coupled
with strong support from China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“"CNCB")
and CITIC Group Corporation, the Group is well placed to benefit from a
surge in business opportunities ahead.

In December 2014, our parent bank CNCB agreed to acquire all the
shares of our holding company (i.e. CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited ("CIFH")) held by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA”).
Upon completion of the transaction, CNCB will assume full ownership of
CIFH, which in turn has CNCBI as its wholly-owned subsidiary. The new
shareholding structure is expected to boost the synergy between CNCB and
CNCBI, as well as allowing CNCBI to leverage the CITIC brand in its RMB and
cross-border businesses.

—E-mER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chairman

Going forward, the Group plans to invest heavily in upgrading its information
technology infrastructure, which will involve a revamp of the core banking
system and rationalization of the customer relationship management
system, as well as establishing a central database and developing new
business applications. These initiatives are vital to enhancing the Group’s
mobile banking capability. | am confident that through expanding e-banking
businesses, the Group can go from strength to strength and stay ahead of
its peers.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all the Group’s customers, whose trust and support are
crucial to its business. | am also deeply indebted to the management team
and CNCBI staff, whose hard work and dedication throughout the year have
contributed to our success.
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Chen Xiaoxian
Chairman

&% - 2015537194
Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Mr. Zhang Xiaowei
President & Chief Executive Officer
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

(20145 > REHRT (EHR) BES
THERITHNIEREZEBEINTHR
Zh BREGZFNEBERSELHS
E28 BT BFEH31.2% ° |

“With the support from parent bank,
China CITIC Bank, and the continuous
effort of all staff members, China CITIC
Bank International delivered another
record high profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$2.80 billion, surging
by 31.2% year-on-year in 2014

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) generated record profits again in 2014 despite an
uninspired operating environment, attesting to the Group’s strong market
position and implementation of a rewarding business strategy and stringent
risk control. There is no room for complacency though, as the year ahead
is conceivably full of challenges, such as uncertain economic conditions,
larger currency fluctuations and intensifying competition. To add value to
our customers and shareholders, we will continue to emphasise product
innovation, business management and operational efficiency. Specifically,
RMB business has been and will continue to be a key development area
for the Group. CNCBI has launched the Cross-Border Banking Demand
Index, which helps the Group to capture business opportunities ahead and
maintain a leading position in the market.
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Mr. Michael Leung
Chief Information and
Operations Officer
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Mr. Roy Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer

& General Counsel

Group Head of Internal Control
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Mr. Jose Maria Abollado
Chief Risk Officer
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Mr. Elton Tam
Chief Financial Officer
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Mr. Phileas Wong

General Manager & Head of
Treasury & Markets Group
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Mr. John Lee

Chief Personnel Officer
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Mrs. Helen Kan

Executive Director &

Alternate Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Personal &
Business Banking
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Ms. Zoe Lau
Director of CEO Office
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Mr. David Yau
Chief Auditor
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Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director &

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Wholesale &
Cross-border Banking
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Ms. Rita Man

Chief Compliance Officer
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Environment

Major economies of the world showed mixed performances in 2014. After
getting off to a slow start, the US enjoyed a faster pace of recovery in the
second and third quarters of the year, with full-year real GDP growth of
2.4% for 2014, compared with 2.2% in 2013. On the contrary, growth of
the Eurozone appeared to have run out of steam while Japan slipped into
recession despite its government’s stimulus package. In mainland China, as a
result of the ongoing structural reforms, the economy expanded at a slower
speed of 7.4% in real terms last year, which was in line with expectations.

In the absence of strong external demand, the Hong Kong trade sector was
sluggish, with total merchandise exports in 2014 up merely 3.2% compared
with a year earlier. The consumer sector fared worse. Despite a persistently
low unemployment rate of 3.3%, total retail sales value in 2014 decreased
slightly by 0.2% year-on-year, which was mainly due to reduced demand for
luxury goods. The property sector was a pleasant surprise. Notwithstanding
the government’s cooling measures to dampen housing demand, it
remained active with approximately 15.5% and 20% year-on-year gains in
transaction volumes and values respectively last year. As a whole, the Hong
Kong economy expanded moderately by 2.4% in real terms in the first three
quarters of 2014.

The banking sector was resilient against this economic backdrop, with solid
earnings growth, steady net interest margin, sound asset quality and strong
capital position. Notably, Renminbi ("RMB”) business remained brisk during
the year. As at end-2014, total RMB deposits and certificates of deposit
increased by 10% from end-2013, while the growth in total outstanding
RMB loans was 63%. In 2014, RMB trade settlement handled by banks in
Hong Kong surged by 63% year-on-year, while RMB bond issuance totalled
RMB197 billion, which was 69% more than the amount issued in 2013.

Meanwhile, the “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect” programme was
launched last November, allowing investors in Hong Kong and mainland
China to trade the stocks on the other side’s bourse via their local
exchanges. Subsequently the daily conversion cap of RMB20,000 for Hong
Kong residents was scrapped. These measures represented an important
step in liberalising China's capital account and internationalising the RMB,
with Hong Kong being a major beneficiary.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Financial Performance

In 2014 the Group's operating income increased by 26.5% year-on-year to
HKS$6.01 billion. Profit after impairments was up 32.8% to HK$3.37 billion.
Profit attributable to shareholders surged by 31.2% to reach yet another
record high of HK$2.80 billion. Return on average assets rose 8 basis points

year-on-year to 1.19% from 1.11%, while return on average shareholders’

equity was 14.86%, well above 13.22% in the previous year.

The respectable profit growth in 2014 was partly underpinned by a healthy
24.8% rise in net interest income to HKS$4.16 billion, which was driven by a
steady expansion in interest-earning assets. Net interest margin was up one
basis point from 2013 to 1.84% despite some pressure on RMB and non-
RMB interbank loan yields.

The growth in non-interest income, at 30.6% to HK$1.85 billion, was also
impressive. During the year under review, a widened RMB trading band
gave rise to a 2.5% depreciation in the RMB. As a result, the Group’s trading
income and its RMB structured products commission were adversely
affected, but the impact was offset by a surge in loan fees and insurance
commission.

As the Group increased its investment in developing mobile banking,
improving core infrastructure and strengthening internal controls, operating
expenses rose by 17.4% year-on-year in 2014. But this increase was lower
than the sharp rise of 26.5% in revenue, indicating greater operational
efficiency. Cost to income ratio therefore fell by 3.2 percentage points from
ayear ago to 40.9% in 2014.

Financial Position

The Group has continued to attach great importance to effective balance
sheet management and prudent risk management, adjusting the scale
and structure of loans and deposits to sustain sound asset quality, ample
liquidity and decent profitability.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total deposits reached HK$203.09
billion, up 18.9% from a year earlier. Customer loans and total assets
increased by 18.7% and 15.2% year-on-year to HK$150.72 billion and
HK$249.14 billion respectively. Impaired loan ratio edged up 15 basis
points to 0.47%, while non-performing loan coverage ratio stood at 75.5%,
compared with 117.1% in 2013. The lower non-performing loan coverage
ratio was warranted as a much larger portion of the loan book was secured
against tangible collateral, namely high-quality properties. These properties
were conservatively valued in the Group’s book with a reasonable discount
to prevailing market prices.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

In April 2014, CNCBI successfully launched its inaugural US$300 million Basel
Il compliant undated non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1 capital
securities ("AT1 Capital Securities”). This was the first ever Basel Il compliant
additional tier 1 capital issuance in USD from an Asian bank. The AT1 Capital
Securities have enhanced CNCBI's tier 1 capital under Basel lll and its overall
capital position, thereby sharpening the Group’s competitive edge against
its peers and building a solid foundation for business growth.

As at end-2014, the Group's total capital adequacy ratio increased by 80
basis points from a year ago to 17.27% whereas its common equity tier 1
capital ratio reached 10.48%. These levels were well above the regulatory
requirements set by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Average
consolidated liquidity ratio also stayed healthy at 64.9%.

Business Review

Wholesale & Cross-Border Banking Group ("WBG") posted strong growth
in 2014. Operating income grew by 36.5% year-on-year to HK$3.11 billion
while profit before taxation increased by 43.4% to HKS$2.12 billion. Its
balance sheet also expanded reasonably with customer loans and deposits
up more than 20% compared with 2013. Partnering with Treasury & Markets
Group ("TMG"), WBG effectively leveraged its cross-border RMB business
development capability and promoted innovative products to create
the best financial solutions for its clients. Moreover, it has broadened its
customer coverage and strengthened its overseas presence through closer
collaboration with China CITIC Bank and CITIC Group, which has paved the
way for sustainable business growth.

Meanwhile, Personal & Business Banking Group (“PBG") posted a record
operating income of HK$1.83 billion in 2014, representing an 18.4% growth
year-on-year. Profit before taxation increased by 22.8% to HK$710 million,
which was also a new record. While customer deposits grew to a new
high of HK$88.04 billion, up 19% from 2013, customer loans increased
5.1% year-on-year to HK$39 billion. During the year, PBG continued to
increase its range of deposit, insurance and investment products. It also
successfully rolled out a number of “inMotion” banking initiatives and won
the Outstanding e-Banking Award in the Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise
Awards 2014. Moreover, PBG's customer base and customer assets under
management continued to expand at a favourable pace, especially with the
growth in business with high net worth individuals from mainland China.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Risk Management

The Credit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is entrusted with
the task of approving and monitoring the Group’s risk appetite, strategy
and exposure. It has established policies and procedures to identify,
quantify, monitor and mitigate the risks to which the Group is exposed.
The Assets and Liabilities Committee, Credit Committee, Non-Performing
Loan Committee, Investment Review Committee and Operational Risk
Management Committee at the managerial level have been formed to
oversee the implementation of these policies and procedures. Besides,
the Audit Department conducts regular independent reviews to ensure
compliance with both internal policies and regulatory requirements.

Meanwhile, Risk Management Group (‘RMG") has continued to promote
best practices that are within its remit. These include enforcing a more
rigorous credit approval and review process, managing loan portfolios
proactively, formulating investment strategies and strengthening capital
and liquidity management as befits the Group's risk appetite. Moreover,
an Internal Control Group ("ICG") has been established with the focus of
fortifying the Group’s operational risk culture and internal control practices.

Various Risk Management tools are in place and continue to be enhanced
including (i) the Global Risk Indicator (“GRI"), (ii) the Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP") and (iii) the bank-wide stress
testing practices. The GRI articulates the Group's Risk Appetite Framework
and is used in monitoring the Group's risk profile against the risk appetite,
which entails credit, market, operational (including legal), liquidity, interest
rate, strategic and reputation risks.

The risk management information system, infrastructure and the
methodologies are constantly reviewed to ensure strict adherence to
regulatory requirements. Moreover, the Group has imposed a risk-based
pricing regime and introduced disciplined capital management practices
to its overseas branches and subsidiaries to enable it to make informed
decisions and feasible development plans.

Regarding market risk management, clear risk limits have been set within a
robust management framework, whereby these limits are monitored daily,
stress tests are conducted periodically and close tracking is performed
whenever unusual events occur in the market.

—E-mER
Annual Report 2014

017



018

RMBEERRERE  AEER2014FRZ
REWTEY - BREEE - BRFT - H K
DITRERBER (FE) ORTRED AR
EEABZ2E AEETRERBERFB IR
il  BEIHEBEERBERNEERS I
RRAENENER - AEBIEEESMA
RITENERESR - BEREDERTH
2 BEEAMEBITENERES -

EmeEERREESE  AEBER20145F
FHEFEREERRELELZENARERT
Y NEZEBESRBEAMNEREEXL K&
REREINEARES# 2NMERBEERE R
P~ #ronse » FIREIER (FE) REXBDT -
R AEESETRHEELERRERET
EOE - BEAMNT L BBEBFXFH
BITREE HRAEEEEERARZE  XF
AAEHMATENEI2ARER - ERHEEE
MR AREHEFER K - AR
AHERE - EESIRER A

ANERER

EBFRRSHEEREN Bk B 5 EE -
MEZBEANDTHGHBRHKKE  LERS
AR BENMRERKREREESES - ASH
BHFBREHMIN - AEE—EUBHEBES
ITHKE - - BRABIZEABEIEz— &
BRI RIETEEE RS RBEE A
A WEBRERSETINHEEBER - 2014F8T
BRERAEBEETR =K -

EANTHBERANEE  BEIRALA A
MEBARFELEENANESREIE - AH
BB ANEIER - Hh AFRBRF
21.6% °

BTHIITE AEEBFBERHESFEMERR
AAEFHNIEY > RIEABTIHER T Ea
WEEEKF  SHEERABREDHE
TEEE FEZHNEERAB2EABER
e RRERKWME:L AEEREMAEE
ABETERMTE BN MHEERER
FY) 58 0 A F 58 o

FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

To strengthen credit risk management, workshops were conducted
throughout 2014 involving frontline and risk management staff in Hong
Kong, Macau, Singapore and CBI (China). Drawing lessons from past cases,
staff are acutely aware of potential impaired loans and related mitigating
measures. The Group also conducted reviews of the loan portfolios in high-
risk segments, and strengthened communication with the parent bank to
assess the creditworthiness of the industry sectors in mainland China.

As regards the strengthening of operational risk management, the Group
engaged its staff from Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, CBI (China) and the
US in a Safe Operations and Risk Management workshop series during the
first half of 2014 to improve risk management culture and awareness. Aside
from training in operational risk management, the Group also had in place
various enhanced methodology and tools. These have included a half-
yearly operational risk self-assessment for identifying potential risk areas, a
set of departmental key risk indicators for monitoring related risks, and a risk
assessment checklist for managing the risks of launching new products.

Human Resources Development

In light of more demanding regulatory regimes in Hong Kong and
elsewhere, coupled with inadequate supply of experienced high-calibre
professionals specialising in compliance, audit and operational risk
management, the competition for human resources has intensified across
all geographies where we operate. Management have always given priority
to workforce stability and staff development. The Group offers a range of
financial and non-financial incentives to attract, retain and engage talent. As
a result, the voluntary staff attrition rate reduced substantially by more than
30% in 2014.

Despite market-driven increases in staff costs, productivity improved
markedly for the year. Per capita performance indicators showed good
progress, notably with a 21.6% year-on-year increase in operating income
per full-time employee.

On people development, the Group continued to provide targeted and
structured workshops to enhance overall competence and professional
standards of staff. During the year, the Effective People Manager Programme
was extended to a wider group of managers. To strengthen governance, the
Group held compliance seminars for all managers to raise awareness and
reinforce understanding of compliance disciplines.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Balanced Scorecard was applied throughout the Group to provide
an objective, quantitative and integrated approach to performance
management. Review was based on a matrix of performance metrics
including business growth, risk management, compliance performance and
people management.

Good corporate governance and a strong team spirit can boost the Group's
human capital which is instrumental in building a solid foundation for more
encouraging results in the years ahead.

Outlook

The external environment appears increasingly complex and variable in
the coming year. The US economy continues to stand out as its recovery
gathers momentum, but its prospects can be clouded if the Federal Reserve,
having withdrawn its quantitative easing programme, raises interest rates
prematurely. Meanwhile, European and Japanese policymakers, gripped by
fears of recession and deflation, have attempted to jump-start their weak
economies with a strong dose of quantitative easing. In mainland China,
the government is ready to accept lower headline GDP growth as long
as restructuring of the economy progresses well. Yet it has also been fine-
tuning monetary policy to ensure that sufficient credit is available especially
for small- and medium-sized enterprises.

While most countries are inclined to maintain accommodative monetary
policies, it is doubtful whether consumer demand and investment spending
can be substantially stimulated soon. In the meantime, competing monetary
easing can precipitate fluctuations in currency values and changes in
international fund flows. Volatility is increasing as oil prices have plummeted
in recent months and Switzerland has unexpectedly abolished its currency
peg. Besides, diplomatic mediation has yet to defuse geopolitical tensions
caused by the dispute between Russia and Ukraine, and the confrontation
between Russia and other western countries may add uncertainties to
global financial markets.

Both the World Bank and the International Monetary Fund have revised
down their growth forecasts for the global economy for 2015. As there is
also a lack of clear growth drivers for domestic demand, the Hong Kong
economy is expected to expand only at a moderate pace again this year,
which in itself is insufficient to spur business expansion of the banking
sector. Consequently the development of cross-border and offshore RMB
businesses is crucial for banks in Hong Kong.

—E-mER
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Looking ahead, as the “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect” programme
has been running smoothly, a similar scheme is being developed for the
Shenzhen and Hong Kong stock exchanges, which should further facilitate
capital flows between Hong Kong and the Mainland, as well as reinforcing
Hong Kong's status as the leading offshore RMB centre. While replication of
the Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone in other areas of China and continued
liberalisation of the country’s financial system may pose challenges to the
banking industry of Hong Kong in the future, a rapid increase in trade and
fund flows to and from the Mainland can also create tremendous business
opportunities for us and our peers.

The Group is well positioned to capitalise on the financing needs of
enterprises involved in cross-border activities given its strong connections
with parent bank China CITIC Bank, and CITIC Group. It will continue
to benefit from an extensive customer network and collaboration with
group companies. In the coming year, an expected further slowdown of
China's economy, coupled with potential interest-rate cuts and two-way
fluctuations of the RMB, may impact on the Group's asset quality, net interest
margin and business development. Nevertheless, we are confident that by
adhering to high standards of corporate governance and risk management,
together with our strong product development capabilities, we can sustain
good quality growth ahead.

To lay a solid foundation for future business development, we have been
expanding our retail deposit base and actively acquiring new customers,
particularly medium-sized enterprises and high net worth individuals. We
are also encouraging innovation and cross-selling amongst our business
units to diversify the Group's income base and drive revenue growth, with
tailor-made products to answer the needs of our customers in light of
changing economic conditions. Moreover, we will continue to promote our
mobile banking platform, which can enhance customers experience while
improving service and operational efficiency.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Furthermore, we will invest heavily in technology, with a view to upgrading
our core banking systems, improving the connectivity between Hong
Kong and all overseas branches, and enhancing our digital infrastructure
to safeguard our operations against IT-related risks. We have also planned
to develop a centralized database that can consolidate existing application
systems so that our management team will be provided with timely
and valuable information. In addition, we are developing new business
applications and streamlining our customer relationship management
system to ensure that our customers are always offered premium products
and quality services.

Our ultimate task is to manage the scale and structure of the Group's
business well so that we may achieve an optimal balance between growth
and risk. As we continue to stay in tune with changing circumstances, devise
creative solutions to cope with them and maintain our customer-oriented
culture, we believe the Group's success can be sustained ahead.

—E-MFR
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Review of Operations

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking

KEW AR BRIZED B EF36.5%%43.4% °
Bl A 8%

BEFERREFPERL L —FEERRE20%

Record year with operating income and profit before
taxation surging by 36.5% and 43.4% year-on-year
respectively

Both customer loans and customer deposits increased by
over 20% from a year ago

Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group (WBG) achieved good growth
in its business in 2014. Operating income rose by 36.5% year-on-year to
HK$3.11 billion while profit before taxation increased by 43.4% to HK$2.12
billion. In the meantime, its balance sheet enjoyed a healthy expansion, with
both customer loans and customer deposits up over 20% compared with
2013.

WBG continued to work in close partnership with Treasury & Markets Group
(TMG), executing its strategies effectively by leveraging its cross-border RMB
business capability and promoting innovative products to offer the best
financial solutions to its clients. In addition, through strengthening its ties
with CNCB and CITIC Group, WBG has broadened its customer coverage
and bolstered its overseas presence, paving the way for sustained business
growth ahead.

Our marketing teams fully embraced WBG's business strategies, relentlessly
pursued a high level of service standards, and effectively utilized loan
structuring expertise for clients with sophisticated financing needs. These
efforts further increased customer loyalty, improved profitability and
enhanced WBG's competitiveness in the market.
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Review of Operations

Collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group

Collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group is pivotal to WBG's business. It
is not only a gateway to customer acquisition and business origination
but also a platform for active exchanges of market intelligence, product
innovations, customer insights and new developments in the regulatory
environment.

Maintaining close relationships with parent bank and CITIC Group continued
to bear fruit. In 2014, the revenue attributable to clients referred by CNCB
and CITIC Group soared by 62.9% compared with 2013. Such impressive
growth was driven by an increase in the number of clients, as well as an
expanded balance sheet, improved net interest margin and robust treasury
and fee income.

Overseas Network Connectivity

CITIC Bank International (China) Limited (“CBI (China)”) and other overseas
branches accounted for 25.1% of WBG's operating income in 2014.

CBI (China)'s operating income improved significantly last year despite a
slowdown in China’s economic growth and policy uncertainties. Prudent
lending practices, deposit cost management and rigorous operational risk
control proved to be rewarding.

Overseas branches, particularly Singapore, also recorded remarkable
increases in both operating incomes and profits before taxation. The growth
was spurred by the dedication of local marketing teams with strong support
from an extensive CNCB and CITIC network and from the Group's RMB
business capability. As a case in point, the Singapore branch was one of the
first banks to extend cross-border RMB loans to Suzhou Industrial Park due
to its close collaboration with CNCB's Suzhou Branch.

—E-mER
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Review of Operations

Product Enhancement

WBG has offered a wide array of products and services tailored to the
banking and financing needs of its clients.

1.

Structured Finance and Syndication

Business flourished in 2014 as WBG, in addition to involving in primary
participation, branched out into distribution and thus opened up
new revenue streams. More than half of the syndicated loans were
completed with WBG as the lead arranger, compared with less than
20% in 2013. Consequently fee income rose significantly. Increased
loan structuring activities also helped to foster sustainable and
mutually beneficial relationships with clients.

Cross-border RMB Business

WBG proactively developed RMB-related products to explore and
seize cross-border business opportunities resulting from the gradual
internationalization of the RMB. As at end-2014, outstanding RMB
loans for WBG Hong Kong and overseas branches surged by 60%
from a year earlier, while RMB cross-border trade settlement with the
PRC handled by WBG Hong Kong and Singapore increased by 9%.

Global Markets

WBG and TMG's partnership remained resilient despite volatile
market conditions. In light of weakened demand for structured
products, the focus was shifted to businesses related to forex
flows. This change in strategy yielded encouraging results as forex
income in 2014 more than doubled year-on-year. TMG's marketing
team was actively advising our customers on market conditions,
particularly during the period of RMB depreciation. It also performed
comprehensive reviews of our clients’ portfolios and worked
intensely with them to restructure these portfolios.
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4, Transaction Banking

Corporate Online Banking made substantial progress in 2014, with
over 30% increase in the number of users while transaction volumes
multiplied during the year. An online payroll service for corporate
customers was launched, demonstrating our commitment to offer
full-fledged web-based banking solutions.

In 2014, income from cash management enjoyed double-digit
growth year-on-year, with a surge in remittance and other fee
income.

Prudent Risk Management

WBG adhered to the discipline of prudent risk management in all its
operations and developed businesses in line with the Group’s established
risk appetite. Periodic stress testing was performed as an integral part of
proactive portfolio management.

WBG continued to place asset quality at top priority and so impairment
charges and non-performing loan ratio remained at healthy levels.

2015 Outlook

Fluctuations of the RMB against the US dollar and other major currencies,
coupled with competitive monetary easing measures in many countries,
may give rise to new business opportunities for hedging activities and
corporate investments. WBG sets out to broaden its treasury product
offerings to capture these opportunities.

Meanwhile, in view of potential changes in the prevailing benign credit
environment in the longer term, WBG will actively monitor its loan portfolio
and ensure that it will grow well while paying due regard to stringent risk
control.

“E-NER
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Personal & Business Banking
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Operating income reached record high at HK$1.83 billion,
up 18.4%

Customer deposits hit a new high of HK$88.04 billion,
up 19%

Personal & Business Banking Group (“PBG") has continued to increase its
balance sheet scale and expand its customer base. With an improved
income mix, PBG posted a set of respectable results in 2014. In addition
to benefitting from stronger balance sheet growth capability, its financial
performance was also underpinned by a disciplined approach to margin
and risk management.

Operating income in 2014 reached a record high of HK$1.83 billion,
representing an 18.4% growth over 2013. Profit before taxation also set a
new record of HK$710 million, up 22.8% year-on-year.

As at end-2014, customer deposits hit a new high of HK$88.04 billion, an
increase of 19% from a year earlier, while customer loans grew by 5.1%
to HK$39 billion. Given sustained growth in customer deposits and loans,
coupled with effective funding cost management, net interest income
registered a 7.6% year-on-year increase in 2014.

Meanwhile, as a result of encouraging growth in wealth management fee
income and a write-back of Lehman Brothers provision, non-interest income
in 2014 rose significantly by 43.3% year-on-year to HK$670 million.

Total operating expenses in 2014 increased by 16.6% over 2013, which was
due to higher premises costs and investments in enhancing e-banking
capabilities such as WeChat Banking, mobile banking and mobile payment.

Loan impairment losses remained stable at HK$38 million in 2014, with net
impairment ratio staying at a healthy level of 0.1%.
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Focusing on Product Innovation

PBG continued to offer innovative products to attract new customers.
In early 2014, it successfully launched an insurance premium financing
product, enriching its already competitive insurance product range. This
new product contributed to both insurance fee income and loan growth.
Moreover, riding on the success of several novel deposit products in the
previous year such as “Flexi Deposit Series” and “Payroll Plus Account”, PBG
introduced “"Maxi Saving Deposit” in March 2014. Furthermore, capitalizing
on the “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect” scheme and the relaxation of
the daily RMB conversion limit for Hong Kong citizens, PBG has enhanced
its RMB-related deposit and investment products and services such as RMB
Structured Deposits and RMB Currency Linked Deposits.

Investing in e-Capabilities and Service Excellence

PBG successfully rolled out a series of “inMotion Banking” initiatives in
2014, including WeChat inMotion, which was the first in the market to
offer binding services for customers. Also, CITICmobile and CITICwallet
applications were further upgraded to deliver more enhanced features
for our mobile banking services. Our “inMotion Banking” proposition aims
to bring together service, transaction and payment functions through
various electronic channels and allows our customers to manage their
finances anywhere and anytime. Our strong e-capabilities was recognized
by Quamnet, a popular financial website in Hong Kong, as we received
the Outstanding e-Banking Award in the Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise
Awards 2014.
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Broadening Customer Base for Sustainable Growth

PBG continued to add new customers. The total number of CITICfirst
customers grew by 15.9% from end-2013 to over 27,700. Meanwhile, total
customer assets under management amounted to around HK$76.4 billion,
which was 22% ahead of the level as at end-2013.

Boosting Private Banking Services

PBG kept introducing new products and services for high net worth
customers. Notably, to attract mainland Chinese wealthy individuals, we
started to offer comprehensive offshore financial services to CNCB private
banking customers such as financing for the Capital Investment Entrant
Scheme. As at end-2014, revenue and customer assets under management
soared by 60.6% and 68.1% year-on-year respectively.

Prudent Management of Asset Quality

Asset quality remained good as a result of rigorous credit risk management
as well as significant improvement in collection management and
delinquency rate reduction. Loan impairment losses amounted to HK$38
million during the year, showing a year-on-year increase due to prior year
write-backs. However, net impairment ratio remained at a low level of 0.1%.
Also, residential mortgage delinquency ratio stayed below the industry
benchmark gauged by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.



ES e

2015 RE

2015F 2R EME R DK - TEH SR
RoBEERERTR SHEENELHE
WRGDPHIEERE EHA - EEMNKEERE
MARAKEEEEEN S BEXERM
WEBREEK  BHEERTAEZLERNEZR
WA EEEKTE  BEZEBERKER
S AR MTEMEEESETH  BEARX
EENEHSEKIA—H ME+9EFH -
B BNRTETELCLERSORBEGE
EZENMBE I SHRIIEBEEREERERD
jj °

FEGTE ZIIFERS FHERETRE
AKRERBROFTE - 20145 GDPHY I 18 [
Eeo B hPEBAHIEMEREZROK
BMRBBE(ENERER  URETER
EERERER LHFEME  BKAUE
BIBBER AEBINER - EBANK
BREERT  BAERESHBRNNSIEGTE
o At B RFRBEEHEKS %R
FERFROER -

MER - - Bt EkPEOLCERE 58
R4 RS RERE o {52015 F BERGDPA] JA
BEAMER  AHBEFTRKURYEYTRE
REFRB - AEEEEEMENBREHLE
BEEESBE| MEME  UEREHEBAR
BHWLEREET  BARBGKRTIHC LA
e RIEFNEBERES -

BRHBERRAMERE  ERAMER W
REFPEF  REARBRIRTENZ LA
e T HBMAGE  BER DB RN EM
BARTSNEHMNBEERF,  RESENET
BHE #BESOTNMBRFANS NHF -
MEEERATERANMNBHEER  LE
RTDEIGENRE  ARBEEENRY -

Review of Operations

2015 Outlook

A moderate acceleration in global economic growth is expected for 2015.
The US economy is likely to remain a bright spot in the developed world,
with faster GDP growth and improving consumer confidence given a lower
unemployment rate. Its outlook is promising despite headwinds of fiscal
tightening and interest-rate normalization. On the contrary, the Eurozone's
economy appears sluggish and the recovery of its member states remains
uneven and fragile. In light of monetary stimulus such as quantitative easing
that may counter deflationary pressure, the Eurozone’s growth may speed
up though.

China's GDP growth was slower in 2014 due to weak external demand,
reduced real estate investment and excess capacity. Nevertheless,
the country’s leaders will strive for growth stabilization and economic
restructuring by increasing infrastructure investment, accelerating
urbanization, and implementing targeted monetary easing and interest-
rate cuts. Riding on new growth drivers underwritten by economic reforms,
China’s economy may continue to show healthy and stable improvement in
2015.

The economic performances of the US, Eurozone and China play an
important role in driving Hong Kong's economy, which is expected
to continue to display a moderate recovery, with steady domestic
consumption and stable inflation. Based on the Group's solid position
in Hong Kong, and by leveraging the "Shanghai-Hong Kong Connect”
programme and the abolition of the RMB conversion cap, PBG is ready to
capitalize on new business opportunities ahead.

Investment in technology and developing innovative products for the
benefits of our clients is always PBG's core business commitment. With this
commitment, PBG strives to provide our valued customers in Greater China
and Asia with superior financial solutions. We will also continue to expand
cross-border businesses between Hong Kong and China, especially SME
finance and wealth management businesses, with strong support from
CNCB and CITIC Group.

—E-mER
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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CSR expenditure reached HK$6 million, up 30% year-on-year

“CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” saw more than half of its
students achieve progress in their studies

“5-minute Shower Challenge” grew in scale and impact

CNCBI is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities as a good corporate
citizen. While the Group is dedicated to conducting its banking business,
it has also been actively involved in corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
undertakings and supporting societal sustainable development. In 2014, the
Group devoted more resources to CSR projects and related initiatives, with
total expenditure reaching HKS$6 million, up 30% year-on-year.

Last year, the Group continued to advance its corporate commitments with
two main themes, namely caring for the underprivileged and promoting
harmony with nature. A “10 Years Plus Caring Company” Logo was awarded
by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

Caring for the Underprivileged

Sustainable development for a society is underpinned by good education.
The Group is especially concerned about the education needs of
underprivileged students and has collaborated with St. James' Settlement
since 2008 to establish the “CITIC Bank International Knowledge Angel
Project” which offered free tutorials to participating students. The project
has been awarded matching grants by the Social Welfare Department’s
“Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged”, benefitting 700 students in total
from disadvantaged backgrounds up to 2011. In view of marked progress
and growing demand from the concerned group, the project was expanded
in 2012 to become the “CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy”, providing 600
local and ethnic minority students from underprivileged families with 3
continuous years of free tutorials and English lessons.
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Encouraging results were achieved again for 2013/14 academic year, during
which 60% of the students enhanced their English proficiency and over 50%
improved in Chinese language and Mathematics.

Students under the roof of the “CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” were
afforded opportunities to take part in a series of extra-curricular activities to
broaden their horizons and foster holistic development. Some 30 students
from Asbury Methodist Primary School joined a “Marbling Elephant”
painting workshop to learn about Chinese ink marbling by using traditional
materials such as Chinese ink and rice paper. Through active participation
in painting a life-size baby elephant statue, their awareness of endangered
Asian elephants was raised. The “Marbling Elephant” statue was among the
exhibits of the Elephant Parade® held from 1 August to 9 September in 2014
at Cityplaza. It was later displayed at 3 CNCBI branches before becoming a
permanent collection of Asbury Methodist Primary School.

In addition, 80 primary 4 and primary 6 students who had shown excellent
academic performances or made great strides in their studies were invited
to join a “Senior Management Interview” workshop where the Group
enlisted the support from a team of seasoned media professionals, who
imparted news reporting techniques to the participating students and led
them in exclusive interviews with CNCBI management and department
heads, nurturing their insights into creativity.

Since 2008, CNCBI has invested nearly HK$10 million in this education
project with a view to enhancing the learning abilities of students from
underprivileged families. It is hoped that through their own efforts, they
can grasp opportunities for upward social mobility, thereby alleviating
intergenerational poverty and narrowing the wealth gap in the long term.

Regarding caring for senior citizens, the Group has run a scarf-knitting
campaign for 9 consecutive years, with overwhelming support from its
staff. Over 70 staff members hand-knitted nearly 270 scarves, which were
distributed to senior citizens at Light & Love Home, HKSKH Lady MaclLehose
Centre and Tsuen Wan Caritas Community Centre respectively so that they
might feel community care.

Moreover, CNCBI continued to support the Community Chest’s “Corporate
and Employee Contribution Programme”. Over the last four years, the Group
was also one of the major donors of “Operation Santa Claus”, an annual
fundraising event jointly organised by South China Morning Post and Radio
Television Hong Kong.

—E-FR
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Promoting Harmony with Nature

Climate change is a formidable challenge facing the world. CNCBI is
committed to encouraging education about reducing carbon dioxide
emissions and increasing public awareness. The Group'’s Green Committee,
which comprises bankwide managerial representatives, launched various
projects in 2014 to promote green living among CNCBI staff and Hong Kong
citizens.

For 3 consecutive years, CNCBI has been offering full support to the
“5-minute Shower Challenge”, the first large-scale water-saving and low-
carbon campaign in Hong Kong organised by the environmental group
Green Power. Building on the first 2 years' success, singer-songwriter
Ms. Ivana Wong, as the campaign ambassador last year, created and
performed a theme song, known as Shower Song, to urge and help people
achieve the 5-minute shower goal, while Mr. Fire Lee directed the music
video production. Thanks to a blaze of publicity generated through the
media and the Group’s branch network, the scale and impact of the
campaign was noticeably greater last year.

2014 key achievements of the “5-minute Shower Challenge”:
Academic

e More than 42,400 students completed a 21-day period of "5-minute
Shower Challenge”, with participation doubled year-on-year

e 26,500 kg carbon dioxide reduction, equivalent to the annual quantity
absorbed by over 2,200 trees, up 106% year-on-year

Public

The Shower Song was played on various media platforms, with a hit rate
of over 50,000 in youtube alone

e (CNCBI's 34 branches distributed more than 13,000 sandglasses to
encourage the public taking the challenge

Over 16,400 citizens pledged to take 5-minute-showers, representing an
80% surge from a year earlier
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CNCBI Staff

More than 400 staff members acted as publicists to promote the Shower
Song among the public

To promote environmental protection internally, the Green Committee
launched a number of keynote activities during “Green Month” March 2014:

e \Wear Green — Management wore green clothing and accessories to
show their support, and handed out fresh crisp pears to staff members
who also dressed in green, as a means of promoting low-carbon diets

e Fat Green - A lunch talk was held to introduce organic and healthy diets

e Play Green - An eco-tour to the mangrove wetlands in Tai O was
organised to understand the habitat

e Share Green — CNCBI staff donated some 700 toys and books to
St. James' Settlement, Christian Action and The Boys’ and Girls” Clubs
Association of Hong Kong

e Work Green - CNCBI staff were encouraged to switch off their
computers after work to save energy

In 2014, the Group sponsored its staff to form corporate teams to
participate in the "21st Green Power Hike” besides taking part in the “Tree
Planting Challenge 2014" organised by Friends of the Earth. The Group also
encouraged its staff to make donations to support “The Community Chest
Green Day".

Outlook

In 2015, the Group will strive to further develop its two corporate social
responsibility themes, i.e. caring for the underprivileged and promoting
harmony with nature. It will continue to improve and press ahead with the
two key projects, namely the “CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” and the
“5-minute Shower Challenge” with a view to creating value for its customers,
staff, business, the environment and society.

—E-FR
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Biographies of Directors

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

(Chairman)

Appointed Director of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”)
on 17 January 2005 and elected Chairman on 28 August 2012. Dr. Chen is
currently a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. He is a mentor for doctoral students and a visiting professor of
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. Dr. Chen has 30 years of
extensive experience in banking. He was formerly Executive Director and
Vice President of CITIC Group Corporation, and Director, President and First
Vice-Chairman of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. Before joining CITIC
Group Corporation, Dr. Chen was a Director and Executive Vice President
of China Merchants Bank. Dr. Chen graduated from Renmin University of
China with a Bachelor’s Degree in Finance. He received his Master's Degree
in Finance from Xinan University of Finance and Economics and his Ph.D.
in Finance from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. Dr. Chen
was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The People’s Bank of China.
From 2005 to 2011 consecutively, Dr. Chen received the “China’s Top Ten
Finance Figures of the Year Award” from The Chinese Banker magazine. He
also received the “Top Ten New Leaders in Finance of the Year Award” from
the China International Forum in 2006 and 2007. In 2011, Dr. Chen was
named “2011 The Most Valuable President of Listed Companies in China” by
Moneyweek in China.

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22
October 2012. Mr. Zhang is also a Non-executive Director of China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited and Chairman of CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited. A veteran banker with 30 years of experience in the
banking industries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, Mr. Zhang had
held various senior positions at Agricultural Bank of China and Bank of
Communications. He was also Vice President of the Hong Kong Branch of
Bank of Communications and President of the Hong Kong Branch of China
Merchants Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was an Executive
Director, General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of Wing
Lung Bank. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the
Beijing Economics Institute and a Master's Degree in Monetary and Banking
from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China. He was appointed
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers in August 2013.

Ms. Margaret Man

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Wholesale
& Cross-border Banking)

Appointed Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 28
June 2012. Ms. Man is also Group Head of Wholesale and Cross-border
Banking of the Bank, and Vice Chairman of CITIC Bank International (China)
Limited. Ms. Man has about 30 years of experience in the banking and
finance industry. She had held a number of senior positions including
Division Chief of The People’s Bank of China and Deputy Managing Director
of China Venturetechno International Co Ltd. Ms. Man graduated from
Shanxi Financial and Economics University with a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics and further studied for a Master's Degree in Banking and Finance
at the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China.
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Biographies of Directors

Mrs. Helen Kan

(Executive Director, Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Personal
& Business Banking)

Appointed Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on
15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Group Head of Personal & Business Banking
Group of the Bank. She has 28 years of experience in the banking and
finance industry. Over the years, Mrs. Kan had held various senior positions
across a broad spectrum of banking and finance exposures in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and other global markets. These have included the
personal and consumer banking sectors. Prior to joining the Bank, she was
Standard Chartered Bank’s Global Head of Distribution in charge of the
strategic development and performance of distribution channels across 33
geographic locations covering a global customer population in excess of 14
million. Mrs. Kan holds an Honours Degree in Management and Economics,
and a Master’s Degree in Law from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Jaime Pablo Azcoiti Leyva

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 13 November 2013. Mr. Azcoiti Leyva is
Head of Risk, Asia of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. He is also a Non-
executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr.
Azcoiti Leyva has more than 23 years of experience in risk management. He
was formerly Chief Risk Officer of the Bank and Director of Risk for Global
Clients & Structured Finance of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Mr.
Azcoiti Leyva holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from
Universidad Pontificia de Comillas and a Bachelor's Degree in Law from
Universidad Nacional de Educacion a Distancia in Spain.

Mr. Cao Guoqiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009. Mr. Cao is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, Non-executive Director
of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and Director of CITIC Heye
Investment Company Limited. Mr. Cao has 26 years of experience in China’s
banking industry. Prior to joining China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
in 2005, he had held various senior positions at China Merchants Bank,
including General Manager of the Planning and Treasury Department at its
headquarters and at its Shenzhen Administrative Department respectively.
He had also worked at the Planning and Treasury Department of the Shaanxi
Branch of The People’s Bank of China from July 1988 to June 1992. Mr. Cao
graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Money and Banking. He received his Master's Degree in Money
and Banking from Shaanxi College of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Ju Weimin

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. Mr. Ju is Chief
Financial Officer of CITIC Limited, Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of CITIC Corporation Limited, Deputy Chairman of Asia Satellite
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Non-executive Director of CITIC
Securities Company Limited and CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. He was formerly Executive Director, Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of CITIC Group Corporation, and Non-executive Director of
CITIC Limited and China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. Mr. Ju graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Master's Degree in Accounting.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Sun Deshun

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013. Mr. Sun is Executive
Director and Vice President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. Mr. Sun
has over 30 years of experience in China’s banking industry. Prior to joining
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 2011, he had held various senior
positions at The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China as well as Bank
of Communications, and had also worked in The People’s Bank of China
from April 1981 to May 1984. Mr. Sun graduated from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics with a Master's Degree in Economics. Mr. Sun was
granted the title of "Senior Economist” by The Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China.

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 1 August 2011. Mr. Torano is Head of
Asia Pacific and Managing Director of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria,
S.A. He has been working with BBVA Group since 2002. Mr. Gonzalo is
also Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and
CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Torano graduated from
Complutense University of Madrid.

Mr. Zhang Qiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 April 2013. Mr. Zhang is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. He joined China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited in 1990 and has held various senior positions.
Mr. Zhang has over 26 years of experience in China’s banking industry.
He graduated from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics with
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and obtained a Master's Degree in
Finance from Liaoning University. Mr. Zhang was granted the title of “Senior
Economist” by CITIC Group Corporation.

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Credit
& Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 20 October 2003. Mr. Gil-
Tienda is Chairman of the Asia Pacific region and a member of the Senior
Advisory Board of Oliver Wyman. He is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Gil-Tienda was
formerly with Standard Chartered Bank and Citibank and has over 26 years
of banking experience. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy,
Politics and Economics from the University of Oxford and a Master's Degree
in Business Administration from the University of California, Berkeley.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Tang Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 13
November 2013. Mr. Tang is Chairman of Beijing HODOJOU Technology
Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience in finance and securities industries.
Mr. Tang graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a
Bachelor's Degree in Finance. He received his Master's Degree in Economics
and Doctor’s Degree in Economics respectively from the Graduate School of
The People’s Bank of China and the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences. Mr. Tang was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The
People’s Construction Bank of China in 1993.

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Bank on 1 September 2004. Mr. Tsang is also an
Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and two listed companies
in Hong Kong, namely Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited and
L. K. Technology Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for more
than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from
the firm on 31 March 2003. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Higher Diploma in
Accounting. Mr. Tsang is a professional accountant and a Fellow Member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.

Mr. Wu Jiesi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5 August
2013. Mr. Wu is Chairman of Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited, China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
and The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited, and
non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and Silver Base
Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate
management, investment and finance. He holds a Doctor's Degree in
Economics from The Research Institution of The People’s Bank of China. Mr.
Wu conducted post-doctorate research work in theoretical economics at
Nankai University and was conferred a professorship qualification by Nankai
University in 2001.

Ms. Yin Fenglan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5 August
2013. Ms. Yin has 39 years of experience in finance. She was with China
Merchants Bank for 19 years, where Ms. Yin was its vice president until
she retired on 9 July 2013. Ms. Yin holds a Master's Degree in Economics
from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. She was
granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The People’s Bank of China.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy Huang

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal
Control)

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is currently an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal Control of
the Bank, as well as Group General Counsel of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited, with his scope of responsibility encompassing the
management of legal and internal control affairs. Mr. Huang has more than
33 years of legal and regulatory experience in Hong Kong and the US. Before
joining the Bank, Mr. Huang was partner-in-charge of legal affairs Asia-
Pacific at Andersen Worldwide. Mr. Huang graduated from the University of
California, Berkeley, with an Artium Baccalaureus in History and Georgetown
University Law School with a Juris Doctor Degree.

Mr. Elton Tam

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2014 as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Tam also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Tam has more than 25 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr.
Tam was General Manager and Group Financial Controller of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited. Before that, he had held various senior finance positions at
Standard Chartered Bank Group across different business areas such as
consumer banking, treasury and wholesale banking in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Taiwan. Mr. Tam graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree, the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Master of Science Degree in Finance, the City University of
Hong Kong with a Doctor of Business Administration Degree and Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics with a Doctorate Degree in Economics.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the UK
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales. He is also
a qualified member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of China, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Certified General Accountants Association of Canada.

Mr. Michael Leung

(Chief Information and Operations Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2013 as Chief Information and Operations
Officer responsible for managing the Bank’s information technology and
operations. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in technology and
operations management from various local and international organisations
including Bank of America (Asia), Standard Chartered Bank, Dao Heng Bank,
IBM, Price Waterhouse, and Philips Telecommunication and Data Systems.
Before joining the Bank, Mr. Leung was Deputy Chief Executive and Chief
Information Officer of China Construction Bank (Asia). Mr. Leung holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Electronics from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Postgraduate Diploma from the Graduate School of Retail Bank
Management at the University of Virginia in the US, and a Master's Degree in
Engineering from Netherlands Universities Foundation.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Jose Maria Abollado

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in September 2013 as Chief Risk Officer responsible for
monitoring and managing all key risks. Mr. Abollado has more than 23 years
of banking experience. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Head of Eurasia,
Specialised Lending, at the Central Credit Unit of BBVA in Madrid. Over
the years, he had held various senior positions including Global Head of
Structured Finance and Senior Analyst (Industry Coverage) at BBVA. He had
also been Area Manager — Real Estate Finance Unit at Banco del Comercio in
Spain. Mr. Abollado graduated from Universidad Auténoma, Madrid, with a
Bachelor's Degree in Economics.

Mr. John Lee

(Chief Personnel Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is now Chief
Personnel Officer of the Bank and Head of Group Human Resources of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He started his banking career
at Standard Chartered Bank in an information technology function and
served for 20 years in various management positions in several business
and support functions, including consumer banking, human resources,
and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific. Before joining the Bank, Mr.
Lee headed the people development function in The Mass Transit Railway
Corporation Limited (now known as MTR Corporation Limited). Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Carleton University, Ottawa,
Canada, and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma
City University, Oklahoma, US.

Ms. Rita Man

(Chief Compliance Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2005 as Senior Counsel. Ms. Man is currently
the Bank’s Chief Compliance Officer and is responsible for managing the
overall compliance function in the Bank. Ms. Man has more than 30 years of
experience in the legal, compliance and banking areas. Ms. Man started her
career as a management trainee in a leading bank in Hong Kong and gained
comprehensive banking experience in a span of 10 years. Ms. Man spent
the following 10 years as a lawyer in private practice, offering professional
legal service in banking, financing and litigation to various banks in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Ms. Man holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong, and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws from Peking University. She was admitted as a solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Phileas Wong

(General Manager and Head of Treasury & Markets Group)

Joined the Bank in October 2011 as Head of Corporate Solutions with key
responsibility of developing and managing the derivatives and structured
products business. In October 2014, Mr. Wong's scope of responsibility
expanded to also include all the trading activities of the Bank’s Global
Markets unit. He was appointed General Manager and Head of Treasury &
Markets Group in March 2015. Mr. Wong has about 20 years of experience
in treasury and global markets. Before joining the Bank, he served in senior
trading and structuring roles at global institutions including HSBC, Deutsche
Bank and Standard Bank PLC. He started his career as an audit professional
at Price Waterhouse and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Wong is a member
of the CFA Institute and CPA Australia. He graduated from the University of
Melbourne with a Bachelor of Commerce degree.

Ms. Zoe Lau

(Director of CEO Office)

Joined the Bank in August 2007 as Senior Vice President and Head of Wealth
Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Lau is currently Director of CEO
Office of the Bank and is responsible for coordinating various corporate
initiatives and activities for the Chief Executive Officer, as well as overseeing
the Bank's brand management, corporate communications and investor
relations. Ms. Lau has over 15 years of experience in the areas of cards,
payment services and wealth management with major multinational banks
in Hong Kong. Ms. Lau had also worked extensively in the advertising and
marketing industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before joining the Bank, Ms.
Lau was Head of Marketing, Greater China, American Express Hong Kong.
Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor's Degree of Social Sciences from The University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. David Yau

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in November 2014 as Chief Auditor of the Bank. Mr. Yau has
more than 20 years of experience in the finance industry. Before joining the
Bank, he was a Partner and China National Financial Services Risk Solutions
Leader for Enterprise Risk Service of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He had
held senior management positions with Fortis Group, ABN AMRO Group,
Deutsche Bank Group, Normura International (Hong Kong) Limited and
Bankers Trust Company Hong Kong. Mr. Yau is a Fellow Member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia. He graduated from the University of Manchester with a Bachelor's
Degree in Economics.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman
Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Executive Directors
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Ms. Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. Helen Kan (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jaime Pablo Azcoiti Leyva
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Sun Deshun

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

Mr. Zhang Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
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Mr. Tang Shisheng

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Mr. Wu Jiesi

Ms. Yin Fenglan

Audit Committee
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal place of business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at 61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank has branches
outside Hong Kong and operating in Macau, Shanghai, the Cayman Islands,
Singapore, New York and Los Angeles.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services, primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, and the state
of the Bank’s and the Group's affairs at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 48 to 206.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Property and equipment

Movements of property and equipment are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders before dividends of HK$2,801,145,000
(2013: HKS$2,135,481,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in the reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Share capital

Details of the movement in share capital of the Bank during the year are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements. The movement includes
the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share premium
account in share capital from 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37
of Schedule 11 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as
part of the transition to the no-par value regime.
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Report of the Directors

Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Dr Chen Xiaoxian

Executive Directors

Mr Zhang Xiaowei (President and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs Kan Ng Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr Jaime Pablo Azcoiti Leyva
Mr Cao Guogiang

Mr Ju Weimin

Mr Sun Deshun

Mr Gonzalo Torano

Mr Zhang Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr Tang Shisheng

Mr Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Mr Wu Jiesi

Ms Yin Fenglan

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of the report,
the following persons have resigned as Directors of the Bank:

Mr Patrick Georges Gillot (resigned on 26 March 2014)
Mr Lam Kwong Siu (resigned on 26 March 2014)

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all present
Directors shall retire at the next Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ interests

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

No contract of significance to which the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.



BFRITERE)RA

HEW4FNANBIEFENTBERER  BE57%2
FEGRITE(ERE)RRADAE @A EIRS -

BB ED

RITEZE2014FN2ANALFEZHBHREAE
R ETMEBAEZ 2R gMEBTE
H R AT 2R B IR R B F R & oA R Em IR
RITIZEED - NTEF G DA BB AN KE
BRRBAFREG L RELZEESFOKEGFRISE
TEER BN TIZENAM < sk T ANTTAR R BL & ©

AEFEW
RANME
E

FHB - 201538190

Report of the Directors

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 comply fully
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been
audited by KPMG who will retire as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of
its current term of office at the close of the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Board of Directors of the Bank has resolved to propose the
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditor of the Bank,
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Bank at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board,
ZHANG Xiaowei
Director

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China CITIC Bank International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank
International Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 48 to 206, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December
2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
P 5T BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000

FLE A Interest income 4(a) 7,414,726 5,664,037
FEXH Interest expense 4(b) (3,258,058) (2,333,080)
B E WA Net interest income 4,156,668 3,330,957
EHNMAsRA Fee and commission income 1,005,511 733,683
ERLEEYH Fee and commission expense (34,219) (38,144)
FERARBEESRA Net fee and commission income 5 971,292 695,539
FR SN Net trading income 6 769,804 665,324
HEEABBERARBALEER  Netgain from financial instruments designated at

T A F R fair value through profit or loss 1,073 3,017
SEER(E18), e Net hedging (loss)/gain (2,584) 1,970
& ] B A R I R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 14,879 12,324
H g A Other operating income 10 94,795 38,116
sEWA Operating income 6,005,927 4,747,247
R H Operating expenses 11 (2,453,169) (2,089,057)
BRI E 2 AT FY &R T Operating profit before impairment 3,552,758 2,658,190
BRI R EAARIR Impairment losses on loans and advances and

EEE other accounts 13 (180,857) (84,356)
At EFE SR ERE Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities 23 - (35,590)
RIEEE Impairment losses (180,857) (119,946)
KRR Operating profit 3,371,901 2,538,244
HEWE KR EF(EE), IS Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property and equipment (334) 13,936
EMEEH W= Revaluation gain on investment properties 26(a) 2,842 2,174
BANEF Profit before taxation 3,374,409 2,554,354
FTiSH: Income tax 14 (573,264) (418,873)
A F R F Profit for the year 2,801,145 2,135,481
BEREITRRNER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 15 2,801,145 2,135,481

55 A 5206 B MM B AN R — AR -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 55 to 206 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
B 5E BETT BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
REREER Profit for the year 2,801,145 2,135,481
AEEHMEEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(RBEREF P EAER) (after tax and reclassification adjustments) 16
HEFSEHS 8 Item that will not be reclassified
ZEk to income statement:
Y EGFE Property revaluation reserve
— HERERIELRIE — transfer to deferred tax on disposal - 921
HETEREF > BEZERER Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to income statement:
HEF NGB TR AR BT SRR Exchange differences on translation of
MEHZER financial statements of overseas subsidiaries (43,347) 42,751
AP EES Available-for-sale securities
—_REENED - change in fair value 127,443 (91,487)
—mERREkax — transfer from income statement on disposal (14,613) (11,269)
—RENEEREE — transfer to income statement on impairment - 35,590
—(kB)/ EBEEERE — transfer (from)/to deferred tax (21,094) 12,174
AEEHMEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year 48,389 (11,320)
AEEEZHEINFHEE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,849,534 2,124,161
BERAITRERMNER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 2,849,534 2,124,161
F558 2|F 206 B B M B AR SR — 2 n - The notes on pages 55 to 206 form part of these financial statements.
—s-mER
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
B 5E BETT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
e NIERIT » PRETE Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
Hiv & mEa&EF other financial institutions 18 20,676,200 12,621,484
Eﬁﬁﬂ FRRRITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hih & mEENTER LB central banks and other financial institutions 19 43,893,840 46,089,324
T HEBRAE Trading assets 20 3,291,332 2,398,265
T ABBE SRR Securities designated at fair value through

AV {ETEE’\J &5 profit or loss 2] - 63,204

BEERRBR N EMIRIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 22 153,872,296 132,531,544
ﬂf#&ﬂj%%\ ; Available-for-sale securities 23 26,513,380 21,661,781
E PG Property and equipment 26(a)

—REME ~ Investment property 182,898 180,056

— H W N ERAE — Other property and equipment 676,035 719,624
A] U [a] § 18 Tax recoverable 31(a) 2,775 6
FIERIAE B Deferred tax assets 31(b) 32,115 42,618
EERE Total assets 249,140,871 216,307,906
ERREE Equity and liabilities
RIT R EH 4 gy Deposits and balances of banks and

TR EETT other financial institutions 27 4,129,401 7,522,382
BFEFER Deposits from customers 28 188,929,559 154,658,966
THRGAE Trading liabilities 29 2,974,807 1,568,640
BB ITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 14,156,976 16,175,173
BETERES Debt securities issued 32 - 1,151,253
RNERFHTE Current taxation 31(a) 162,951 179,394
EERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 4,327 12,124
HibafE Other liabilities 33 7,777,093 9,206,405
BEER Loan capital 35 8,754,408 8,657,552
=NEE Total liabilities 226,889,522 199,131,889
R Equity
A% A Share capital 36(a) 7,566,271 7,283,341
s Reserves 12,374,910 9,892,676
BERATRRMN Total equity attributable to equity

fERBE shareholders of the Bank 19,941,181 17,176,017
BEIMERT R Additional equity instruments 37 2,310,168 -
ERBE Total equity 22,251,349 17,176,017
ERRAEAE Total equity and liabilities 249,140,871 216,307,906
BEEER2015F3 8198 X ELIREEEM o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2015.

RNE B4 BRRE FEREES

ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN Helen KAN Elton TAM
HITEE - (TERTHER HTEFHE TR $7TEFHE TR o1 hes

Executive Director, President and Executive Director and Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer

55 A B F206 B MM B AN HREK — AR -

The notes on pages 55 to 206 form part of these financial statements.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
P 5T BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
R RERIT » FRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Hith & R EmATF other financial institutions 18 22,390,107 12,596,762
EIRTT ~ PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hih & BN TFEIR R central banks and other financial institutions 19 40,146,716 41,078,733
RHBRBREE Trading assets 20 3,269,566 2,361,092
15 RiBiBE m DA R IR Securities designated at fair value through

NRBERES profit or loss 21 - 63,204
BEEZNBZ N EMIRTE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 22 138,604,532 116,349,957
AHRPEES Available-for-sale securities 23 24,892,476 20,639,086
FEUSE B A B IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 24 9,576,105 9,069,712
MHEARRE Investments in subsidiaries 25 1,275,000 1,274,990
I EYSEL Property and equipment 26(b)

— B ~ Investment property 151,713 148,114

- EYNE — Other property and equipment 662,698 706,653
EEFIBEE Deferred tax assets 31(b) 14,424 28,490
EEHRE Total assets 240,983,337 204,316,793
EEREaE Equity and liabilities
RIT M E M & R R Deposits and balances of banks and

FRR T other financial institutions 27 4,129,401 7,239,589
BETFER Deposits from customers 28 182,295,968 145,204,489
ZHR%AEE Trading liabilities 29 2,932,304 1,540,175
BRITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 14,156,976 16,175,173
BETERES Debt securities issued 32 - 1,151,253
AN EAFRIE Current taxation 31(a) 157,610 163,447
EIETRIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 2,658 10,062
Hih B & Other liabilities 33 7,271,501 8,180,087
FETB B A B FUE Amounts due to subsidiaries 34 268,480 236,823
BEBER Loan capital 35 8,754,408 8,657,552
BEH8E Total liabilities 219,969,306 188,558,650
= Equity
[N Share capital 36(a) 7,566,271 7,283,341
EaE Reserves 36(b) 11,137,592 8,474,802
BEBRERITREREMN Total equity attributable to equity

AR shareholders of the Bank 18,703,863 15,758,143
EIMERTE Additional equity instruments 37 2,310,168 -
R Total equity 21,014,031 15,758,143
EERBEAE Total equity and liabilities 240,983,337 204,316,793
EEEN2015F3 A 198 BOEW IRAESEAM o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2015.

RANET B4 HRNE EAH
ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN Helen KAN Elton TAM
HITEEF - ITRFITHABE, HITEFRBITTHAEE HITEFEREFTHAAE B e Es
Executive Director, President and Executive Director and Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer
558 2|F 206 BB B AR R — 2y - The notes on pages 55 to 206 form part of these financial statements.
—Z—[FR Jo51
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

HZE2014F12 A3 AL FRE (LB RER) For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
15H
The Group
BovER
I8
EXZE MEEM  REER EE-R (Hf3¥37)
L R fE iEEH R Additional
RE  BBBE EARE -REE  Exchange  Property Investment R Regulatory REER RELE  eqity BREE
Share Share  Capital  General differences revaluation revaluation ~ Statutory  general  Retained Total instruments Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits  reserves  (note37)  equity
BT BETn  BETn  BRTn BMTn AMTn #ETn #ETr B%Tr BETn AETn %t T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
H201451818 At1January 2014 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 140,901 55 (4,846) 38,349 149500 9,179,198 9,892,676 - 17,176,017
HE014EMERED . Changes in equity for 2014:
TEERF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 2,801,145 2,801,145 - 2801145
TEEEM Other comprehensive
PENG income for the year - - - - (w33 - 91736 - - - 48389 - 48389
AEERE Total comprehensive incorne
gyt for the year - - - - (43,347) - 91,736 - - 2,801,145 2,849,534 - 2,849,534
EAEN-& Issue of Additional Tier 1
ERES Capital Securities
('AT1 Capital Securities’) - - - - - - - - - - - 2310168 2,310,168
Distribution payment for
g AT Capital Securities - - - - - - - - - - - (84,370)  (84,370)
R04EIA3REER Transition to no-par value
BABEHE regime on 3 March 2014 282,930 (282,930) - - - - - - - - (282,930) - -
BRRERT Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 17,490 - (101,860)  (84,370) 84370 -
#2014£128318 At31December 2014 7,566,271 - 6,589 100,000 97,554 55 86,890 55839 149,500 11,878,483 12374910 2,310,168 22,251,349
R013E1A1H At1 January 2013 7283341 282,930 6,589 100,000 98,150 4718 50,146 3241 124915 7067826 7768515 - 15051856
HENBENERS Changes in equity for 2013;
RERER Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 2135481 2135480 - 2135481
KEEEM Other comprehensive income
2ENE for the year - - - - 2751 921 (54,992) - - - (11,320) - (11,320)
TEERENGEE Total comprehensive incorne
for the year - - - - 42751 91 (54,992) - - 2135481 2124761 - 2124761
ZRREEH Trangfer from retained profcs - - - - - - SSI08 M5 (2969) - - -
RLENE Release of reserve upon
MEBNERE disposal of property - - - - - (5,584) - - - 5,584 - - -
013124318 At 31 December 2013 7283341 282,930 6,589 100,000 140901 55 (4,846) 38,349 149500 9179198 9892676 - 17176017

F558 B 206 B MM 1B A iR — 3%

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

o

The notes on pages 55 to 206 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
BT IT BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
K Operating activities
A4 A Profit before taxation 3,374,409 2,554,354
JEREIRE FHE Adjustments for non-cash items:
REEIH KRB N HEAMIEE Impairment losses on loans and advances
VEREY Fi=E and other accounts 180,857 84,356
A EEAEREEE Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities - 35,590
ﬁ%—ﬂ/\ﬁ%a’f S Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (14,879) (12,324)
HEMEREEFEER (W) Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment 334 (13,936)
wEMESH R E Revaluation gain on investment properties (2,842) (2,174)
IEAE S 4 5 Amortisation of deferred expenses 104,578 55,558
YN RAEITE Depreciation on property and equipment 132,628 116,258
METR B AR B U A Dividend income from equity securities (5,699) (5,568)
BEFERFEZH Interest expense on loan capital 503,308 385,388
EH =% Foreign exchange differences (696,382) 394,870
3,576,312 3,592,372
BEGEGEM, B (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
=5 EE B 2383 A A TE SR TT Placements with and advances to banks,
R R E S RE S central banks and other financial institutions
TFRMERR with original maturity beyond 3 months 9,986,948 (8,106,403)
JREIEAH B3 E A fE ESH Treasury bills with original maturity beyond 3 months (814,529) (397,794)
BEE|HH fg_Lg{lﬂ Hy Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
B FRE beyond 3 months 2,036,451 (1,469,741)
X%FH}@&F Trading assets (893,067) (548,921)
TEABBBIFIA KM Securities designated at fair value through
/V*f S EHE S profit or loss 63,204 28,296
ZEER LA LA MRS Loans and advances to customers and other accounts (21,660,229) (25,202,223)
AHEERES Available-for-sale securities (2,867,026) (3,757,083)
(14,148,248) (39,453,869)
weEaFEm ORd) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
SRR H S Bk iy Deposits and balances of banks and other
k&R financial institutions (3,392,981) 3,836,807
ZEER Deposits from customers 34,270,593 23,939,305
RHpMAEEE Trading liabilities 1,406,168 661,297
BT AE Certificates of deposit issued (1,401,281) 1,519,989
BE{TERE Debt securities issued (1,136,032) -
EmaE Other liabilities (1,345,928) 4,171,848
28,400,539 34,129,246
KRB (BR)KEEEBMNIRELE  Cash generated from/(used in) operations 17,828,603 (1,732,251)
—ET-MER
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MERERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HZE2014F12 A3 AL FRE (LB RER) For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2014 2013
P EE BET T BT
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000
RE (AR EEEBNREE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 17,828,603 (1,732,251)
e EH Income tax paid
BERNEENEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (469,328) (193,587)
BAIEINETE Overseas tax paid (79,153) (46,757)
KRB (BR)REEBNIRELELE  Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 17,280,122 (1,972,595)
REEK Investing activities
B ERFESRE Dividends received from equity securities 5,699 5,568
B A MR Purchase of property and equipment (90,400) (176,028)
M EYE KRBTSR Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 123 84,317
ARBRELXENRSEE Net cash used in investing activities (84,578) (86,143)
Eﬂ!ﬁ%iﬁ Financing activities
ITRAIN— B ARNFEHPTS 708 Proceeds from Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities issued 2,310,168 -
SEH§59|\—%&§$ EAEER Distribution paid on Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (84,370) -
BITERE RS FIE Proceeds from loan capital issued - 2,325,852
FTAHERE A F B Interest paid on loan capital (496,376) (357,034)
REAREEKRNES T Net cash from financing activities 1,729,422 1,968,818
RERBEESZEEM ORA)FEE  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,924,966 (89,920)
M AB1ENBESLRELZEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 43,612,527 43,702,447
MR12B31ENRERIBELEEEH Cashand cash equivalents at 31 December 39 62,537,493 43,612,527
REEBEENESRESTE Cash flows from operating activities include:
B U FI B Interest received 7,412,772 5,578,775
EARFLE Interest paid (2,566,296) (1,830,143)
558 2|F 206 BB B AR R — 2y - The notes on pages 55 to 206 form part of these financial statements.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  Principal activities

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which
materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the

Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.

2 Significant accounting policies

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong, and has its registered office at 61-
65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Bank

and its subsidiaries.

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"),
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which for this financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), and are in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to
87 of Schedule 11 of that Ordinance. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)

(i)
- investment property (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires that management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 49.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as

follows:

(i

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
income statement over their expected life.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the
original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in
the present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprises all
gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities, together
with interest income and expense and dividend income
attributable to those financial instruments.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases,
the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period in
which the cost or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest
income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for the
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(e)(i)).

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(s)).
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(i

(i)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which
will normally be equal to the transaction price plus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not held at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue
of the financial liability. Transaction costs on financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition, but excludes those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
(note 2(g)) are accounted for as trading instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

The Group has the option of designating its financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise

- the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives that
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract; or

- the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified as held
for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as being at fair value through profit or loss or as
available-for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which are classified as available-
for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and placements with and advances to
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories above. They include financial
assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in the market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably, and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity securities, are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced
at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments,
or if the market for them is not active, the fair value of the
instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide
a reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual
market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, input is
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2

(e)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)  Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host
contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. The embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised
cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities, but as
receivables, and are carried in the statement of financial position at
amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense, respectively, over the life of each agreement, using
the effective interest rate method.
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(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or

loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and

the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the

financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged

items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and

on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues hedge accounting

prospectively when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,

terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)

(i)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.
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(9)

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be
deemed effective.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the income statement. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(c)(iii).
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note

2():

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 2(j)(iii))

- other items of equipment.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings are depreciated over 30 years or the unexpired terms
of the land leases, whichever is shorter.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over a term
of 3to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts, and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period

of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of

the arrangement and applies regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Classification of leased assets

Assets that are held by the Group under leases and which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances
to customers. Hire purchase contracts which have the
characteristics of finance leases are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(I).

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies, as set out
in note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue
arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)

(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”. The Group does not
hold the repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to
sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows of the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower

- the disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
loans and receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote, which are measured at amortised cost. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
borrower/investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables
with a short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations and economic factors. In order to estimate
the required allowance, the Group makes assumptions both
to define the way the Group models inherent losses and to
determine the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances, and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on loans and advances to customers are reasonable
and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
loans and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

M

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

)

(iii)

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-
sale security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to the
income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity securities and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Such impairment losses are not
reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts)

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units), and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset is not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(m)

(n)

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the year (see notes 2(I)(i) to (iii)).

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

() Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Staffretirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall
due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits; that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income tax that arises from the distribution of dividends
is recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(p)

(q)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in gains
less losses from trading securities or financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss. All other exchange differences
relating to monetary items are presented as gains less losses from
dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statements of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to the income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its
subsidiaries, the fair value of the guarantee is estimated and
capitalised as the cost of investment in subsidiaries and deferred
income within other liabilities.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

(i)
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(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(q)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event. It is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r)  Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that person in

their dealings with the entity.

(s) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(s)

(t)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up to date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale, and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below) or disposal
groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs and one new
Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Bank. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group's financial statements:

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

- Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

- Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretations
not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are disclosed below:

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in HKAS
32. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as they are consistent with the policies already adopted
by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, the amendments
expand the disclosures required for an impaired asset or CGU whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as
they are consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of
hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing hedge
accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging
instrument meets certain criteria. The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the Group has not novated
any of its derivatives.

—T-mEH
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

FMEWARFEXH 4 Interestincome and interest expense
FEWA (@) Interestincome
2014 2013
BET T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EWES Listed securities 46,904 1189
ELMES Unlisted securities 451,857 357,073
Efth (FtEE) Others (Note) 6,915,965 5,305,775
IEIE R R BEFT ABEN Interest income on financial assets that are not
DEEEEMNEMRA at fair value through profit or loss 7,414,726 5,664,037
RS (b) Interest expense
2014 2013
BET T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BE - RITREMESREER Deposits from customers, banks and other financial
FREBEBEITERE M EAM institutions, certificates of deposit issued and others 2,721,516 1,904,390
BETERES Debt securities issued 33,234 43,302
BETEKEAR Loan capital issued 503,308 385,388
FEE AR BETAEZA Interest expense on financial liabilities that are not
TRAENFEZ T at fair value through profit or loss 3,258,058 2,333,080
Hep: Of which:
BETEEENNSFANEEE Loan capital issued repayable after 5 years 267,588 170,909

st -

EZE2014F12A31HIEFE - FIBRABRIERE
© B A EE A FEET R B U A #54,352,0000T (2013
F BE72170007) - EREREERREREE
1 IR B 9 F) B IR A #63,978,0007T (20134 -

7B#4,828,0007T) (KIsE22(b)) °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note:

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
of HK$4,352,000 (2013: HK$7,217,000), which includes interest income on the
unwinding of the discount on loan impairment losses of HK$3,978,000 (2013:
HK$4,828,000) (note 22(b)) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 Net fee and commission income

2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERMASWA Fee and commission income:
EREBAS Bills commission 141,547 131,639
EAREBKRA Card-related income 25,765 24,187
—MRIBITARTE General banking services 108,613 86,130
IRER Insurance 285,589 167,791
KRENEBEREE®D Investment and structured investment products 137,783 126,873
B ST NEEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 305,500 196,481
At Others 714 582
1,005,511 733,683
EREASEH Fee and commission expense (34,219) (38,144)
971,292 695,539
Hr Of which:
FEAMASKRACHRIE Net fee and commission income (other than the
BIEFTEEBRFRNERE) amounts included in determining the effective
AR FEIE A R BEETA interest rate) relating to financial assets and
BnEneREELEE liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
—BRARASWA - Fee and commission income 472,812 352,307
—EBRARAEIH ~ Fee and commission expense (13,373) (12,901)
459,439 339,406
6 FEXZFWA 6 Nettrading income
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB IMNE U R ET R Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 414,149 120,257
EERFGARFEHFNEBEISR Gains less losses from trading securities 658 577
Hih 8 E W RE B Gains less losses from other dealing activities 227,720 492,800
R AEEENBWRA Interest income on trading assets 127,277 51,690
769,804 665,324
—ZE—UFHR |os3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

7  Net gain from financial instruments designated at fair

LRI AFRa value through profit or loss
2014 2013
BT BT TT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FU R Net gain 732 2,546
FEUWA—IELET Interest income — Unlisted 341 471
1,073 3,017
8 FHPUkE 8 Net hedging (loss)/gain
2014 2013
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
NREBELFF(ER), s Net (loss)/gain on fair value hedge (2,584) 1,970
9 HEUHEHERSFFUE 9  Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
R EEEANFENF RS Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves 14,613 11,269
FREAEAENFR = Net gain arising in current year 266 1,055
14,879 12,324
10 HM&EWA 10 Other operating income
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Al EERFE AR B WA Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
— k™ - Listed 199 268
—3E kM - Unlisted 5,500 5,300
KEWEHRSWA Rental income from investment properties
B H ¢ B16289,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$289,000
(20134F : JE#315,0007T) (2013: HK$315,000) 7,051 6,208
Hh Others 82,045 26,340
94,795 38,116

084 HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ReEXH 11 Operating expenses
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(a) BIEA (a) Staff costs
FehEME TR Salaries and other staff costs 1,454,437 1,201,473
RIKES KA (FI5E38) Retirement costs (note 38) 76,137 72,748
1,530,574 1,274,221
(b) #TE (b) Depreciation
Y2 R iR BT E (M sE26(a)) Depreciation of property and equipment (note 26(a))
—REBELLEHEFENEE - Assets held for use under operating leases 27,749 25,763
—Hih&EE - Other assets 104,879 90,495
132,628 116,258
(c) Hh&& (c) Other operating expenses
L EYSE L Property and equipment expenses
(TEEIE) (W) (excluding depreciation) (Note)
—MEEE ~ Rental of properties 246,507 238,269
—Eit - Others 159,923 149,333
Z AN B & Auditor's remuneration 8,634 7,184
EEE Advertising 60,807 47,674
B - R R SER Communication, printing and stationery 84,641 77,738
EEMEEER Legal and professional fees 39,081 29,653
Hith Others 190,374 148,727
_____________ 789,967 698,578
ReEHAEE Total operating expenses 2,453,169 2,089,057
BaE - Note:

Hi S &S B ERBEEREINNREER
MEZW DR AREHEE S HE%1,393,0007T
(2013%F : B#223400070) MEMEERE S H
(BIEWEME) B ¥234,7150007C (20134 : B
#5227,643,0007T) °

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payments under
operating leases of HK$1,393,000 (2013: HK$2,234,000) for the hire of
equipment, and HKS$234,715,000 (2013: HK$227,643,000) for the hire of other
assets (including property rentals).

—E-FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Directors’ remuneration

REBFOEE CRTUEDD (F622F) K11
F78IFR R RIEX AR (A RMEDI) (532

) FB161EPTEEE MR = =B

TN

The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of

Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) is as follows:

2014 2013
BET T BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
E=-Yikn Directors' fees 4,019 3,324
e EZMEREDRE(HEOZEG) Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (notes (i) to (ii)) 23,689 18,932
EIIBIEAL Discretionary bonuses 17,457 13,216
RRETEIE R Retirement scheme contributions 1,624 1,503
46,789 36,975

MI5E Notes:

() WBRERBEBEFE (KABRTHS)  »
WHFLIRNFEBRTEETNRS RE A
7B #82790,0007T (20134 : 7##5800,0007T ) °

(i IREBEREEEE ([F181])) 8B AL
S —EHEMN G ERE - BEENSH
BURR T E B3 FASEITEEMNKREE
BAE - REEBBOSEMGE  1K2014
F B 85 #18,000,0007T (20134F © 78 #
18,000,0007T) ELEHRME B ITA - W BIE

B E A BIEE -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(i) Under the retention incentive scheme (using a deferred mechanism),
cash benefits amounting to HK$2,790,000 (2013: HK$800,000) were paid

to the Executive Directors of the Group in 2014.

(i) Under the long-term incentive scheme (“LTI"), eligible persons

are granted a number of Appreciation Rights. Payment for each

Appreciation Right is determined by the appreciation in the Group's

net asset value over a three-year performance period. In 2014,
HK$18,000,000 (2013: HK$18,000,000) was accrued in the staff costs,
including the amount payable to the Directors based on management’s

best estimation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

13 EXRRBRREMBRBRESE 13 Impairment losses on loans and advances and other
accounts
2014 2013
BT T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B E B Impairment losses charged
—ERREBR — Loans and advances (181,697) (84,356)
—HMARIR — Other accounts 840 _
(180,857) (84,356)
BER LB L EMIRIE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
BB TE (FI5E22(b)) other accounts (note 22(b))
— BRI FF M — Individual assessment (105,266) (36,674)
— 1R A A — Collective assessment (75,591) (47,682)
(180,857) (84,356)
HA(HMtEE22(0)): of which (note 22(b)):
—1eR - Additions (416,796) (226,491)
— [ 48 - Releases 209,339 122,878
— izl & &E — Recoveries 26,600 19,257
(180,857) (84,356)
14 HZEWBRFIRWEIEH 14 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(a) HEWBZKRFIRWETE (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
2014 2013
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HKS'000
REFHIE - FBFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FRER(MIFE316R) Provision for the year (note 31(a)) 495,234 374,852
WA FE IR Under-provision in respect of prior years 5,406 2,992
500,640 377,844
ARHABIE — BN I8 Current tax - Overseas
FNER Provision for the year 82,450 31,936
BAFERBLEGEHR(25) Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 8,528 (944)
90,978 30,992
IEFEBIE Deferred tax
_(@T_?é_)/iaﬁﬁ‘irﬁ%%éﬁ_i (BFEE31(0))  (Reversal)/origination of temporary differences (note 31(b)) (18,354) 10,037
573,264 418,873
—E—[NFER
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14 HREWBRAROFAER (&)

(@) HFEWBERFIRHAESR (&)

014 F EHBNETIRIE R AF E L5 IE
R A% B R 16.5% (20134F : 165%) &
B WEEEBBEBRITHEBATIE
R2013/14RMEFEEER BN 2+ RHFE
o LA #00000T & £ R (2013FF © R
013F E MR - 2 & &EMR2012/13
RBEFERTRKOEETBEER) < HIN
D17 RHIE A T IE B R AERE B R A0
EIRITH R IR A -

(b) BEXHESTRFNRBEABEFERAN

Notes to the Financial Statements

14

(a)

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(continued)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2014 is calculated at 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year, taking
into account a reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR Government
of 75% of the tax payable for the year of assessment 2013-2014
subject to a maximum reduction of HK$10,000 for each business (2013:
the same statutory concession was granted for the year of assessment
2012-13 and was taken into account in calculating the provision for
2013). Taxation for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

HIRT applicable tax rates
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BAnER Profit before tax 3,374,409 2,554,354
RABEREZERFER Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at
R ER AR T the rates applicable to profits
HEZERIE in the countries concerned 531,225 423,279
ARl HE Y H R LI e 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 57,645 19,607
JEERT UM AT A E Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (28,190) (34,813)
BEFERIBEERR Under-provision in prior years 13,934 2,048
B Others (1,350) 8,752
ERHIERH Actual tax expense 573,264 418,873

15 AITRREAGER

AITREREEEGERNEES I ARTITH
5 8k & N AY & A 7B #52,973,238,0007T (2013
F A1 898,261,0007T) °

088] HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

15

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank
includes a profit of HK$2,973,238,000 (2013: HK$1,898,261,000), which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16

BRAEMEEREZARBINWREALE

Other comprehensive income

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

income
2014 2013
RAEE REXH BEAFE Baiueze BEks BREFE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount benefit amount
BETT B%Trn  B%Tx  B%Tr  B¥ET %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
NESHHE Property revaluation reserve
-REEMEMERNGERE - release of reserve upon disposal of properties - - - - 921 921
BERINTBLFIR Exchange differences on translation of financial
HBBRNELESR statements of overseas subsidiaries (43,347) - (43,347) 42,751 - 42,751
A EES Available-for-sale securities
~AHHEESFAA - net movement in available-for-sale
BEHEFE fair value reserve 112,830 (21,094) 91,736 (67,166) 12,174 (54,992)
A 2EkR Other comprehensive income 69,483 (21,094) 48,389 (24:415) 13,095 (11,320)
—E—ER
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DEHERNERTARKEZHET B LER
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RIRNEINEERN DT - PREIRTTEBERE
B—ERP R TTR—FEMERTT - ARk
REBNFERITEFEERAE -

BEARBBRITEFE T ZEREFRP DR
% EEMERZE  HWEEEE - AR
RiE MR/ NERER - MEE RS RALA
RTT e

MERREMSEHBRRERIMNERF R
% Bmipas  BEREESFNMTRIR

TEE -

Hp ¥R T EREAEERGEREMREE
B EEHIA RS - AT R (B ESH

RORHEMS - KEWANDERIREA
ERE R BRI R R E SRS D BRI
DEL o AR DI RIBIESEEB D HNE
ERARAEBEEESELTERTEEED
B EARITYEEENTEERS SRR
[H A ] EBTH 0 RELEWAREED
7 EPEY D BRI & S R o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

17

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented consistently with reportable
segments which are regularly reviewed or evaluated internally by the
chief operating decision-maker to allocate resources to the segments
and to assess their performance. The Group has identified the
following four main reportable segments:

Wholesale and cross-border banking business includes wholesale
banking business in Hong Kong and overseas branches, and China
banking. Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending and
syndicated loans, trade financing and cash management. Overseas
branches include the management office unit in Hong Kong and the
branches operated overseas. China banking mainly includes a branch
and a subsidiary bank in China, and the China banking management
office in Hong Kong.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit
card services, and Small and Medium Enterprises ("SMEs") banking
business, wealth management services and private banking.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central cash management.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office, and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected
as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.
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17 2WBER (&) 17 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) A2 EB (@) Reportable segments
N -E |
The Group
2014
AR AR
BIRER BB RIT HER
Wholesaleand  Personal and RETE
cross-border business  Treasury and Hith Fe
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BT T BT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERBIA Net interest income 2,564,238 1,157,214 395,821 39,395 4,156,668
Het %&é”&/\ Other operating income 539,083 669,139 614,896 11,262 1,834,380
HETHEHEEFFRE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 1,751 - 13,128 - 14,879
WA Operating income 3,105,072 1,826,353 1,023,845 50,657 6,005,927
BB Operating expenses (486,353) (596,083) (50,580) (1,320,153) (2,453,169)
DI &G (ZH) /A Inter-segment (expenses)/income (355,112) (482,271) (128,685) 966,068 -
NBRBEEER & Operating profit/(loss) before
R (FE) impairment 2,263,607 747,999 844,580 (303,428) 3,552,758
ERRBE R EMEREA Impairment losses (charged)/written back
£ /[0 B on loans and advances and other accounts (144,852) (37,873) - 1,868 (180,857)
RERF/(HR) Operating profit/(loss) 2,118,755 710,126 844,580 (301,560) 3,371,901
HEMERREFWE/  Netqgain/(loss) on disposal of
(E8) property and equipment (1 (440) - 107 (334)
REMESHKE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 2,842 2,842
BADER, (&8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,118,754 709,686 844,580 (298,611) 3,374,409
FiEH Income tax - - - (573,264) (573,264)
KEERF/ (FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,118,754 709,686 844,580 (871,875) 2,801,145
HibpHEE Other segment items:
wE Depreciation 20,228 22,796 1,028 88,576 132,628
THEE Segment assets 130,351,057 39,694,486 99,685,253 (20,589,925) 249,140,871
AHEE Segment liabilities 126,065,104 94,067,374 27,986,539  (21,229,495) 226,889,522
rEEEEN Capital expenditure incurred
ENEET during the year 10,446 29,622 755 49,577 90,400
—Z—FR
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17 2WBER (&) 17 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) T2F|HHI (&) (a) Reportable segments (continued)
rEE
The Group
2013
YNSPNS BAR
BIRER HBRT HER
Wholesaleand ~ Personal and BRI
cross-border business  Treasury and Hit e
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BT BEFT BB BEFT
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i‘%ﬂ SCON Net interest income 1,915,735 1,075,798 304,133 35,291 3,330,957
%&é”&/\/ <) Other operating income/(expense) 357,681 466,780 610,162 (30,657) 1,403,966
tﬂ’é—mﬁtﬂ EEAFWE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 1,747 - 10,577 - 12,324
BRI Operating income 2275163 1,542,578 924,872 4634 4,747,047
BB Operating expenses (535,052) (607,369) (62,490) (884,146) (2,089,057)
DIz &L (ZH) /A Inter-segment (expenses)/income (213318) (317,666) (99,862) 630,846 -
MR REEERN K Operating profit/(loss) before
wH/ (E8) impairment 1,526,793 617,543 762,520 (248,666) 2,658,190
BERRBTREMBRIERE Impairment losses (charged)/written back
BECER) /B on loans and advances and other accounts (49,569) (36,840) (35,590) 2,053 (119,946)
LEET/ (F1B) Operating profit/(loss) 1477224 580,703 726,930 (246,613) 2,538,244
HEMERREFWE/  Netqgain/(loss) on disposal of
(B1#E) property and equipment (6) (2,786) - 16,728 13,936
REMESHKE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 2174 2174
Banas/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1477218 577917 726,930 (227,711) 2,554,354
FiEH Income tax - - - (418,873) (418,873)
REERF/(B8) Profit/(loss) for the year 1477.218 577917 726,930 (646,584) 2,135,481
Hit»EEE - Other segment items:
nE Depreciation 22,805 21,210 1171 71,072 116,258
DHEE Segment assets 113,582,102 37,828,073 80,366,118 (15,468,387) 216,307,906
AEEE Segment liabilities 104,843,268 79,625,938 30640754 (15978071) 199,131,889
KEEEEN Capital expenditure incurred
BARX during the year 6,749 66,156 14,770 88353 176,028

092] HRISERIT (EIKR) BIRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the

principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,

of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

N |
The Group

2014
SEEBERAE
BiATEF HEE HafE BEWA Contingent
Profit Total Total Operating liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities income  commitments
BT BET T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 3,016,222 227,842,192 206,440,191 5,165,917 70,727,803
R R A 3D Mainland China 105,014 16,034,172 14,172,138 382,721 4,026,303
5] United States 944 5,161,545 5,109,847 114,818 730,180
s Singapore 211,225 17,643,601 17,415,840 302,955 16,673,743
=) Others 39,646 1,745,167 1,723,713 38,455 2,230,897
o ERETE B Inter-segment items 1,358 (19,285,806) (17,972,207) 1,061 -
3,374,409 249,140,871 226,889,522 6,005,927 94,388,926

R&EE

The Group

2013
BB ERAE
5 A1 4 ) BEE waE A Contingent
Profit Total Total Operating liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities income commitments
BT BT BT BT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
B8 Hong Kong 2,284,302 194,916,371 178,534,484 4,161,496 67,812,885
] A3 Mainland China 141,919 19,015,509 17,198,708 285,361 4,878,624
XE United States 50,826 3,874,987 3,800,062 82,469 1,427,437
i Singapore 58,098 13,671,664 13,581,566 189,840 11,478,559
EAh Others 19,221 1,345,525 1,332,175 28,342 2,261,195
7 EEIE B Inter-segment items (12) (16,516,150) (15,315,106) (261) -
2,554,354 216,307,906 199,131,889 4,747,247 87,858,700
—E-NFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions

KEE T

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BETF T BET T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
He Cash in hand 259,296 289,630 258,669 289,288
TEHR RIS Balances with central banks 1,694,313 2,318,538 440,370 464,581
ERITHEF Balances with banks 7,260,074 6,129,079 10,228,551 7,958,656
EHMEREERNLTF  Balances with other financial institutions 11,462,517 3,884,237 11,462,517 3,884,237
20,676,200 12,621,484 22,390,107 12,596,762

19 ERIT > PRETREMGESHEEN
FRE 2K

19 Placements with and advances to banks, central banks
and other financial institutions

AEH AT
The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT T BT I BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
ERITHER Placements with banks 37,451,365 38,016,559 33,727,990 33,041,127
FEIRITHIER Advances to banks 6,442,475 8,072,765 6,418,726 8,037,606
43,893,840 46,089,324 40,146,716 41,078,733

ZIHAR ¢ Maturing:
—1EAR — within 1 month 22,533,026 17,109,988 21,240,759 14,903,988
—1RAZIFA — between 1 month and 1 year 21,360,814 28,944,177 18,905,957 26,174,745
—1451% — after 1 year - 35,159 - -

43,893,840 46,089,324 40,146,716 41,078,733

HZE2014F 20135124310 - AEEEIR
TREM S BB BRI ERERR
MR EZ S B FUR BHEE R [EZEE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions at 31 December 2014 and 2013, nor were there any
individually assessed impairment allowances made for them on these
two dates.
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20 REAREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Trading assets

AEH KT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT BETT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB S Debt securities 8,348 - 8,348 -
"EES Investment funds 2,204 2,675 2,204 2,675
RPABEF Trading securities 10,552 2,675 10,552 2,675
PTHETEMERAR Positive fair values of
{BE(KI5E45(b)) derivatives (note 45(b)) 3,280,780 2,395,590 3,259,014 2,358,417
3,291,332 2,398,265 3,269,566 2,361,092
LA T8 B BB TS Issued by:
wmr
WITREM S GRS Banks and other financial institutions 8,348 - 8,348 -
% Corporate entities 2,204 2,675 2,204 2,675
10,552 2,675 10,552 2,675
B AT Analysed by place of listing:
REBAIMEE FH Listed outside Hong Kong 8,348 - 8,348 -
LT Unlisted 2,204 2,675 2,204 2,675
10,552 2,675 10,552 2,675

21 EERBBRBERURMAABENES 21 Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss
AEBRARLT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BET T BB T T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEEH Debt securities - 63,204
LA ETEE R ETHIEMT ¢ Issued by:
I8 T 1 Sovereigns - 12,927
o Corporate entities - 50,277
- 63,204
BB AT Analysed by place of listing:
LT Unlisted - 63,204
ZE—HFH, 095
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22 EFERRERKHMIRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(a) BFERRBIRREMIREREERE (@) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances
AEH RKIT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT BET T BET T
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EEER LA ELE Gross loans and advances to customers 150,720,146 127,016,841 135,617,618 111,566,240
SRE S (B 5E22(b)) Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— @RIz H - Individually assessed (163,880) (160,920) (71,319) (135,696)
—ZEFE — Collectively assessed (373,664) (315,055) (355,783) (309,877)
150,182,602 126,540,866 135,190,516 111,120,667
FERTF) B R B ARTR Accrued interest and other accounts 3,690,462 5,992,286 3,414,636 5,229,910
BB ZEE (K15E22(b)) Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— &R F 1 — Individually assessed (768) (1,608) (620) (620)
3,689,694 5,990,678 3,414,016 5,229,290
153,872,296 132,531,544 138,604,532 116,349,957
BEFEREBFHEAF Included in loans and advances to
B customers are:
E5ZE Trade bills 9,287,362 8,610,825 9,287,362 8,610,825
B 2R (BT 5E22(b)) Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— 4R A A - Collectively assessed (2,181) (854) (2,181) (854)
9,285,181 8,609,971 9,285,181 8,609,971

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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22 BEFERRBIAR

HAbfRE (&

(b) FFERRBREHMGRBRMEEFNEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(b)

Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts

K%
The Group
2014 2013
@RI GREFE [ERFHE &AM
Individually Collectively #%  Individually  Collectively k]
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT BE¥TR B¥%Tr  E%Tr AT BETn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MW1B18 At 1 January 162,528 315,055 477,583 266,964 280,985 547,949
il e LT Impairment losses charged to
WEBREE3) the income statement (note 13) 156,463 260,333 416,796 90,960 135,531 226,491
TG ROIEm Impairment losses released to
WEEEE3) the income statement (note 13) (51,197)  (184,742)  (235,939) (54,286) (87,849)  (142,135)
paski=E ] Amounts written off (120,768) (21,982) (142,750) (150,763) (18,388) (169,151)
WEAFEE D i Recoveries of loans and advances
BERRBR written off in previous years 21,600 5,000 26,600 14,481 4776 19,257
EFREER Unwinding of discount on loan
35 B (P sra) impairment losses (note 4) (3,978) - (3,978) (4,828) - (4,828)
M12H318 At 31 December 164,648 373,664 538,312 162,528 315,055 477,583
MeR A (P EF2()) Deducted from (note 22(a));
ZEETREBR Loans and advances to customers 163,880 371,483 535,363 160,920 314,201 475,121
HindRE Other accounts 768 - 768 1,608 - 1,608
Z25EE Trade bills - 2,181 2,181 - 854 854
164,648 373,664 538,312 162,528 315,055 477,583
—ZT—-NFR

Annual Report 2014

097



098

B TSR MY

22 BEFERRBRKREMKRE (&

(b) BEFERRBRREMRBBREEGENED (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(b)

(continued)

Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts (continued)

AT
The Bank
2014 2013
ARIFFE A [ERIEEL AR
Individually Collectively #@%  Individually  Collectively ok
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT BT BT BETT A¥%Tr BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MW A18 At 1 January 136,316 309,877 446,193 226,584 275,357 501,941
TEWERIIZH Impairment losses charged to
REER the income statement 86,719 243,210 329,929 89,280 133,934 223,214
W E R E R Impairment losses released to
REEE the income statement (50,045)  (180,084)  (230,129) (48:879) (85593)  (134472)
REHEEE Amounts written off (120,768)  (21,982)  (142,750)  (142,330) (18388)  (160,718)
WEILAFEE HEN Recoveries of loans and advances
ERRBR written off in previous years 21,446 4,762 26,208 14,285 4,567 18,852
BXREER Unwinding of discount on loan
735 [0 B impairment losses (1,729) - (1,729) (2,624) - (2,624)
B X R H A AR Fxchange and other adjustments - - - - - -
M12H318 At 31 December 71,939 355,783 427,722 136,316 309,877 446,193
M B (F3E22()) Deducted from (note 22(a)):
EEERRER Loans and advances to customers 71,319 353,602 424,921 135,696 309,023 444,719
HifRE Other accounts 620 - 620 620 - 620
Z5E8 Trade bills - 2,181 2,181 - 854 854
71,939 355,783 427,722 136,316 309,877 446,193

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 BEFERREBRRHMIRE (& 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(0 BROTEIHNEFERREX () Loansand advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
AR BETEETHN ST EREEESH The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
ERR ([€ER])) FIEANBERERE definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA").

:j:ll o
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
EFERR HEEF RBFEIK HERFE
BRME  ERRBX BRBE  BRRBR
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans

and advances and advances andadvances and advances

to customers  to customers to customers to customers

BT BT T BT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
Iges Industrial, commercial and financial
I EX - Property development 5,594,282 - 15,227 -
—MERE - Property investment 17,016,206 11,601 14,074,440 1,375
— R - Financial concerns 8,429,777 - 4,073,785 -
—RERLL — Stockbrokers 771,179 - 255,937 -
—RERTER ~ Wholesale and retail trade 16,727,330 3,048 13,762,091 4,353
—HEE - Manufacturing 7,167,172 118,503 5,843,972 51,344
— B B S — Transport and transport equipment 2,163,895 196 2,252,707 218
—IRETEE) — Recreational activities 273,556 - 271,979 -
— BB ~ Information technology 15,202 - 882,728 -
—HAl - Others 4,663,393 2,191 2,272,510 -
fEA Individuals
-BEIEERERE — Loans for the purchase of flats
HE - TRAAEER under the Home Ownership
2EEEE IR Scheme, Private Sector
[HEEHREE Participation Scheme and
NEFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 10,756 - 17,790 -
—BEHEMTEYE Loans for the purchase of
HER other residential properties 11,296,562 4,796 10,254,515 6,137
—EAREX - Credit card advances 357,418 297 318,683 435
—HAl - Others 6,830,531 7,638 5,853,436 7,127
ERAEFAN Gross loans and advances for
BRI EE use in Hong Kong 81,317,259 148,270 60,149,300 70,989
BH5/E Trade finance 15,691,063 150,865 15,489,383 197,296
EBBEIMERMN Gross loans and advances for
BERRBESE use outside Hong Kong 53,711,824 412,503 51,377,658 138,180
BERERRBSEE Gross loans and advances to customers 150,720,146 711,638 127,016,841 406,465
—ZmER (09
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 BEFERREBRRHMIRE (& 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

() RITEIMNEFERRBR (&) () Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

(continued)
17
The Bank
2014 2013

EFERR BEEF EFERR HEZF

BRME  ERXRBX Hem  ERREBR

Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans

and advances
to customers

and advances
to customers

and advances
to customers

and advances
to customers

BET T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TrESE Industrial, commercial and financial
— YRR - Property development 5,594,282 - 15,227 -
—WERE — Property investment 15,692,420 11,601 12,638,290 1,375
—SmhE - Financial concerns 8,429,777 - 4,073,785 -
—RREL - Stockbrokers 771,179 - 255,937 -
—HWBLTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 16,727,210 3,048 13,761,940 4,353
— Bl - Manufacturing 7,167,172 118,503 5,843,972 51,344
— @B BRI R ~ Transport and transport equipment 2,157,274 196 2,245,632 218
—IREEE - Recreational activities 273,556 - 271,979 -
—EHEE - Information technology 15,202 - 882,728 -
—HAl - Others 4,661,343 2,191 2,270,521 -
EPN Individuals
-BEIEEBARE — Loans for the purchase of flats
HE ] [RAAEER under the Home Ownership
LEEEE IR Scheme, Private Sector
[fHEEEEE Participation Scheme and
HEFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 10,756 - 17,790 -
—-BEHEMEEDE — Loans for the purchase of
MEZ other residential properties 7,608,638 4,796 6,971,935 4,809
—ERARBM ~ Credit card advances 357,418 297 318,683 435
—Eftb - Others 5,681,912 7,638 4,561,431 7,127
EEBER Gross loans and advances for
BR KRB EE use in Hong Kong 75,148,139 148,270 54,129,850 69,661
EH5RE Trade finance 15,691,063 150,865 15,489,383 197,296
EEEAIME AR Gross loans and advances for
BER R BB use outside Hong Kong 44,778,416 45,000 41,947,007 26,523
EEER R ERE Gross loans and advances to customers 135,617,618 344,135 111,566,240 293,480

100] RERIT (EIR) BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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22 BEFERRBRRAEMIRIER (&

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)
REEZEFERRBR (d) Impaired loans and advances to customers
REE AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BEET T BT T BET T T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BERFEDR M Gross impaired loans and advances
IR AREE to customers 711,638 406,465 344,135 293,480
BB Impairment allowances
— AR - Individually assessed (163,880) (160,920) (71,319) (135,696)
547,758 245,545 272,816 157,784
WEER LB Gross impaired loans and advances
HEFERR as a % of total loans and advances to
BRBENEHE customers 0.47% 0.32% 0.25% 0.26%

REERLBRET2REENEAREDN
EERE  AMEERIBEFEHER -

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

KERFEARELEECTEARAER KA
THELERLBRMFERMROTER
B 1E & 78 472,737,000 I 7 218,259,000
7T (20134 7 #202,649,0007T K & ¥
115,029,0007T) ° s W F mEZRF EK
PAEYMERBETMEAEBMNR ST RA
W o

BMEHERSHARENNREFE
EPEFRLBFREHERENENABRE
MEREBNY BNRENEBEEFPNAE
REBOIREFER - ELANNKYEEH
—RAHSE20F - HIRAIRBIRREER
ANEEHEBEE - KREHERDHINFA
PN RERENRERELERENT

(e)

Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such
loans and advances of HK$472,737,000 and HK$218,259,000 (2013:
HK$202,649,000 and HK$115,029,000) of the Group and the Bank,
respectively. This collateral mainly comprised mortgage interest over
residential or commercial properties and cash with the Group.

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor
vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance
leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of five to 20
years, with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value.
The total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end
are as follows:

—E-FR
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 EFERRBRREMIRE (& 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
() MEMERSHNRENNRETE (&) (e) Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
(continued)
KEE
The Group
2014 2013
RIEHEE REHE REHE REHE
TREE TR IR E B
Present value Total Present value Total
of the minimum minimum  of the minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments  lease payments
BT BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
TFR Within 1 year 147,821 168,431 175,141 200,370
1254 After 1 year but within 5 years 199,924 233,849 242,396 285,959
518 After 5 years 352,007 396,056 467,504 530,197
699,752 798,336 885,041 1,016,526
TRE L Impairment allowances:
— @RI E - Individually assessed (7,088) (3,569)
— AT - Collectively assessed (1,429) (510)
BMERE KD HBITH Net investment in finance leases and
AHRIREFE hire purchase contracts 691,235 880,962
T
The Bank
2014 2013
REHE REHE REMHE REME
ARRE IEE 6L R E SES
Present value Total Present value Total
of the minimum minimum  of the minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
19N Within 1 year 147,348 167,805 174,679 199,744
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 197,924 231,346 240,442 283,457
5E1% After 5 years 347,859 391,427 462,845 524,943
693,131 790,578 877,966 1,008,144
B ZER Impairment allowances:
— &Rz A - Individually assessed (7,088) (3,569)
— 253, - Collectively assessed (1,429) (510)
BhEEE Ko T Net investment in finance leases and
ARG EFEE hire purchase contracts 684,614 873,887

102 HIERTT (EIR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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23 AHEERESH

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Available-for-sale securities

AEH RKIT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB NFRE Certificates of deposit held 4,104,439 6,140,890 4,104,439 6,140,890
BEEES Debt securities 14,217,767 11,231,492 12,596,863 10,208,797
Bl & 5 (B IR IME Treasury bills (including
H4ZE) Exchange Fund Bills) 8,106,952 4,213,637 8,106,952 4,213,637
TR FE S Equity securities 84,222 75,762 84,222 75,762
26,513,380 21,661,781 24,892,476 20,639,086
PAETEB B BITHELNT ¢ Issued by:
BT Sovereigns 8,239,847 4,444,409 8,114,312 4,444,409
WITREM S BhILE Banks and other financial institutions 9,615,782 11,475,530 8,120,412 10,452,835
1% Corporate entities 8,595,459 5,741,842 8,595,460 5,741,842
N Public entities 62,292 - 62,292 -
26,513,380 21,661,781 24,892,476 20,639,086
MU B AT Analysed by place of listing:
REEBLT Listed in Hong Kong 2,385,545 77,144 2,385,545 77,144
REEAIMDE T Listed outside Hong Kong 1,214,469 134,165 1,214,469 134,165
JEET Unlisted 22,913,366 21,450,472 21,292,462 20,427,777
26,513,380 21,584,637 24,892,476 20,639,086
&R B E & E 5 Fair value of individually impaired
AREERFE) debt securities (Note) 96,761 211,309 96,761 211,309
MsE - Note:

R2013F - AEEEEBDRTHAEBHEE
WREESESNEEDEAMRRERKL - WE
BmiEF TURR - tAZRIRARRTED
MISERRETEEMNE TR R - BRE
Z2013FN2ANBELEFE  AEEF-BLHEE
35608 MR EEMFEEBERTERRBRE - I
R ABEERK o R20144F -
REBHEH L ERELEE 19108 T2 BAER
BERREERAER - BE2014F 128318 1EF
& AEEDR AR EE SRR GE B R

B2

R B BT 5

securities of the Group at 31 December 2014.

In 2013, the Group's management decided to provide an impairment loss
to the profit or loss on the carrying values of two debt securities held by the
Group, in consideration of the prolonged underperformance in their market
prices and their entities’ declining profit outlook. As a result, an investment
revaluation reserve deficit of approximately HK$35.6 million was transferred
and recognised as an impairment loss in the income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2013. In 2014, substantial amounts of the two impaired
debt securities were disposed of and an impairment loss of approximately
HKS$19.17 million was released to the income statement accordingly. No
individually assessed impairment allowances were newly made for any of debt

—B-mEH
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24 FEWHIE A BRIE 24 Amounts due from subsidiaries
KT
The Bank

2014 2013
BETT BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000

Be RERTREM Cash and balances with banks and
DRIMIER ST other financial institutions 934,949 827,605

EIRTT R H A Placements with banks and

SRIMEFR other financial institutions 8,196,606 8,142,514

WEBRRER R Loans and advances to subsidiaries
B E A ERTA and other accounts 444,550 99,593
9,576,105 9,069,712

104] RIERIT (EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25 MBATRE 25 Investments in subsidiaries
1T
The Bank
2014 2013
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE MR (RAASARR) Unlisted shares, at cost 1,275,000 1,274,990

MR2014F12831H » T HEAREBMNZE
i EENABEEATENETENELRT
18 - BRIER AR - BRIFTERMDEERH

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries
at 31 December 2014 which materially affect the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

REER - otherwise stated.
BFER®D
AR EEE BAE ERITRBRERAE
NGRS Place of incorporation/ % of FEEKR Issued and
Name of company operation shares held  Principal activities paid-up capital
BB AR LA B 100% ESSEE] BT
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Property holding HKS2
PERITER(PE)ER AR REARKEMBE(HE])  100% RIT AR#1,000,000,0007T
(T ERITEIR (R ED) 1)
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited  People’s Republic of China Banking RMB1,000,000,000
(“CBI (China)") (“Mainland China")
RERBRBER AR B 100% REREE 4D 7 #5,000,0007T
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
CKWB-SN Limited MEHs &% 100% BITREZENRE E8 17T
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of structured USST
notes and investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited HEeHS BE 100% BITRERE EST
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of subordinated ~ US$1
notes
BEREAMBARAT e 100% HEEE 7&#200,000,0007C
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
BEREARIT(REA)BRARF] N 100% RIBABRK B #5,0007T
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited
RERTUSFE)BRAA B 100% B 5 #3,000,0007T
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited Hong Kong Trustee services HK$3,000,000
BEEEERLDA B 100% RIBRE BT
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Mortgage financing HKS2

—E-FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 YIEKRRE 26 Property and equipment
@ =*KE (@) The Group
B BE
HERZE
BREWE Hehyp Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and Fiak-cl
properties premises equipment Total
BT BT EEETIT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA LA : Cost or valuation:
FR2014F1A1H At 1 January 2014 180,056 632,009 1,158,739 1,970,804
40 Additions - - 90,400 90,400
HeE Disposals - - (20,595) (20,595)
BHAH% Surplus on revaluation 2,842 - - 2,842
PE 5 % Exchange adjustments - - (3,761) (3,761)
2014%12831H At 31 December 2014 182,898 632,009 1,224,783 2,039,690
FREEMNRAE The analysis of cost or valuation of
HEIHFOT : the above assets is as follows:
D@ Cost - 614,412 1,224,783 1,839,195
&E Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20144 -2014 182,898 - - 182,898
182,898 632,009 1,224,783 2,039,690
F2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 238,348 641,814 1,024,814 1,904,976
N Additions - - 176,028 176,028
HeE Disposals (60,466) (9,805) (41,849) (112,120)
BHEER Surplus on revaluation 2,174 - - 2,174
D 35, 3 B Exchange adjustments - - (254) (254)
720136 12A318 At 31 December 2013 180,056 632,009 1,158,739 1,970,804
L EENKARGEE The analysis of cost or valuation of
T the above assets is as follows:
AR Cost - 614,412 1,158,739 1,773,151
&E Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20134 -2013 180,056 - - 180,056
180,056 632,009 1,158,739 1,970,804
2IHIFE - Accumulated depreciation:
F2014F1A1H At 1 January 2014 - 278,471 792,653 1,071,124
REZHEMFI1(D) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,619 119,009 132,628
A & M [ 5 Written back on disposals - - (20,136) (20,136)
D 5, 5 B Exchange adjustments - - (2,859) (2,859)
A2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 - 292,090 888,667 1,180,757
20131 A1H At 1 January 2013 - 271,505 724,518 996,023
RNEZIE(MEE11(0))  Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,694 102,564 116,258
A H £ T (o8 Written back on disposals - (6,728) (35,011) (41,739)
P 5, B Exchange adjustments - - 582 582
F2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013 - 278,471 792,653 1,071,124
BREAHE Net book value:
#2014%12831H At 31 December 2014 182,898 339,919 336,116 858,933
F20139F12H31H At 31 December 2013 180,056 353,538 366,086 899,680

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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26 MIERRE (E) 26 Property and equipment (continued)

Annual Report 2014

(b) AT (b) The Bank
&M BE
HERKZE
REYHE Hibypz Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and e
properties premises equipment Total
BT IT BT IT BT BT IT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
RS GE : Cost or valuation:
F2014F1 A1 At 1 January 2014 148,114 632,009 1,090,926 1,871,049
40 Additions - - 83,875 83,875
HeE Disposals - - (20,456) (20,456)
BHAH Surplus on revaluation 3,599 - - 3,599
D 35, 5 B Exchange adjustments - - (2,113) (2,113)
A2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 151,713 632,009 1,152,232 1,935,954
LREEMNRAE The analysis of cost or valuation of
HEIFOT : the above assets is as follows:
D@ Cost - 614,412 1,152,232 1,766,644
HE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20144 -2014 151,713 - - 151,713
151,713 632,009 1,152,232 1,935,954
2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 207,190 641,814 963,520 1,812,524
N Additions - - 170,715 170,715
HE Disposals (60,466) (9,805) (41,479) (111,750)
EhAH Surplus on revaluation 1,390 - - 1,390
D 5, 5 B Exchange adjustments - - (1,830) (1,830)
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 148,114 632,009 1,090,926 1,871,049
EREENRAREE The analysis of cost or valuation of
SHWMTE the above assets is as follows:
D& Cost - 614,412 1,090,926 1,705,338
(EXED Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20134 -2013 148,114 - - 148,114
148,114 632,009 1,090,926 1,871,049
ZETIE - Accumulated depreciation:
F2014F1 A1 At 1 January 2014 - 278,471 737,811 1,016,282
KEFHE Charge for the year - 13,619 113,060 126,679
& 1M [ %8 Written back on disposals - - (19,939) (19,939)
FE 5, 2 Exchange adjustments - - (1,479) (1,479)
A2014%12H831H At 31 December 2014 - 292,090 829,453 1,121,543
7201361 718 At 1 January 2013 - 271,505 676,964 948,469
REEFITE Charge for the year - 13,694 96,209 109,903
H € i [o] 8¢ Written back on disposals - (6,728) (34,644) (41,372)
PE H % Exchange adjustments - - (718) (718)
201312 A831H At 31 December 2013 - 278,471 737,811 1,016,282
BREFE : Net book value:
A2014%12H831H At 31 December 2014 151,713 339,919 322,779 814,411
2013%F12A31H At 31 December 2013 148,114 353,538 353,115 854,767
—ET-MER |07
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Property and equipment (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s and
the Bank's investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the input used in the valuation technique as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets
for identical assets at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

Level 3 - Fair value measured using significant unobservable
inputs.

The Group

R2014F 128318 AL EEHE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using

R2014% IR HFE TEMH
128318 THEHRE ARENEE TEENEE
MAEE (1) (%211) (%3%4%)

Fairvalueat  Quoted pricesin  Significant other Significant

31 December active market  observable input unobservable input

2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

BETT BETT BETT BETT

REMAREETE Recurring fair value measurement HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REME Investment properties

-& - Held in Hong Kong 145,700 - - 145,700

—EENIME - Held outside Hong Kong 37,198 - - 37,198

182,898 - - 182,898

108] hIERIT(EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

(i) Fairvalue hierarchy (continued)

T&HE
The Group

R2013F12A31 AR A BEE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2013 using

R2013F Ve Hinx 2 FEmFE
12A31H 5 R(E ABRENEIE BRI
NAEE (B14) (%2) (#38)
Fairvalueat  Quoted pricesin  Significant other Significant
31 December active market  observable input unobservable input
2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BT BETT BT BT
REMANEETE Recurring fair value measurement HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REYHE Investment properties
— & - Held in Hong Kong 142,300 - - 142,300
—EEHIME - Held outside Hong Kong 37,756 - - 37,756
180,056 - - 180,056
X7
The Bank
R2014512A31BAABEHE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using
R2014%F mEE HTE TEMmH*
12A31H THHRE TREENYE TRENHE
ANREETE (E14%) (5824%) (%834%)
Fairvalueat Quoted pricesin  Significant other Significant

31 December

active market

observable input

unobservable input

2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

BETR BETR BET T BETR

REMAAEEE Recurring fair value measurement HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RENE Investment properties

&R - Held in Hong Kong 145,700 - - 145,700

— BB UM R - Held outside Hong Kong 6,013 - - 6,013

151,713 - - 151,713

—E—[NFER

Annual Report 2014
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26 MIERRE (E) 26 Property and equipment (continued)
(0 REWEAABEE (&) (c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)
() B2 EEER () () Fairvalue hierarchy (continued)
T
The Bank

R2013F12A31 AR A BEE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2013 using

20136 TR HipxZ2 TEMHE
12A318 M5 R(E ERNHE TRENEE
DAEEHE (E18) (F248) ($38)
Fairvalueat  Quoted pricesin  Significant other Significant
31 December active market  observable input unobservable input
2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BB BT BB BB
REMAAEEHE Recurring fair value measurement HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REYE Investment properties
— & - Held in Hong Kong 142,300 - - 142,300
— BB NIMEE - Held outside Hong Kong 5814 - - 5814
148,114 - - 148,114
H E2014F M2013F 128318 + F£F1 During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
MANE 2R 2 I EmER RORBRES were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
REASELH -  XEEBREENR or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
HFHARER AR BEERARERNE between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
Ao reporting period in which they occur.
R2014F12831H  AEBEREZR All investment properties of the Group and the Bank were
BHBVNEMITEMANEERATT revalued and assessed by the management of the Group at
MIREYEE-RE - WEMHEBEBEMN 31 December 2014 with reference to the property valuation
AAMBEEAEERFTE(EEY report conducted by an independent firm of surveyors. The
EMELER)D) B13F [ R AEBETE] basis of the property valuation was market value, which is
HARBENTE FHEAEERAK consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, Fair
ITHIE B %D Bl A&7 2,842,0007T value measurement. The revaluation surpluses of HK$2,842,000
K 7 #53,599,0007T (20136 + ANEBE K and HK$3,599,000 were recognised by the Group and the
RATER1S B 6478 #52,174,0000T K 78 #5 Bank, respectively (2013: HK$2,174,000 and HK$1,390,000 were
1,390,0007T) I E 9 BlFt AREE KA recognised by the Group and the Bank respectively) and have
THER R A o been credited to the income statement.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)
(i) Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy
The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3
fair value measurements are as follows:

rEHE 1T
The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

BET T BT T BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

118 At 1 January 180,056 238,348 148,114 207,190
HE Disposals - (60,466) - (60,466)
N BEERAE Fair value adjustment 2,842 2,174 3,599 1,390
MW12831H At 31 December 182,898 180,056 151,713 148,114

FEIERA DS (B BAH

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

HEERER SERI IR EUR & E
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
REME IS BUE MELENHE (P8 -15% Z=15%
Investment properties Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on quality of properties -15% to 15%

EEBXBENIMERNRED RN
RABEIRAMSLEEEE - A
S2ESNBANENT TS REEE
RAERE  HEUTHHEEER  ®
MAFABRNEE N ATYREENEE
TR

The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's or
the Bank's properties compared to the recent sales.

—E-FR
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(d) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and

other premises is as follows:

AEH RKIT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
HE Leasehold
Bk Held in Hong Kong
—KRHEFRE - Long-term leases 80,456 79,426 80,456 79,426
— S - Medium-term leases 405,163 416,412 405,163 416,412
BB LM R Held outside Hong Kong
—HHAE - Medium-term leases 37,198 37,756 6,013 5814
522,817 533,594 491,632 501,652

REWMEEENHR S WA LT BB
7,340,0007T (20134F : ##56,523,0007T) ©

R2014F 8 I EYE L EEE (2013F -
H1£634,0007T) ©

AEBEATETEMDESNBAEFEE
TEM - MRELYERUKRAFBFTINE
AR AEERATTR2014F12831BMHE
fth 49 3¢ B 5B JE /5 78 165,045,0007T (2013
& B#5110,0007T) °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$7,340,000 (2013: HK$6,523,000).

During the year, the loss on disposal of investment properties
amounted to HKSNIl (2013: HK$634,000).

Some of the other premises of the Group and the Bank were revalued
in previous years. The net book value of other premises of the Group
and the Bank at 31 December 2014 would have been HK$5,045,000
(2013: HKS5,110,000) had they been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(e) Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.

The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with

an option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms

are renegotiated.

The Group's and the Bank’s total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting

properties are receivable as follows:

KEE AT

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1R Within 1 year 7,552 6,709 5,756 4,866
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 3,588 7,015 3,289 4,865
11,140 13,724 9,045 9,731

27 RTREMEMBBNERRER

27 Deposits and balances of banks and other financial

institutions
KEE RKIT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BET T BRI T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
WITOTERNGETF Deposits and balances from banks 4,129,401 7,522,382 4,129,401 7,239,589
28 BFEXR 28 Deposits from customers
FEE 17
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEARAERERTER Demand deposits and current deposits 17,921,958 15,669,859 17,093,153 14,595,898
RERFR Savings deposits 31,157,185 26,396,880 31,107,886 26,321,343
TEHA - BDHEA K 5E HA Time, call and
BAFER notice deposits 139,850,416 112,592,227 134,094,929 104,287,248
188,929,559 154,658,966 182,295,968 145,204,489
—E—[NFER
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29

30

31

(a)

REAREE 29 Trading liabilities
AEH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
PTET AR Negative fair value of
BRAREEMIE450))  derivatives (note 45(b)) 2,974,807 1,568,640 2,932,304 1,540,175
ERITENFE 30 Certificates of deposit issued
AEBRARLT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
k= HAE Non-trading 14,156,976 16,175,173
B ARR R R EH 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position
BBMRRRATOAEHIES : (@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position
represents:
AEH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT IT BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
NEEEFBNGTEEE  Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
(FiEE14(2)) for the year (note 14(a)) 495,234 374,852 473,772 351,171
SN AREY Provisional Profits Tax paid (372,760) (223,244) (349,083) (207,602)
122,474 151,608 124,689 143,569
YN TR EE Provision for overseas taxation 37,702 27,780 32,921 19,878
160,176 179,388 157,610 163,447
Hepo: Of which:
AU el F I8 Tax recoverable (2,775) (6) - -
ZN HR R 18 Current taxation 162,951 179,394 157,610 163,447
160,176 179,388 157,610 163,447

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BMEMRR KRR AEHR (&) 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)
CRIANELEHREEREE (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
ERMBR A RERNELTRIE (BE),/ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
BEMNEERAFEANESHOT statement of financial position and the movements during the year
are as follows:
r&H
The Group
RERHE EXRER It ERS
BBEENE REER EftRE
Depreciation ~ Impairment ~ ¥JEEMER Revaluation
allowances in allowances Revaluation adjustments
excess of related forloans  adjustments for available- PERE Hit ek
depreciation  and advances  for properties  for-sale securities Tax losses Others Total
BB BB BB BB BB BBTT BB
EEHBERE Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R2014F1818 At 1January 2014 34,013 (44,897) 1,579 (2,823) - (18,366) (30,494)
EARE RN,/ Charged/(credited) to income
() (FiE14() statement (note 14(a) 373 (18,148) Iy - - (621) (18,354)
FERDE Charged to reserves - - - 21,094 - - 21,094
5 R % Exchange and other adjustments (123) - - - - 89 (34)
®2014%128318 At 31 December 2014 34,263 (63,045) 1,621 18,271 - (18,898) (27,788)
H013E1A1H At 1 January 2013 23562 (42,215) 2351 9351 (757) (19,575) (27.283)
BANERAHE/ Charged/(credited) to income
(=) (R 14() statement (note 14(a) 10529 (2682) 149 - 745 129 10037
FEAH Credited to reserves - - (921) (12174 - - (13,099)
5 R A% Exchange and other adjustments (78) - - - 12 (87) (153)
M013E12 /31 At 31 December 2013 34013 (44.897) 1579 (2823) - (18366) (30,494)
—Z—FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 BIBARRREAATHEER (&) 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)
(b) ERINECEHBEEERERE () (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)
A7
The Bank
RESHE EXRER It ERS
BBEENE REER EftRE
Depreciation ~ Impairment ~ ¥JEEMER Revaluation
allowances in allowances Revaluation adjustments
excess of related forloans  adjustments for available- PERE Hit ek
depreciation  and advances  for properties  for-sale securities Tax losses Others Total
BB BBTT BB BB BB BBTT BB
BERBERE Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
®2014E181A At 1January 2014 35,679 (43,604) 11 4,478 - (14,992) (18,428)
LelERR Charged/(credited) to
i/ (mE) income statement 439 (11,005) - - - 6,009 (4,557)
FERDE Charged to reserves - - - 11,327 - - 11,327
BN E AR Exchange and other adjustments (108) - - - - - (108)
®2014%128318 At 31 December 2014 36,010 (54,609) 1" 15,805 - (8,983) (11,766)
M013E1A1H At 1 January 2013 26,257 (40812) 932 10,567 (757) (17,284) (21,097)
FalaEn Charged/(credited) to
s/ (mE) income statement 9,500 (279) - - 745 229 9,747
AL 6] Credited to reserves - - (921) (6,089) - - (7,010)
5 R A% Exchange and other adjustments (78) - - - 12 ) (68)
M013E12 /31 At 31 December 2013 35679 (43,604) 11 4478 - (14.992) (18428)
KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
TE B TR R 3R FERR Y Net deferred tax assets recognised on
FIRLERIRE E the statement of financial position (32,115) (42,618) (14,424) (28,490)
FEB IS AR R R AR Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
SRIEEFIIE A (E on the statement of financial position 4,327 12,124 2,658 10,062
(27,788) (30,494) (11,766) (18,428)

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BMEMRR KRR AEHR (&) 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)
RERWELEBBREE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
BRARKRAIBESBEANE BT S e The Group and the Bank have not recognised deferred tax assets in
bR N AR A BETE - ARE AT respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$2,653,000 (2013: HK$2,682,000)
RERRFRIBFBENRERBEES A and Nil (2013: Nil), respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable
75 #2,653,0007T (20134F 7 #2,682,0007T) profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
K& 07T (20134 « B HOTL) © iRIRIR relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
MRS - EEHRIBEELB A - current tax legislation.
ERTEEES 32 Debt securities issued
AEBERAKRT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT IT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EXZU D BHITERES Non-trading debt securities issued - 1,151,253
Ht&E 33 Other liabilities
rEH 9T
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEH MG mEEEE ltems in the course of transmission
ERTEE to other financial institutions 70,266 - 70,266 -
FERT N Eo b A AR IE Accruals and other payables 7,706,827 9,206,405 7,201,235 8,180,087
7,777,093 9,206,405 7,271,501 8,180,087
FET B D B FRIE 34 Amounts due to subsidiaries
4T
The Bank
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HiBE Other liabilities 32,525 32,515
SRIT R H A& BB Deposits and balances from banks
R EET and other financial institutions 75,611 66,061
BEER Deposits from customers 160,344 138,247
268,480 236,823
—ZT—-NFR

Annual Report 2014

117



118|

B TSR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 BRER 35 Loan capital
AEBERAKT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERE6875%  EEETT Subordinated notes with
500,000,0007C Ky 1% 18 = 4% * US$500 million of 6.875% * 4,150,696 4,098,142
FBE&EE3875% @ EIEETT Subordinated notes with
300,000,0007T K14 (& 2 4E** US$300 million of 3.875% ** 2,291,268 2,277,706
F B & AE6.000%  EEZETT Subordinated notes with
300,000,000 CHI B EE 4 USS$300 million of 6.000% *** 2,312,444 2,281,704
8,754,408 8,657,552

*%

2010F6 3248 + RITIRIBEU EPEARE
AT 8 K 7201056 A B /9 38 & 5@ 1
%% 17 M {E 3 7£500,000,0007C (55 & 7
3,888,900,0007T) * # 1T F B K £6.875%H)
BERE BLEBETIIEIZFAER
AR T WHER202066 248 FEA o

20129F9R278 » RITIRIBU EPHE
BT 8 K 7A20126F8 A B /Y B & i 1R
% 17 ™ {E 3 J£300,000,0007T (& 76 ¥
2,326,100,0007T) K& ERE - FHITEESF
BEA3875% @ BFFIREBE2017F9H28
Hit BERATERLERTEERZE -
AIHEFF R AEREFRSFRERGSZE
BERNN3.250%5F F| K o 5 L BRI
RGBR AR LM » Wi 202299728
HE|H -

2013F1MA78 » RITREBEU EHPEHE
B RR2013F 10 B H B ESEB X
% 17 M B 3 JT300,000,0007T (5 & 7 ¥
2,325,800,0007T) KB ERE - ZEERRK
FE(EERBE=) BN _FRELERK - 18
EEEOEEF A EER6000% - F¥F
KB ZE2019F5878 1t HEEBARABITE
BRI - RENEEFEGREE RS
EBEEFE B R IN4718%F R EHE
Al BUERERSBRHREZFARA
AL - W#ER202455 A7BRIHA -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

*%

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the Programme”)
issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular issued in June
2010, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 24 June 2010 with a face
value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,888.9 million). The notes
bear an interest rate of 6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually. The
notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and mature on 24 June 2020.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in August
2012, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 27 September 2012 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,326.1 million). The
notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.875% per annum, payable semi-
annually until 28 September 2017, and thereafter fixed at an interest
rate of the prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 3.250% per
annum if the notes are not redeemed on or before the call date at the
option of the Bank. The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and mature on 28 September 2022.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in October
2013, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 7 November 2013 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,325.8 million) and
which qualified as Basel Ill-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes bear
interest at a fixed rate of 6.000% per annum, payable semi-annually until
7 May 2019, and thereafter fixed at the interest rate of the prevailing
five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 4.718% per annum if the notes
are not redeemed on the call date. The notes are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and mature on 7 May 2024.
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36 BEXRKf#E 36 Capital and reserves
(@) K& (@) Share capital
() HEK () Ordinary shares
2014%12H31H 2013412 A31H
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
BAZE BT T &N 2= BT IT
No. of shares HK$’000  No. of shares HKS$'000
EERA Authorised:
SREESE TR 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares TEA TEA
3R A% 8,000,000,000/% of HKS1 each N/A N/A  8,000,000,000 8,000,000
EETR Ordinary shares, issued
BREZER and fully paid:
MH1A18 At 1 January 7,283,341,176 7,283,341 7,283,341,176 7,283,341
R2014F3A38 1B Transition to no-par value
ZEEESE regime on 3 March 2014 - 282,930 - -
M12A831H At 31 December 7,283,341,176 7,566,271 7,283,341,176 7,283,341

(if)

M2013F128318B A E B KX A
8,000,000,0000% & Az E (B & 17T 89 &
BT o AT - 201493838 £ HY
EB (R FHED) (F622F) BB
DEERA] A [ZREE] O -
BAE A BB CRRHEDI) (622F)
B 32118837460 21 1 A9 38R M 16 S
ERBREEEMAENEN—IH9 &
Dm EERR2014F3A3HEMERE H
HEARDERABARITRAN—F D - &
LS IFEHEBITRANEBENE
AR HERELETE o

BRRSA NG RPN EIRA K
B MERRATTHEF LIRER—
ENHTARE - EEBERYBRFE
N ZFERAITORIBEE

HIAETRIRR (5
PR20145F12A31H BN - RITW R A
BRI o

At 31 December 2013, 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares, with
par value of $1 each, were authorised for issue. Under the

new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), effective 3

March 2014, the concepts of “authorised share capital” and “par

value” no longer exist. As part of the transition to the no-par

value regime, the amount standing to the credit of the share

premium account on 3 March 2014 has become part of the

Bank's share capital under the transitional provisions set out in

section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 622). These changes do not have impacts on

the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any

of the members.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends

as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per

share at the shareholders’ meetings of the Bank. All ordinary

shares rank equally with regard to the Bank's residual assets.

(i) Shares issued during the period

There was no share issuance during the year ended 31

December 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) RERBAMBOHRE (b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank
REBNGZEEED SEMINNEINEFR The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
HINEREBYURRZIINGERR TR each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
A o ANTTHYE B i AR AR EB D IR 1) JR FF 4% consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
HEERE BRI in the Bank’s individual components of equity between the beginning

and the end of the year are set out below:
Af
The Bank
BMERIR
n¥ & (HzE37)
EffitfE EfRE Additional
Bx  ROEE ERBE  -REE  Popety Investment REEE HELEE equity
Share Share  Capital  General revaluation revaluation  Retained Total  instruments AR
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves (note 37) Total equity
BRI RETT  A%Tn ABTn  AETn A%Tn A%Tn ATn AT ARt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
#014F1 518 At 1 January 2014 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 55 22,641 8066273 8,474,802 - 15,758,143
BENUENERES Changes in equity for 2014:
AR Profitfor the e - - - - - - 29m38 2973238 - 29m8
Eh2ENRGE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 56,852 - 56,852 - 56,852
TER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 56,852 2,973,238 3,030,090 - 3,030,090
BTEIN-RENES Issue of AT1 Capital Securities - - - - - - - - 2310168 2,310,168
THBI—RERFHZE  Distribution payment for AT!
Capital Securities - - - - - - - - (84,370)  (84,370)
RO4EIAIRERE Transition to no-par value regime
SEAEHE on 3 March 2014 282,930 (282,930) - - - - - (282,930) - -
EEREGA Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - (84370)  (84,370) 84370 -
H20145128318 At 31 December 2014 7,566,271 - 2,903 100,000 55 79,493 10,955,141 11,137,592 2,310,168 21,014,031
R13E1A1R At 1 January 2013 7,283 341 282930 2,903 100,000 4718 5345 6162428 6,606,435 - 13889776
HENBEMERRE): Changes in equity for 2013;
EENE Profitfor the year - - - - - - 18921 1898261 - 1898261
AHEENEES Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 921 (30815) - (29894) - (29894)
TEEREURES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 921 (30815) 1898201 1868367 - 1868367
REENEMERNGE Release of reserve upon disposal
of property - - - - (5,584) - 5,584 - - -
0138128318 At 31 December 2013 7,283,341 282930 2,903 100,000 55 20041 8066273 8474802 - 15758143

(0 BKE (c) Dividend
RITREE2014F K2013F12A31H ILFE No dividend was declared and paid during the year ended 31
RRABIRME - December 2014 (2013: Nil).

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(d) f#E
(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

HEREH

BB

MR2014F3 38 AT D mBERRME
FBZAEES (A UEN) (F32F) 5
48BIKFTE B8 - BRI BB (R RIE
By (55622F) KI R 115537167 51| &Y
B ST BRI REIRN2014F38
SHMEMNE A EH#REEXAERITR
A (Mt aE36()) B —# D o B201453
A3B#E  RRIRAKERAZINES
(RENEDI) (F622E) B o

B
BRI TR DK TR

— AR A1
—MRFEEBENRE S M — B K
R WHAI D IR TR

VB ZE RRI# 1
EXEZRFEREEEMARBRERIINE
BOPBRAMEENEL Z8 I
RIBM 20BN G ERREIE

YVRER R
MEERLREEEREME20MENE
SRR - WEPAI DR TIRE
ARRBEFNEE (RGP (F622
B)HNER BLRHETBERESER
) o

KEE
BREBHRBEERGEEERANH
HEERBFNRAFAABEED
W& RARH 20 PrE ) & 5T R B2
i

SEEBBNTE

REBEFEDEPIRE - PERITEE
(hE) FERESFORRENDE
B10%E R T RED K TR H)ATE B R
NE BEZAERKRLABEREER

R Z 50%H)7KF o

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(i

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Share premium

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium
account was governed by section 48B of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance with the
transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3
March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account has become part of the Bank's share capital
(see note 36(a)). The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is
governed by the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622).

Capital reserve
The capital reserve is not available for distribution to
shareholders.

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set out in note 2(i) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
constitute realised profits within the meaning of Part 6 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a non-
distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has reached
50% of its registered share capital.

—T-mEH
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(d)

(e)

REEEREN (&)

(viii) ETE —ARFE
BEBERERITER  RERTEHE
(FE) JREETE —MEHE - BBk
EFENMNEIE  EEERIER—
RREFE AR AR REREEELR
B2 IRV ZEREERRREELLE
BEHMBIREEM %:TE - AF R
LR EEERMEKED

(x) REG =T

REEBRBERITERL) AT E
EENRTE  NMBERERETS
HBBECHERREBLANE S XK
AREELEMNEREBRNREERKX
TR -REHACERE FENE
HEEEERBEFMANEITE - K204
F12A318  RE AP EEFEELE
Y BARETATRENSEA
7 #2,172,126,0007T (20134F © & ¥
1,816,253,0007T) © {8 A 1T 7Rk 2 B 2B
BHEER -

fRE R A 2R

MR2014F12H3318 - BIBBE BN E L
CRalgE) (F622F) MR TEIERTE -
AESIRTFTAITRENFEERERLSE
8,715,638,0007T (20134F © & #6,186,242,000
TL) ° LA LRI o R 89 4 7 %6 8,715,638,000
70 (2013%F © 7B #6,186,242,00070) 2 iR
15 Bt FE36(0)FT 3R &5 A 1T A9 (R B8 5 F) B
10,955,141,0007T (20134F = & #8 066,273,000
) ZENEBETERR S —MEERIK
BEYEHRERBHWE R LA RITEE
ETEE o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)

(viii) - Regulatory general reserve
Pursuant to the banking regulations of mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve through
a direct transfer from the current year's profit appropriation, as
determined based on the 1% of the total risk assets at the end
of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential loss
exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.

(ix)  Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2014, HK$2,172,126,000 (2013: HKS$1,816,253,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
was distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
consultation with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated
under the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), was HK$8,715,638,000 (2013: HK$6,186,242,000).
The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of
HKS$8,715,638,000 (2013: HKS6,186,242,000) and the Bank's retained
profits of HK$10,955,141,000 (2013: HK$8,066,273,000) as reported in
note 36(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves and the
exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment properties
and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Additional equity instruments

rEE
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
E{E300,000,0003E 7T HY Undated non-cumulative subordinated
KBTI R A BB ERFS capital securities with US$300 million* 2,310,168 -

* R IK 7220074512 A 9845 #92,000,000,0003F 7T
FEAERETE] (5251 &) MR20145F4 8
MR EERE - ATTR20145F4 8228
BIRE (BEBHE=) E{E300,000,000
E T (Z1E78 %2,313,470,0007C) H) Kk 48 7Y
JERFERETIN—REARFES ([N
BARFTS]) o BN —RERNFHIEE
TFEEEB K R201954 22 H & (ERR AT EE Bl
HEIRT - EEFFEKE7.250% ° & &R
BITEELRE  EEFHEASRE R SF S
EREERHFEEMFHN R 627%FTHF
—REFERT °

RIEER NG - BIN—RERE TFE
ANEARSWEIERFT DRMER (ZFE
FRIEAITHERHIREAERE) &
FEERTANERASRE - KRB FH4
A2BFNM0A2BIR¥EFE—IK o AT7H]
LABATRE  BIBEUE DR R E R 58
IN—ER  BEFEBIHNEERNELXRSE
HRE - &E2014F12A31BERAN DK
3% 3% 5 £10,875,0003 7T (F8 8 7
84,370,0007T) ©

38 {EERIKGFTE

AEBRE-HAAETHRRIERE ([
BIRETEND - Bt - ARBEAFLEERRE
BERF 2 10%0HK - LR EIZ—1E
R RETE  MERE RS ANEENH
BeRES - BREBEELEAHER - 1R
BEAES2HHFAIRR - AEENSH
1 B PR e AR (ER D 3R A RER
Mm&ERABEHFIBA—EBLNENES
ERZRINET B B MREHE -

Br T R RET &SN - RSB B2000F12 81
i h2E—-IARABESE - /ERA
KRR B RMHGEIEE - ARBEDRIE
iR Rt IR M F R B RO HEH] -

AEERN NEBERELEELAE
KK BB 876,137,0007T (20134 © & B
72,748,0007%) (BEE11@)) °

* Under a US$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the
Programme”) issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular
issued in April 2014, the Bank issued a Basel Ill compliant Undated
Non-Cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the
"AT1 Capital Securities”) on 22 April 2014 with a face value of US$300
million (equivalent to HK$2,313.47 million). The AT1 Capital Securities
are perpetual and bear a 7.250% coupon until the first call date on 22
April 2019. The coupon will be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital
Securities are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-
prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 5.627% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities confer
a right to receive non-cumulative distributions (each a Distribution) on
the principal amount (subject to adjustments following the occurrence
of a non-viability event as defined) from, and including, the issue date
at the applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrear on
22 April and 22 October each year. The Banks may, at its sole discretion,
elect to cancel the distribution payment or redeem the AT1 Capital
Securities, which are subject to prior written consent of the HKMA. A
Distribution payment of USD10,875,000 (equivalent to HK$84,370,000)
was paid during the year ended 31 December 2014.

38 Staff retirement scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
("the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund (“"MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme’s members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to
provide a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees.
Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$76,137,000

(2013: HKS72,748,000) (note 11(a)) to these schemes.
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40

Notes to the Financial Statements

RERAESEEER 39 Cash and cash equivalents
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BETT BT
() ZFEBLERERANRS (i) Components of cash and cash equivalents in
kBEEZEEEAR the consolidated cash flow statement
B4 MART - PRIET Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
NMEAM S RIEEN ST other financial institutions 20,676,200 12,621,484
TEIRTT » RARIRIT R HAD Placements with and advances to banks, central banks
ERBEBNTRRBS and other financial institutions with original maturity
(JRA3ME A AE)EY) within 3 months 35,173,698 27,382,234
BlES REFBREHRE Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held with
(R38R AEIE): original maturity within 3 months:
— At ERS ~ Available-for-sale securities 6,687,595 3,608,809
62,537,493 43,612,527
(i) BEAHBRRRNEIR (ii) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement
of financial position
iﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁk RRERTT Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
REMESEEENET other financial institutions 20,676,200 12,621,484
FEIRTT » RIBITREAM Placements with and advances to banks, central banks
SRBENER RSB and other financial institutions 43,893,840 46,089,324
BES KI5 E’JTMM : Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held:
— At EE - Available-for-sale securities 12,211,391 10,354,527
RAMBEARRRAREE Amounts shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position 76,781,431 69,065,335
B REEI A B EE A e EE Less: Amounts with an original maturity of over 3 months (14,243,938) (25,452,808)
RABRSREXRANRE R Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
HEZEAER cash flow statement 62,537,493 43,612,527

B E014F 123181 e kRE&FE
HBRNE BESIMNEEE KA TE RS A+
RIBTEEMEREBENRSETAEE
1,157,543,0007C (20134 = 7 #1,844,563,000

The balances of cash and cash equivalents included cash balances
with central banks and other financial institutions that are subject
to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
HKS$1,157,543,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$1,844,563,000).

TT) °
RERENEE 40 Assets pledged as security
AEBRAKLT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
A R Available-for-sale securities 85,299 85,291
BfsE - Note:

REEMNEERENEERER T XEERE
IBERHYEE TR

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the overseas
branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in the
United States.
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THERCBEE

HZE2014F 128318 » KEBEETIRITH
SRR T HEHEEEFNEER

& ([&i)) & ARBESFND

EEIHEW?‘;W o HE2014F 128310 © %1%
EUE IJE’MJQL A TIRIT R EM S B E
mr EFEIH e mMAEETEREDE

%ﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁé}, LA ETERN SRV EE o

RIEZ % - MR SHOEER AR HR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41

Assets subject to sale and repurchase transactions

At 31 December 2014, the Group had entered into repurchase
agreements (“the Agreements”) with certain banks or financial
institutions to sell available-for-sale securities which were subject to
the Agreements to repurchase these securities at the agreed dates
and prices. The consideration received under the Agreements was
reported as ‘Deposits and balances of banks and financial institutions’
at 31 December 2014. At 31 December 2014, no outstanding
transferred financial assets in which the Group has a continuing
involvement had been derecognised in their entirety.

According to the Agreements, there was no transfer of the legal
ownership of these securities to the counterparty banks during the
cover period. However, the Group was not allowed to sell or pledge
these securities during the covered period unless both parties mutually
agreed with such arrangement. Accordingly, these securities were not
derecognised from the financial statements but regarded as ‘collateral’
for the secured lending from these counterparty banks, which could
only claim the collateral when an event of default existed.

Carrying amounts of financial assets and associated financial
liabilities not qualifying for derecognition

KEERKLT
The Group and the Bank
2014 20124
BETT BT IT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEF AR EES Included in available-for-sale securities 313,979 2,080,745
Eﬂ‘)\fﬁ”&ﬁ@@ﬁﬁ%% Included in deposits and balances of banks and
NFER N EEF other financial institutions 288,900 1,884,363
EXBHMARXS 42 Material related party transactions

BREAMBRREMBOBRENRZ 5 RAER
Oh  REBETTATERBH SRS

HEBRRANRS

REERN  AEBEEBBRITERBES
HEARTETT T ARG - AP EHBREE
E  BXLREFRRAZEER  2HEEEER -
ERPITZHIINER S - BLERFHHEL

EERZRBEETRZREMNEBTISHE
MmiE @ WERHGEAREHEMR ST REP
HEFMER - EFERA - BERFHEIZIE
B EGRRUEST o

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

Transactions with group companies

During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
related parties in the normal course of its banking business; including,
inter alia, lending, acceptance and placement of interbank deposits,
participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions
and foreign exchange transactions. The transactions were priced
based on relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and
were under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, these
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.

—E-FR
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 BERBEIRS (& 42 Material related party transactions (continued)
HEBARNRS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (continued)
REFEA - BEARINBELREEBRD The amount of related party transactions during the year and
ERIAT - outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
hEERE AT () M2 3 (BFRE ) LEPEIGEIA)
REERAKMT Intermediate parents ERERBAR Fellow subsidiaries B 1A (M=) Related companies
The Group and the Bank (note i) Immediate parent (note (i) Associates (note (i) (notes (i) and (i)
(Restated) (Restated)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
BT AETn  BMTn ARt BETn ANTr  BETm AETn B¥Tn AT
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000
FBMA Interest income 944,340 660,808 - - 8,704 12,966 8,728 3210 89,811 57,100
et Interest expense (33894) (4308 (6146 (5550 (31835) (4751 (17409)  (14027)  (15699)  (2487)
EREEHA Other operating income 9 - - - - - 39,007 34834 - -
mag Operating expenses (553) (5 (713) (2,755) (6,062) (6,741) (1,612) (4403) 3) )
THRBHE(ER) /W Trading (loss)/gain on derivatives (1,070) 11333 - - 8,843 (788) 1207 - 16,686 216718
BE Assets
HHERS Available-for-sale securites 20715 - - - - - 3083 - - -
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments 49311 15078 - - 189 - - - 175384 265,760
EitENER Other receivables Qa3 70 - - ATH 4065 2550 2978 2539 2503
a8 Liabilities
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments 5,578 3,744 - - 815 788 - - 169,777 49042
EitERER Other payables 11,92 8209 3,603 4604 19919 22061 819 ] 3416 17697
EREE Lending activities
RM2A318 At 31 December 16,238,902 18647543 - - 426,075 408,438 677,632 90,000 753,949 -
KEETHAE Average for the year 20532090 18175332 . S0 SI0 410947 19950 311,507 .
BRER: Acceptance of deposits
RM2A318 At 31 December 3,575,064 1887407 2,232,715 429904 2,711,566 2711579 3,758,123 2464814 1,341,765 202,605
TEETHEE Average for the year 3,270,537 4253810 878,986 419843 2,383,581 3340273 3,122,858 329379 1,184,057 380,281
BEMRRIMER Off-statement of
financial position items
BAES ERRERE  Acceptances, guarantees and
- AR ERA letters of credit
- contract amounts payable (147328) - - - (56,293) (437) - (9137) - -
AEHE Lease commitments - - - - 6,892 7137 - 8655 - -
{CEf#E QOther commitments - - - - 341,352 572802 357,450 599,938 - -
fEeBIR Derivative financial instruments
- 328 - notional amounts 7177,7116 1285160 - - 1,623,793 972,465 - - 1,573,592 10775852

I 8 Bt bt AR 05 B R R E SRR R E

s

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans

to and placements with related parties.
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42 BERBEAIRS (&) 42 Material related party transactions (continued)
HEBARNRS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (continued)
B2 E 1T
The Bank Subsidiaries
2014 2013
BET T BET T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEHA Interest income 300,156 219,639
FEXH Interest expense (67) (15)
Hipgea (), A Other operating (expense)/income (4,581) (3,301)
RS REATEEE Trading loss on derivatives (1,211) 2,101
N Notes:

(b)

() P2014F1N2A3EZREITERAGIETEE
B KBS HRRMEABE
AR EA AT EIERE AR - B LR
HFNCEAEEER -

(if) KE@&HS/_E’J%‘#%QT&%%‘ E>'z e
L ONCIVSa=Rz-3 2 SYNCIEE NS

(i) BB RREEYERIERERARBERY
iE’J*MHx% &EﬁiﬂPFﬁ [EeSFNEIE 5]
HRAZEEHA

BIEEBABNRS
AEBRARTEIEEEASHS BIEME
DRIFRBECNTAITEZNFIEA  FBE0
T~

(b)

(i) As there were group restructurings performed under the ultimate
controlling party during the year ended 31 December 2014, certain
related parties have been redesignated from either fellow subsidiaries
or related companies to intermediate parents. Comparative figures
have also been restated accordingly.

(i) Associates of the Group and the Bank include the associates of the
ultimate controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

(i) Related companies refers to a shareholder of the immediate parent,
which exercise significant influence on the immediate parent, and
companies with common directors of the intermediate parents.

Transactions with key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group and the
Bank, including amounts paid to the Bank's Directors as disclosed in
note 12, is as follows:

KEBEARTT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HKS'000
MHERERERT Short-term employee benefits 95,176 76,785
B2 B A Post-employment benefits 3,218 2,968
98,394 79,753
Me@zEe st A T8 TR (BIEE11a) © Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 11(a)).

—ZT—-NFR
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(b)

(c)

HIEEBABNRS (&)

ARERNA - ATARTALREEZER QRN
T EEIEA B AMBPIHT RN i A PR I X
RPEAFENRRREEERE - 8
BEREARRFBIETIEM - YRS HE
WAL (ER) R RESETA LR
R ZEEFABAER -

Notes to the Financial Statements

42

(b)

Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with key management personnel (continued)

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary
course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where
applicable, with other employees.

rEBRALT
The Group and the Bank

2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
AT & At 1 January 20,311 10,876
R12A31BMEH At 31 December 21,477 20,311
FRE G RBEE Maximum amount during the year 40,381 24187

REBEREREEEBRAENFRANERE

REMRERE  WRBERETEEEASR
A APS AT R F AR B 48 IR RE BT ik {18 1 7 A
HRLE R

THBABER

KITIREF O EE CRENEDI) (58622F) K
FKNEB78IE RS BEA FEHIEE (AR
BIY(E32F) FB161BIEEEITHABNER
wmr

(9]

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances
with key management personnel during the year, and no individually
assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

Loans to officers

Loans to officers of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), with reference to section 161B of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) are as follows:

wAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
MR12H31 BARITIREH Aggregate amount of relevant loans
BB R BT made by the Bank outstanding at 31 December 4,297 2,045
AREZARNRITIRER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans
ERERESERETE made by the Bank outstanding during the year 8,937 23,240

2014 22013128318 » REBRB A
ELE TR R o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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43

Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to risks,
and its management and control of risks, in particular the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments as follows:

- Credit risk: The risk of financial loss due to the failure of a
customer or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: The risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group's
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: The risk of being unable to meet financial
obligations as they fall due. This may be caused by a funding
liquidity problem such as the inability to liquidate assets or
obtain funding to meet obligations, or may be attributable
to a market liquidity problem significantly resulting in market
disruptions, thus hindering the Group’s ability to unwind or
offset specific exposures without lowering market prices.

- Operational risk: The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events.

The Group adopts the Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. The Group has established policies, procedures
and processes to identify and set appropriate risk limits, as well as
to analyse, control and monitor these risks. The Group continually
strives to enhance its risk management framework and infrastructure
in keeping with the market, product offerings and international best
practices. The Group's internal auditor performs regular independent
audits to ensure due compliance with internal policies and regulatory
requirements.

In addition to the Group’s exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the Group's
capital management.

—T-mEH
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

43

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in the off-statement of financial position such as loan
commitments. The Group has developed standards, policies and
procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending
business. The policies and procedures are reviewed as required, to
respond quickly to the changing market environment to better reflect
the risk factors for the Group's credit considerations.

Credit risk management and control is centralised in the Risk
Management Group (“RMG”") under the oversight of the Credit
Committee, and is reported to the Credit & Risk Management
Committee ("CRMC") at the board level on a quarterly basis. These
committees provide appropriate oversight of the Group’s risk
management practices by defining the Group's policies and risk
appetite, and providing the RMG with the means to implement
measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the Group’s adopted
strategy.

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group’s
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among geographic, industry and product sectors. Credit
risk concentration of the Group's respective financial assets is
disclosed in notes 20 to 23.

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied to
the debt issuers, with individual credit limits set.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group's Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grades
1-11 for performing loans and Grades 12-14 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies’ Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework
into the Group's reporting structure has enabled more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segments (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of the credit quality
of each customer and the governing of the credit exposure for
individual customers or counterparties.

Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly
in times of fluctuating market conditions. The Group also
maintains a committee to regularly oversee weaker credits
(which have lower risk ratings of 8-11) to preserve the Group's
quality portfolio. The table below outlines the Group's rating
scale benchmarked against external credit agencies:

—T-mEH
Annual Report 2014

131



132

B TSR MY

43 SRIRAMEE (2)

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(@ FERBRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() 1EEEZX (&) Credit quality (continued)
MR ET AR B &
(14— 4&51) ECAIFFAR (B&E())
Internal Rating System ECAI Rating AR A
(14-grade) (note(i)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
1 AA-/Aa3E A £ () BRNEFBENHEARR -
AA-/Aa3 or above (i) 198 = IEF R BE N LARBTT H B 75 AGE o
(i) TESZEBNTH L BEIRRE - BT A °
(i) Minimal to very low credit risk.
(i) Extremely strong to very strong capacity to meet its financial
commitments.
(iii) Not susceptible to adverse economic conditions to meet its
financial commitments.
2 A-/A3 & A+/A1 () EeERRER -
A-/A3 to A+/A1 (i RAVBESIABITE B 15HGE -
(i) MERSEBTMNEBRRZE - WEBITHBAG -
(i) Low credit risk.
(i) Strong capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Somewhat more susceptible to adverse economic conditions
to meet its financial commitments than obligors rated under
a better rating categories.
3 BBB/Baa2%BBB+/Baal () BENERRR  BLEEAS -
BBB/Baa2 to BBB+/Baal (i) BHEVRE ) AR TT H B 15 25t o
(i) MEBLF O EERR - BEANBETH B A A8
SRANEEBERETZENRI
(i) Moderate credit risk and positive outlook.
(i) Adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions are more likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial
commitments than obligors rated under a better rating
categories.
4 BBB-/Baa3 () PEEARER -

) RHEVEE I ATBIT A B TSGR -

(il) AEHE T ERR - EFANEITI AR SR8
SRTMOLBERTZE LRI °

(i) Moderate credit risk.

(i) Adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions are more likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial
commitments than obligors rated under a better rating
categories.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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43

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

() 1EEEX (&) Credit quality (continued)
PRSP R
(14— & 3l) ECAIFEAR (B=E(i))
Internal Rating System ECAI Rating AR A
(14-grade) (note(i)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
5 BB+/Bal () EXERRER - FIEEATR °

(i) B HIRVEE ) LARB AT ELBA TR EE o

(i) ME BT EERR - EEANBITH B A A6
BRANOEEREZERTRE

(i) Substantial credit risk and positive outlook.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

6 BB/Ba2 () EXERER  EHEAI=R -

(i) BHIRVEE S LARB AT ELBA T 5t o

(i) ME BT EERR - BEANETH B A A6
BRANOEEREZERTRE

(i) Substantial credit risk and moderate outlook.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

7 BB-/Ba3 () EXEARER -

(i) RHEIEETIATBIT HBA TSGR -

(il) A E TR EER - EFANBITI AR SR8
SRINNEBEREZERTRE -

(i) Substantial credit risk.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

8 B+/B1 () ®EMARR  BERAR -

(i) BRTEREIABITE B 15 EGE -

(i) AEHE T EER - EFANEITH AR TR
AR T MNRBERREZERHEISS -

(i) High credit risk and positive outlook.

(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than

obligors rated under a better rating categories.
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() EEHEZX (&)
AEBTRE R
(14—#51) ECAIZFAR (B &E())

Internal Rating System ECAI Rating

Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit quality (continued)

AR R A

(14-grade) (note(i)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
9 B/B2 () ®ERARR  BHEH=R -
(i) BRIARENABITEY TGS -
(il) MEBLF T EERR - EEANBITH AL NESR
AR T AMNEERIRZE KHIS -
(i) High credit risk and moderate outlook.
(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.
10 B-/B3 () ®EARE -
(i) BRIAREIABITREMBEGE -
(i) HEEBFHFERR - EBANBITHBEARENEE
AR T ANRBERREZE LA -
(i) High credit risk.
(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.
11 FRSNEE CZCCC+/Caal RIRE R R (M52 (b))

Special Mention C to CCC+/Caal

In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))

12 NERE D RIBE D FHEE (b))
Substandard In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))
13 AT&E - RIBE R HHE (M5 b)
Doubtful In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))
14 BB - BRIBEE R EHE (M3 b)
Loss In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))
k: Notes:

(@  ECAIRSIMNEBMERRHE A o

b EFRDBBERE THREELETH
BHHIE - HRB2E BB AES
BN EEREERS —NEE
A A D FARN HEEE -

134] RERIT (B BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(a) ECAI stands for External Credit Assessment Institutions.

(b)  The Loan Classification Policy sets out a system for classifying
relevant assets in accordance with the Loan Classification
Guideline issued by the HKMA such that consistent criteria and
timing for the grading of relevant assets is put into effect.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(i)

REERAZNEERR LR - K&t
REMBAENERmAEMBERRE
Tt RBMBIRAKRTEREREER
R AR EERRORE SR - 5

B RN T

Exposure of credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period, without considering any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowances. A summary of the
maximum exposure is as follows:

r&EH 1T
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BB BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE MERIT - FRIEIT  Cash and balances with banks,
REMEmEENET central banks and other
financial institutions 20,676,200 12,621,484 22,390,107 12,596,762
FEIRIT » PRIFITR Placements with and advances
Hith & BB a3 to banks, central banks and
ETA other financial institutions 43,893,840 46,089,324 40,146,716 41,078,733
RHRABEE Trading assets 3,289,128 2,395,590 3,267,362 2358417
BT RiB BRI Securities designated at fair value
REA R EENES through profit o loss - 63,204 - 63,204
EFEFRBTR Loans and advances to customers
H b #RIA and other accounts 153,706,309 132,384,202 138,449,225 116,211,752
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 26,429,158 21,586,019 24,808,254 20,563,324
BRI EMEEE Financial guarantees and other
BHRS AR credit-related contingent liabilities 7,312,064 16,863,031 4,149,400 12,557,882
EREAEREMEEE Loan commitments and other
BRANAE credit-related commitments 87,076,862 70,995,669 86,213,223 70,422,194
342,383,561 302,998,523 319,424,287 275,852,268
—Z—FR

Annual Report 2014

135



B sR R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

43 SREREE (&) 43
(@) EERRER (&) (a)

(i) EBFEEE s
AEBEREMRF T FERHEES
Hipek o MMBLEED - FAAREM
RBT AT Z B L IERE
RAEEFAR AR FREERE - &
TEAOBR  EREMIFZT KT
R R P RIREREE - h—RTE
EHBRARNEEMNEBEEE - &
SERBEERRTEMBREEM
EFHEFRGE R HRNARE R
AR BEFE  EheREHEAE
BEEReREEMT R B ENERH

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i) Master netting arrangement
The Group enters into enforceable master netting arrangements
with counterparties. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are terminated and all
amounts outstanding are settled on a net basis. Except for
the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The Group discloses information for financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including the rights of set-off associated
with the Group’s recognised financial assets and recognised

TR o financial liabilities, on the Group’s financial position.
rEE
The Group
2014
ERBERREZA
REEHENEBEE
HHRRRRE Retlatf?d :\r.not:ntstﬂ:at aret
RES L no off‘se |n. Ies a. .emen
SRTESE of financial position
Net amounts =]
of financial BeEE
instruments presented ¢RIA Cash
in the statement Financial collateral B
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
—(THeRIE - Derivative financial instruments 3,280,780 (1,256,523) (42,880) 1,981,377
tRAE Financial liabilities
—METETA - Derivative financial instruments 2,974,807 (1,256,523) - 1,718,284

136] PERIT(EFR)BRAF
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

EERBRERE (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEFEZEEGZE (B) (iii)  Master netting arrangement (continued)
A5E
The Group
2013
TR R A

RAEENIRRRE

Related amounts that are

EFBHRRE .
HE R not offset in the statement
SBTETE of financial position
Net amounts %H
of financial ReHE
instruments presented $ETA Cash
in the statement Financial collateral 3
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BB BETT BETT BB
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
SREE Financial assets
—{THe@MIE - Derivative financial instruments 2,395,590 (865,377) (439,315) 1,090,898
tRaRE Financial liabilities
—(THeRIE - Derivative financial instruments 1,568,640 (865,377) 703,263
FiNG)
The Bank
2014
ERBERR TR
RERENHEEEE
ERERRE Related amounts that are
’ HE 54 not offset in the statement
SRTEFE of financial position
Net amounts =2 ]
of financial BeEE
instruments presented ¢RIA Cash
in the statement Financial collateral B
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
CREE Financial assets
I = - Derivative financial instruments 3,259,014 (1,256,523) (42,880) 1,959,611
CREE Financial liabilities
—{THe@IE - Derivative financial instruments 2,932,304 (1,256,523) - 1,675,781
—E—-FER

Annual Report 2014

137



138

B TSR MY

43 TEERER (F)

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(@ FERKBRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEFEEE i (B) (i) Master netting arrangement (continued)
K17
The Bank
2013
T BHRAERA
podEiwicliopE LAl
IR E Related amounts that are
Vs V/
R not offset in the statement
ARTEFE of financial position
M7 7~/ R
Net amounts #H
of financial HeHEE
instruments presented TRIA Cash
in the statement Financial collateral HEE
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BB BT BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
—TESBTA - Derivative financial instruments 2358417 (865,377) (439,315) 1,053,725
ERAR Financial liabilities
—{THemMIE - Derivative financial instruments 1,540,175 (865,377) - 674,798

(v) ZREERE — E#mREMEFET
REBEH N ANR T AR & EER
o —RME - ARBEAERMREE
TIERRAWRERZEERONE
@ o REBRKEBRTBEZEERR
BIKE - SRR FFHEEE X ©

AEEREERRBRMEHHEH
mEIZEBRE HeEH REB
BEER AN S EmRRKE - &
WHRSEE - BRERENREERA
MERES - E—LBRT - ARE
HRFEFHMRRMEBFNEEER
15 iR mRIEAFEROE
HIRERK

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group dedicates to mitigating credit risk, and this takes
many forms. In general, risk to the Group’s ultimate credit
exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral and credit risk
enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to enhance its
level of credit risk mitigation, and it was particularly successful at
safequarding its credit quality.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable assignments,
standby letters of credit and listed debt securities acceptable
to the Group. In some cases, depending on the customer's
position and the types of credit products, loans may be granted
on a clean basis, backed by corporate or personal guarantees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
(continued)

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group’s policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on securities.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2014 and
2013, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as follows:

AEH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T B TIT BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ERRBZAEFERIER  Lower of gross loans and advances
EEREemEEL and fair value of collateral and
AR R H A {E A other credit enhancements held
RAMAREE against financial assets that are:
MEZBIRER
— R BEARE - neither past due nor impaired 80,610,817 69,012,310 71,680,445 59,060,870
— i HB R B IRE — past due but not impaired 1,770,886 781,593 1,536,719 664,544
82,381,703 69,793,903 73,217,164 59,725,414

EREEEELERETE
EREAERE - UARBENEES
EREY

R B ER A DA B A AN O TE B I E AR
MERERAGEEMNAES —HE
e AEEHZEBRAEEBEL
ERE P MR E L I5 52 B K
AOREEXRARBER  BRBWER
TR EOR (AEEE) - AEEE
HETRRE A - EREHEER
ZE#HE THEBEFENEEMAR

(v)

Portfolio management and risk concentration
Portfolio management — Risk-based Pricing Model

As part of the Group's portfolio management practices, the
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group (value creation), after
taking into account the risks of the customers and facilities,
and thus the capital required to support the loan exposure and
other costs. Stress tests on the Group's credit risk are conducted
regularly. The result is approved by the Credit Committee and is
endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.

—E-FR
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43 SEREKRER (& 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(@ FERKBRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() EBHHEEEEREREFE (&) (v)  Portfolio management and risk concentration (continued)

RS+ E
AEECDHITRRESTEEERRL
KEREERROUEZEEER
R BN REMR LR ER o

Vi) BEARBANEEES (vi)
REBHHERREZEERBRIY
TEENE XD BBER MR ERE I
REBEHBIEERER

20144 }20135F12 8318 » T A 4R
TERRBRLERE FEFEXK
NEFNEEEESTOT ¢

Risk concentration

A Credit Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the
Group constantly reviews its loan exposure to monitor the
concentration of credit risk relating to customers, countries,
market segments and products.

Credit quality of loans and advances

The Group manages and monitors its risks, and has a Loan
Classification Policy and Impairment Assessment Policy in place
to govern this aspect.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, all loans and advances to banks
were not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to
customers is analysed as follows:

rEE T
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
REEFRBRAE Gross loans and advances to customers
—REBHSAE ~ neither past due nor impaired 147,176,702 125,492,524 132,697,635 110,271,956
—CRaEEEERE — past due but not impaired 2,831,806 1,117,852 2,575,848 1,000,803
—BERE - impaired 711,638 406,465 344,135 293,481
150,720,146 127,016,841 135,617,618 111,566,240
EF' . Of which:
TEH KT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REBESCRER Gross loans and advances to
REERRBHAE customers that are neither
past due nor impaired
—ERBEIFIE - Pass includes Grades 1to 10 146,930,192 125,092,145 132,476,072 109,871,577
—BERETRN - Special Mention includes Grade 11 246,510 400,379 221,563 400,379
147,176,702 125,492,524 132,697,635 110,271,956

140] HIERIT (EFR)BRAF
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)

Eﬁﬁﬂﬁ BENEFPERRBR The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
HEREC DT T - past due but not impaired is as follows:
rEE 1T
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT BT BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
EAHERERER Gross loans and advances to
BEFERRBTBE customers that are past due
but not impaired
—BEE A AT - Overdue 3 months or less 2,664,317 1,117,852 2,408,359 1,000,803
— B MR A LA T 5k — Overdue 6 months or less
3fEAME but over 3 months 167,489 - 167,489 -
2,831,806 1,117,852 2,575,848 1,000,803

20145128318 - MR M KREFE
AR ERBSRENERKER
15 5 7 #659,530,0007T (20134 : B #E
728,855,0007T) ©

BRITERWEE — o ITREER R
FHAERD %lJEE\JEABﬁufzz PEE N
BTGB R EC

ERRBHALI e HEENEEES
PERSGEERRHERFA - B
EEEECEEER ﬁﬁ’]?‘?‘ﬁﬁﬁ '
WRE S EHFEIT AR TR -
EERIEMREEE

TREINEBZEFNEE BREINED
EEAMBRBRERGHFSEH
BZABATHNEERYE - 8E2014
FRANALEFE  ~EEDEHF
HEHREFNEERR  EEFEK
RES - BHFBETAREBEITERNF
o MEHFAGRBFA - AIFRAH
TTARBETERMNFR - A TERF
BOMBFCES -

(vii)

Loans and advances that would have been past due or
impaired had the terms not been rescheduled amounted to
HK$659,530,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$728,855,000).

Further detailed analyses of the impaired loan by industry sector
or by geographical location are provided in note 22(c) and note
(Q) of the unaudited supplementary information, respectively.

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
The credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk
grading is applied to the debt issuers, with individual credit
limits set.

The following table presents the credit quality of investments
in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit
assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or its
equivalent), at the end of the reporting period. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group reassessed the credit
ratings for these debt securities, and they are represented by
the issue, the issuer or sovereign ratings. Ratings designated
for the issuers or sovereigns are reported if there are no issue
ratings and certain comparatives for the following credit rating
analysis have been restated accordingly.
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii)  Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(4&) (continued)
KEH
The Group
2014
AHHEES
RERBREE Available-for-sale g
Trading assets securities Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - 2,161,703 2,161,703
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 8,650,450 8,650,450
A3EAT A3 to Al - 8,379,754 8,379,754
ERA3 Lower than A3 8,348 5,528,351 5,536,699
8,348 24,720,258 24,728,606
KRR Unrated - 1,708,900 1,708,900
Fokc] Total 8,348 26,429,158 26,437,506
AEE
The Group
2013
YETE AR
1828 DA =
RABENES
Securities AHHEES
designated at fair value Available-for-sale 4878
through profit or loss securities Total
BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Aaa Aaa - 1,636,185 1,636,185
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 5,618,387 5,618,387
A3ZE A1 A3 to Al 12,927 7,802,162 7,815,089
A3 Lower than A3 - 4,767,681 4,767,681
12,927 19,824,415 19,837,342
RELR Unrated 50,277 1,761,604 1,811,881
] Total 63,204 21,586,019 21,649,223

142] HIERTT (B BRA R
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii) ~ Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(&) (continued)
*4T
The Bank
2014
AHEERES
RXEHREE Available-for-sale pabc]
Trading assets securities Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - 2,161,703 2,161,703
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 8,650,450 8,650,450
A3ZEAT A3 to Al - 6,758,850 6,758,850
KHA3 Lower than A3 8,348 5,528,351 5,536,699
8,348 23,099,354 23,107,702
KRR Unrated - 1,708,900 1,708,900
1B=E Total 8,348 24,808,254 24,816,602
NG
The Bank
2013
fBERBE
B AR B
AR BENES
Securities AIHEEFES
designated at fair value Available-for-sale HREE
through profit or loss securities Total
BT T BT T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Aaa Aaa - 1,636,185 1,636,185
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 5,618,387 5,618,387
A3ZEA1 A3 to Al 12,927 6,779,468 6,792,395
{KHAA3 Lower than A3 - 4,767,681 4,767,681
12,927 18,801,721 18,814,648
KRR Unrated 50,277 1,761,603 1,811,880
pak) Total 63,204 20,563,324 20,626,528
—E—ER 143
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(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management

Market risk arises from all financial instruments sensitive to market
fluctuation, including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity
and derivative instruments, as well as available-for-sale ("AFS”)
securities or structural positions. The Group mainly separates
exposures to market risk into trading and AFS portfolios. Trading
portfolios include positions arising from proprietary position-taking
and other mark to-market positions designated to the trading book.
AFS portfolios include positions that primarily arise from the Group’s
investment portfolio and liquidity portfolio in securities, which are
neither intended to be held to maturity nor purchased for trading.
The change in valuation for the trading portfolios from market risks
affects the income statement, while that for the AFS portfolios affects
the investment revaluation reserve. The Group needs to ensure
impacts on both the income statement and the reserves from market
risks have proper prudent controls. The objectives of market risk
management are to:

- identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through the
measurement of the risks, establish position limits, sensitivity
limits and value at risk ("VaR") limits based on the Group's Tier 1
capital base, and communicate risks to senior management;

- support business growth with reference to a risk-controlled
framework; and

- ensure a proper balance between risk and return.

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite as set out through a set
of global risk indicators (“GRI"), the establishment of a limit structure,
and policies for the trading and AFS portfolios. Limits are ordered
according to the hierarchy of policy limits, business limits and
transaction limits. This market risk appetite has been approved by
the Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO") and is endorsed by the
Board through the Credit & Risk Management Committee (“CRMC").
The hierarchy of the limit structure is set up to control the position,
size, profit and loss, and sensitivities from the portfolio level to the
individual trader level. All business units with market risks are required
to strictly comply with the policies and the limits. The Treasury &
Markets (“T&M") unit is the primary business unit involved in market
risk exposures.
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Market risk framework (continued)

The Market Risk and Liquidity Modelling (“"MR&LM") unit is an
independent risk measurement and control unit overseen by the
Head of MR&LM, who reports to the Chief Risk Officer ("“CRO”"). MR&LM
uses a set of quantitative techniques to identify, measure and control
the market risks, which are regularly reported to the ALCO and
the Board through the CRMC. These techniques include sensitivity
analyses, VaR and stress tests, which are measured relative to the
Group's capital base.

The following table provides an overview of the types of quantitative

& measures in various market risk reports:

RERZESE AHHERFAS

Trading Portfolios AFS Portfolios
AR Risk type RS Risk measures =R Risk measures
SNGE Foreign exchange [R B2 1E VaR @A Not applicable
A= Interest rate [2\ P (B K BURRE VaR and sensitivity BB N SURE VaR and sensitivity
HE Commodity R E VaR i@ A Not applicable
[ 1 Equity [2\f (B VaR BURE Sensitivity
ERMZE Credit spread N iE A Not applicable R E R E VaR and sensitivity
HEER Portfolio type EfRE - 8URE & VaR sensitivityand  [ERE - 8URE & VaR, sensitivity and
BRI stress test JE& 77380, stress test

AEBERBEEERRREEZESEH The Group's approval process for new products is controlled by the

B [ 37 EE an v 14 S bz B R ) (TUHE R ) -
EHESFEMEZZERF - RIETHLEK

R FHERMTS RHERF G SBEEED
B/ VERTR] - BREFISEIEE  EE LR
BIREL - ERERR OERBRER &
EBEIEL/ MERRTRIIR - BEFEMIIE
HBEERTAGENRREEAEMITHA

& TTBZ BE BITHATHIRER
EIREESEY -

“New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” (“the Policy”) approved
by the CRMC. According to the Policy, new products are subject to
risk clearance by various functional units, including the Financial
Management Group, the Operations and Technology Group, the
Risk Management Group, the Legal Department and the Compliance
Department. After obtaining functional clearance, the sponsoring
Business Head shall submit the Product Proposal for the approval of
the CRO and the CEO/Deputy CEO ("DCEQ")/Alternate Chief Executive
Officer ("ACEQ") as appropriate.
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model

The following explains the types of quantitative risk measures the
Group adopts.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions of
each type of risk exposure. For example, the present value of a basis
point movement in interest rates and the present value of a basis
point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are used for
monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur
on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and prices
over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
The model is designed to capture the different risk types including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk,
commodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR models used by the Group are predominantly based on
historical simulations, and Monte Carlo simulations are also used
as a reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios from
historical market rates and prices, taking into account the correlation
of different markets and rates such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of embedded
options of the underlying exposures.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
Value at risk (continued)

The historical simulation model used by the Group includes the

following elements:

- Potential market movements are calculated with reference to
data from the previous two years for the trading portfolios and
the AFS portfolios, including the historical market rates, prices
and associated volatilities.

- For the trading portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99%
confidence level and for a one-day holding period.

B EET HKS million

MIBABBE 201453 ARASRBE
Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2014
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- For the AFS portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99% confidence
level and for a 250-day holding period.

B EHET HKS million

TISERES —-2014F A H ER 519250 K AR E
Trend in Market Risk — AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2014
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(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)
Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)

Value at risk (continued)

The Group routinely validates the accuracy of its VaR model
for its trading portfolios through back-testing by comparing
the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss results,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR numbers. Statistically, the Group only
expects to see losses in excess of VaR 1% of the time over a one
year period. The actual number of excesses over this period can
therefore be used to gauge how well the model is performing.
For the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, there
was one exception in the back-testing results (1 January 2013
to 31 December 2013: no exception), which corresponds to the
green zone specified by the HKMA and the international Basel

[RBIFTHEE MAR BRI A - principles.
2014F M B R R (BB s R EE
The Group’s actual profit and loss backtesting model in 2014
15
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43 SERERERE (&) 43  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) TWIEEKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
5 R S iR i 7 A b B (48) Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
EfR1E (&) Value at risk (continued)

HNERTENRERENE  EEFNTS
iR - AT DAME R —ER F T 5 R R 15
5l EhBEEHBRIE o flan - FIFE L&
TER—ERIER BB XM EFT A A RERYE
SHMARREZERBL T99%ME 0 RMENE
o BT REERERS - mHARIFIRMH
BELBEEEZEeNBENAFHGERRBR
TREMEMEEMA O EREFEANER
B AT BE IR A B RS S 1 o

HE04FNANELEFE  AEEHE
REGBRESKEZEBTFHRRRBE
651,0007T (20134F : 7 #825,0007T) + B H
TP AR AERR = A 81,894,0007T (2013
F B #1391,0007T) o T BT E £2014
FR2013F12ANBIEFEREEZTER
BEWAZERDME -

While VaR calculated using this approach can serve as a good guide
for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its limitations.
For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may not encompass
all potential events and events beyond the 99% confidence interval
are not considered. In order to mitigate such limitations, the MR&LM
provides the ALCO with the stress test results reflecting potential
extreme events on the market risk exposures for the trading and AFS
portfolios.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the average daily mark-
to-market revenue from the Group'’s trading portfolio and fund
investments was a gain of HK$651,000 (2013: HK$825,000). The
standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$1,894,000 (2013:
HK$1,391,000). The graphs below show the histograms of the Group's
daily mark-to-market revenue for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, respectively.

BE2014F12A31 B L FERHETERAZERSHE BE2013F12A31HILFERHEERAZER S FE
Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2014 Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2013
50 50 —
WA/ RSRE WA/ R SRR
; Profit and Loss Frequency g Profit and Loss Frequency
3 40 3 40
s s
g g
5 E
2 20 — — Z 2
w i w
m 10 ] m 10
22,282 I P
Ooo;ooooo;.._.l. .llo;o;ooo 00000‘00‘
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WA CEB¥EET) WA CE¥EET)
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43 TRERERE (& 43  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) WHEERERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
5 R S iR i 7 A b B (48) Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
EfR1E (& Value at risk (continued)
TRETTRZEMMAIMBHERFEHEHN The tables below show the VaR statistics for the trading book and AFS
B ELFTET - portfolio:

RERZENTHEER -1 XERE%
Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - 1-day VaR 99%

2014 2013
1] RIE ¥ #Z12831H B i5qliy ¥ HZ1A3H
Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT B%Tr B¥ETn BETT EETT AT BETx BETT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
SNE Foreign exchange risk 12,447 371 2,951 7,793 6,989 253 1776 1354
FE R Interest rate risk 8,142 2,610 5,061 5,875 5411 1262 3279 5127
RlEGEES Total VaR 13,891 2,982 5,684 8,916 12,739 2,444 5,054 5431

AHHERSASNHEER
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio

2014 2013
&S R ¥ BE12A318 & &I T EHE12A31R
Maximum  Minimum Mean  At31December ~ Maximum  Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT B¥Tr A% AMTR  AETT BT A%TR EETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FIEER Interest rate risk 437,374 208,270 282,972 427,634 257,618 52,649 163,113 211,931

EEFZRR Credit spread risk 268735 206765 234121 14220 45195 2853 320448 W3027

BOKEREELE  Total 250-day VaR 374,539 215,453 252,536 343,013 451,090 225,156 318,387 225,156

JEE 78 Stress testing

R RIHB B MR AR R R EEE 555 Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the VaR

FE LREBEERBIRBENSEN - XK model in order to capture remote but plausible events. The Group uses

EH T YERETT SRR AR the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:

—  BRMSWTER AT EREREER —  sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single
EERRE N E A —EREREE Rz — risk factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured by
AEZENTE  MEBETHEETEE® the VaR model, such as breaking the HK dollar and US dollar
B K& currency peg; and

— EXER EREESURIXENEE —  historical scenarios, which incorporate the historical observation
TR EER RENELBEM of market moves during previous stress periods which would
BES  WEEEKBEREMENS not be captured by the VaR model, such as the impact on

@,
=

valuation under the crisis scenario.

150] RIERIT (BEFR)BRAF
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
Stress testing (continued)

Stress testing results are reported to the ALCO, which provides an
assessment of the financial impact that such events would have on
the Group’s income statement and reserve. The daily losses for the
trading portfolio and the yearly negative reserve impact for the AFS
portfolios experienced in 2014 were below the stress loss alerts and
limits.

Credit spread risk

In addition to interest rate risk and extreme market volatility, a
significant widening of credit spread such as in financial crisis
situation would have a heavy negative impact on the valuation of
the AFS portfolios. Also, the extreme market conditions would make
the availability of market prices for some of the securities infrequent,
and to a certain extent, less reliable, which would further increase
the challenge and complexity for portfolio valuation of some of the
securities in the AFS portfolio.

In the risk control of the AFS portfolios, the Group has a risk
management framework that enables the estimation of the fair
value of option adjusted spreads in order to calculate the fair value
of illiquid securities. In addition, the framework consists of a 250-
day credit spread VaR, credit spread sensitivity risk statistics, stress
testing, and a limit structure and early alert indicators. The objective
for choosing the 250-day credit spread VaR statistics is to measure the
potential adverse impact on the Group's reserve on an annual basis.

Currency risk

The Group's foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
currency securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions are
subject to exposure limits approved by the ALCO. Methods adopted
to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
options). For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's average
daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
profit of HK$596,000 (2013: HK$570,000) with a standard deviation of
HK$3,654,000 (2013: HK$1,180,000).
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43 TRERERE (& 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(b) WHEERERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
SMNEE f () Currency risk (continued)
REFEARNEARINERRIAT Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting

period were as follows:

by
The Group
2014 2013
HER Equivalent in E3 AR%  HftE% ek %% ARE  HEpE% ek
BETT HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total usb RMB Others Total
REAE Spot assets 92,263,766 61,239,085 7,190,989 160,693,840 79645849 59058951 4355246 143,060,046
BEERE Spot liabilities (66,363,801) (46,790,020) (15,063,212)  (128,217,033)  (46860315)  (48203556)  (17.850334)  (112,914,205)
EHEA Forward purchases 162,866,061 126,678,463 25,266,880 314,811,413 12158234 93438490 17922579 232,889,303
EHREH Forward sales (193,736,878) (137,239,255) (15,105,431)  (346,081,564) (152,152,154) (103337,170) (4564835  (260,054,159)
HERTE Net options position 6,632,868  (4,035342)  (2,482,148) 115,378 89,661 (52,740) 34,676 71,597
5/ (B)838 Net long/(short) position 1,662,016 (147,069)  (192,913) 1,322,034 2251275 903,975 (102,668) 3,052,582
e e Net structural position - 748,417 48,522 796,939 - 767871 48532 816,403
K7
The Bank
2014 2013

BER Equivalent in S AR®E  HiE% an e ARE  EfhE¥ a%
BETT HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total usb RMB Others Total
BEBE Spot assets 92,839,877  51,755224 7,191,131 151,786,232 79209581 47243452 4355237 130,808,270
BEaf Spot liabilities (65,672,940) (39,863,657) (15,064,414)  (120,601,011)  (46057,358) (37452535  (17,851421)  (101,361314)
PN Forward purchases 159,457,969 125,340,438 25,266,880  310,065296 119524635 92303568 17922579 229,750,782
FHEY Forward sales (191,664,492) (133,755,303) (15,105,431)  (340,525,226) (150,676019) (101298315) (4564835  (256,539,169)
HERTE Net options position 6,632,868  (4,035342)  (2,482,148) 115,378 89,661 (52,740) 34676 71,597
5/ (BE58 Net long/(short) position 1,593,282 (558,640)  (193,973) 840,669 2,090,500 743430 (103,764) 2,730,166
TS Net structural position - - 48,522 48,522 - - 48532 48532
R FRERRBEERMZENENER The net option position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
EEETHE o which has been approved by the HKMA.
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(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

0] At 31 December 2014, if the HKD had weakened by 10% against
other currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit before tax
for the year would have been lower by HK$33,998,000 and
HK$75,261,000, respectively (2013: higher by HK$80,131,000
and HK$63,967,000, respectively), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses on the translation of non-HKD denominated
financial liabilities compensated by foreign exchange gains on
the translation of non-HKD denominated financial assets.

Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against
other currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s and the Bank's profit before tax
for the year would have been higher by HK$33,998,000 and
HK$75,261,000, respectively (2013: lower by HK$80,131,000 and
HK$63,967,000, respectively).

(i) The Group or the Bank is exposed to currency risks primarily
arising from financial instruments that are denominated
in USD, excluding structural foreign exchange positions of
RMB600,000,000 and MOP 50,000,000. As the USD is pegged
to the HKD, the Group or the Bank considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's ALCO oversees all interest rate risks arising from the
interest rate profile of the Group's assets and liabilities. The Group has
interest rate risk exposures from both its banking and trading books.
The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by repricing risks,
basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks, yield curve
movements and risks from embedded options, if any. The Group's
management of the interest rate risk in the banking book is governed
by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for the Banking Book.
Moreover, the Central Treasury unit of T&M manages the interest rate
risk in the banking book according to the policy.

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, especially interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and
liabilities such as AFS and non-trading liabilities (“NTL"). The Group has
also adopted hedge accounting principles, under which the fair value
changes of the AFS/NTL and the corresponding fair value changes of
the hedging derivative instruments offset each other.
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's management of the interest rate risk in the trading book is
guided by the Market Risk Policy. The Group mainly uses the present
value of a basis point movement and VaR to measure its interest rate
risk exposure in the trading book. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the Group's average daily trading profit and loss from interest
rate positions was a gain of HK$56,000 (2013: HK$255,000), with a
standard deviation of HK$2,895,000 (2013: HK$1,096,000).

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis of the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings are assessed
assuming that the interest rates of three major currencies (HKD,
RMB and USD) will rise by 200 basis points on the repricing dates
(the midpoint of the corresponding time bands) of each asset and
liability. Nevertheless, the Group does not expect the interest rates of
these three major currencies to decrease by 200 basis points on the
repricing dates because of the current low level of interest rates. The
impacts on both the on- and off-statement of the financial position
items are included in the assessment.

rEH
The Group
2014 2013
Bt AR® E B ARE ETT
HERBE T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usb
iR _F2001E%E25  Impact on earnings over the next
HARKI2E AR 12 months if interest rates rise by
B & 200 basis points 298,410 10,360 190,371 184,307 199,151 14,934
A= F382001EE 2 Impact on economic value if interest
HEEBENZE rates rise by 200 basis points (208,347) 21,372 314,960 (113272)  (45351) 244,977
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43 SERERERE (&) 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(b) WHEERERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
FIE @z (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
T |2 bz U RRZ 547 (A8 Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (continued)
47
The Bank
2014 2013
BT AR% EYH BT AR %I

HERBE T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usD
KR _F2001E%E25  Impact on earnings over the next

HRK12ME A/ 12 months if interest rates rise by

B & 200 basis points 267,002 (577) 187,739 145,698 139,913 2,862
A= F382001EE 2 Impact on economic value if interest

HEBEEBENTE rates rise by 200 basis points (188,271) 25,579 303,847 (92,310) 28312 247,640
ZHBRESTERARAREEEN - KIBE This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
F&Eﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬁﬂ PR ERHMER - BRI of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
BB TR RE The analysis is based on the following assumptions:
() W RpRLR N R IR FTEE) () Thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates.
(i) MHEEWEEMES) (i) There are no other changes to the portfolio.
(i BREERFPEEENR  BXHBH (i) No loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans are on

HEBRZEER & a floating rate base.
vy BRRLREEFEHNHENEARZELE (iv) Deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be
FER © repriced the next day.
M= FFAMERAREEFFE W?\&Z%/;EE Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
BENERFEHEZBREDITHLER value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the
Fr @] © results of this sensitivity analysis.
—E-FR
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43 TRERERE (& 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(b) WHEERERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
FIE G (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
TRETREZE AN REEKABNTER The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next
TRETEEBE (KEEE - UREES repricing dates (or maturity dates, whichever are earlier) for the
£) 2 Fafc o interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.
rEE
The Group
2014
AR
(BfE@H) 3MEANLE  1FME
3 months E3E:S Z5% FEEtE
or less Over Over SERE Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) to1year  to5years 5 years bearing

BRI BERTR EWTR  B¥TR  E%Tn  BRTx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EE Assets
HERERIT  PRIFIT  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMSEEENES banks and other financial institutions 20,676,200 20,416,904 - - - 259,296

FRT - PRIBITREM  Placements with and advances to banks,
PRBENTR BT central banks and other

financial institutions 43,893,840 41,002,310 2,891,530 - - -
LHRABEE Trading assets 3,291,332 - - 8,348 - 3,282,984
TEERRBEIREMIETE  Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 153,872,296 139,426,543 9,643,556 630,527 22,191 4,149,479
AHRHEES Available-for-sale securities 26,513,380 10,403,876 4,412,862 10,878,905 729,515 88,222
FHEEE Non-interest bearing assets 893,823 - - - - 893,823
BEHE Total assets 249,140,871 211,249,633 16,947,948 11,517,780 751,706 8,673,804
=X Liabilities
BT REMEREERN Deposits and balances of banks and

BRkER other financial institutions 4,129,401 595,801 2,151,149 - - 1,382,451

EEREH Deposits from customers 188,929,559 134,856,793 42,931,913 2,094,703 - 9,046,150
RERBAE Trading liabilities 2,974,807 - - - - 2,974,807
BRIIENE Certificates of deposit issued 14,156,976 8,334,539 5,408,873 413,564 - -
EEER Loan capital 8,754,408 - - 4,603,713 4,150,695 -
FifEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 7,944,371 2,106,681 107,833 - - 5,729,857
B8 Total liabilities 226,889,522 145,893,814 50,599,768 7,111,980 4,150,695 19,133,265
FEGREER Interest rate sensitivity gap 65,355,819 (33,651,820) 4,405,800  (3,398,989)
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43 SEREKRER (& 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(b) TWIEEKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
F&= = (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
AEE
The Group
2013
AR
(efE@HE) 3MEANE  1FME
3 months 21F 256 FE R
or less Over Over SEPE Non-
@%  (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) tolyear  to5years 5 years bearing

ARTT  BBTT  ARTT  BBTT  ARTT  BBTR
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

BE Assets
BEREFT  BREFIT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMERBENET banks and other financial institutions 12,621,484 12,331,854 - - - 289,630
HERT BRFITREM  Placements with and advances to
CREENGFRLET banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 46,089,324 32,168,758 13,920,566 - - -
RHREEE Trading assets 2,398,265 - - - - 2398265
BT ARBERRNRM Securities designated at fair value
DR EENES through profit or loss 63,204 - 12,927 - - 50,277
RPERRBHREMEEE  Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 132,531,544 116,149,210 9,511,982 720,454 17,013 6,132,885
AfHEES Available-for-sale securities 21661781 10,052,324 4037679 7,341,770 150,246 79,762
EEE Non-interest bearing assets 942,304 - - - - 942,304
EEBE Total assets 216,307,906 170,702,146 27,483,154 8,062,224 167,259 9,893,123
&8 Liabilities
RITRE M S REEN Deposits and balances of banks and
BRERER other financial institutions 7522382 6,260,371 - - - 1,262,011
BEPER Deposits from customers 154658966 116,585,505 28378871 3,219,209 - 6475381
RHREEE Trading liabilities 1,568,640 - - - - 1568640
PETFIE Certificates of deposit issued 16,175,173 5478493 10,067,522 629,158 - -
BRITERES Debt securities issued 1,151,253 - 1,151,253 - - -
BEBER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - 2,277,706 6,379,846 -
FBRE Non-interest bearing liabilities 9,397,923 151,641 107,043 - - 9139239
BEAE Total liabilities 199,131,889 128476,010 39,704,689 6,126,073 6,379,846 18445271
FRGBEZEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 42226136 (12221535 1936151  (6,212,587)
ZEZ-MER 157
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43 TERIEAKER (2) 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(b) TWIEEKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)

FIEE g (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
X7
The Bank
2014
AR
(BfEBH) 33EANL 155E
3 months Z1 B5F FEtR
or less Over Over SENRLE Non-
#%  (including  3months  1yearto Over interest
Total overdue) to 1year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT BETR  B¥%Tr B%Tr BT B%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEREFT  BREFIT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMEREENET banks and other financial institutions 22,390,107 22,131,438 - - - 258,669
HRT  BRFITREM  Placements with and advances to
TREENTERRDN banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 40,146,716 38,633,521 1,513,195 - - -
RHRBEE Trading assets 3,269,566 - - 8,348 - 3261218
EPERREHREMEEIE  Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 138,604,532 126,562,561 7,772,513 630,527 22,191 3,616,740
AHRHERS Available-for-sale securities 24,892,476 10,141,570 4,227,226 9,705,943 729,515 88,222
I YNGTE Amounts due from subsidiaries 9,576,105 1,736,919 6,025,836 - - 1,813,350
FEEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,103,835 - - - - 2,103,835
EELE Total assets 240,983,337 199,206,009 19,538,770 10,344,818 751,706 11,142,034
=1 Liabilities
BT REMEREERN Deposits and balances of banks and
FHRER other financial institutions 4,129,401 595,801 2,151,149 - - 1,382,451
ZEER Deposits from customers 182,295,968 132,259,053 40,950,575 40,189 - 9,046,151
XHREAR Trading liabilities 2,932,304 - - - - 2,932,304
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 14,156,976 8,334,539 5408873 413,564 - -
NG Amounts due to subsidiaries 268,480 - - - - 268,480
BHRER Loan capital 8,754,408 - - 4,603,713 4,150,695 -
JEEtBRE Non-interest bearing liabilities 7,431,769 1,940,355 107,833 - - 5,383,581
EEAE Total liabilities 219,969,306 143,129,748 48,618,430 5,057,466 4,150,695 19,012,967
FEGREENE Interest rate sensitivity gap 56,076,261 (29,079,660) 5,287,352  (3,398,989)
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

K17
The Bank
2013
EAR
(RESE) 3EANML 1ER £
3 months ENE:S 25F I B
or less Over Over SEPAE Non-
@& (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) tolyear  to5years 5 years bearing
BT A%Tr  B¥Tr  A%Tr  B¥Tr  A%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BeRRT PRIIT  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMEEEENER banks and other financial institutions 12596762 12,307,474 - - - 289,288
1T PRBITREM  Placements with and advances to
CRIBENTERRER banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 41,078,733 28003315  13,075418 - - -
RHRBEE Trading assets 2,361,092 - - - - 2361002
ETARBERNRK Securities designated at fair value
DhBEENES through profit or loss 63,204 - 12,927 - - 50,277
EEEFNBTLEMIEE  Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 116,349957 102147977 8156,853 720,454 17013 5,307,660
A HERES Available-for-sale securities 20639086 9900550 3976194 6532334 150,246 79,762
JEU B 2 B FRIA Amounts due from subsidiaries 9,069,712 7,727,051 - - - 1342661
A RBE Non-interest bearing assets 2,158,247 - - - - 2,158,247
BEAR Total assets 204316793 160,086,367 25221392 7,252,788 167,259 11,588,987
af Liabilities
RITNEMEREEN Deposits and balances of banks and
FHRERF other financial institutions 7239589  5977,578 - - - 126201
EPER Deposits from customers 145204489 112512344 25876423 340,341 - 6475381
RoHBEaE Trading liabilities 1,540,175 - - - - 1540175
BENENE Certificates of deposit issued 16175173 5478493 10,067,522 629,158 - -
EES Debt securities 1,151,253 - 1,151,253 - - -
BB ARZRE Amounts due to subsidiaries 236,823 - - - - 236823
BEHRER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - 2207706 6,379,846 -
JEERE Non-interest bearing liabilities 8,353,596 151,641 107,043 - - 8,094,912
REAR Total liabilities 188,558,650 124120056  37202,241 3247205 6379846 17,609,302
FZGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 35966311 (11,980,849) 4005583  (6212,587)
—Z—FR
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund an
increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall without incurring
unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises from the
maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages. Market liquidity risk is a risk that occurs when additional
costs are involved in disposing of a position in the market under
abnormal or stressed market conditions. Under these conditions,
the bid-ask spreads for the position are much wider than usual or
there could even be an extreme lack of buyers. Under these market
conditions, the Bank will incur extra costs to dispose of the position.

The liquidity risk management framework is as follows:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, approved by the ALCO and
endorsed by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group’s liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO is delegated by the CRMC as the governing body
responsible for formulating and implementing policies,
strategies, guidelines and limit structures. It also identifies,
measures and monitors the liquidity profile to ensure current
and future funding requirements are met. In addition, the
ALCO monitors a set of GRI for liquidity risk. Regular liquidity
stress testing, which includes general market-wide, institution
specific and combined (general market-wide and institution
specific) stress scenarios, is conducted by the Risk Management
Group, and the stress results are regularly reviewed by the ALCO
to assess the current risk tolerance level and the level of the
liquidity cushion. A Contingency Funding Plan is established
which sets out the strategies for addressing liquidity stress
situations. The plan contains a set of policies, procedures and
action plans, with clearly established lines of responsibility,
as well as invocation and escalation procedures. This plan is
reviewed and approved by the ALCO on a regular basis.
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central Treasury
Unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is supported
by other functional departments, including the Financial
Management Group and Risk Management Group, which
monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports to the
management, committees and local regulatory bodies. Limits
for net cash flow per different time bucket under normal and
stress scenarios have been set to ensure that adequate funding
and liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover,
limits, triggers or alerts are set for other liquidity risk indicators
such as the liquidity ratio and loan to deposit ratio. Both
quantitative (e.g. statistical methods) and qualitative measures
(e.g. liquidity index/premium) are employed to identify and
measure market liquidity risk. Limits and alert levels related to
market and funding liquidity risk are monitored and reported by
the Financial Management Group or Risk Management Group
to the ALCO to review and approve on a regular basis. The Audit
Department performs periodic reviews to ensure liquidity risk
management functions are carried out effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements,
taking into account their different liquidity risk characteristics.
The liquidity situation of branches and subsidiaries falls under the
overall supervision of the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of
the funding support extended from the head office. The Group
expects all business units to contribute to the success of managing
liquidity under normal and contingency situations by maintaining a
rapport with depositors, customers, interbank counterparties, related
companies and the HKMA.
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio. To achieve this, the
following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows in normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement

- Factoring potential drawdown on non-cancellable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk

- Monitoring the liquidity ratio, loans-to-deposit ratios and
maturity mismatch ratio against internal and/or regulatory
requirements

- Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core
level of the deposit portfolio

- Projecting the liquidity ratio regularly for the short to medium
term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and to ensure
the ratio is within statutory requirements and internal triggers

- Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix

- Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product

- Maintaining high-quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities as a cushion against unexpected
funding needs. The amount of high quality liquid assets that the
Group maintains is determined with reference to the statutory
requirement and the results of the liquidity stress tests

- Maintaining access to the interbank money market

- Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Monitoring the Group's collateral requirement. Periodically
assess and review the additional collateral required under credit
downgrade events. Based on the positions at 31 December
2014, in the event of a 2-notch downgrade, the impact on the
Group's additional collateral requirement is minimal

- Maintaining a contingency funding plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning indicators (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,
primarily from the core retail and corporate customer deposits. At
the same time, it also participates in wholesale funding through the
issuance of certificates of deposit (“CDs") so as to secure a stable
source of term funding. A total of HK$12.3 billion equivalent CDs were
issued in 2014 (2013: HK$13.3 billion). Deposit tenor mix and debt
maturities are regularly monitored to ensure there is an appropriate
funding maturity mix.

An appropriate level of liquidity ratio was always maintained to ensure
that the Group could handle sudden drains in market liquidity due to
adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2014, the Group's average
liquidity ratio was 64.9% (2013: 55.3%). The Group always maintains
sufficient cash and liquid positions as well as a pool of high-quality
assets as a liquidity cushion that can be liquidated in stress scenarios.

T -MER
Annual Report 2014

163



164

B TSR MY

43 TEERER (F)

() RBESEBRERE (&)
() WRIRER T HREIEL AV B ERBIEDHT
ATEMBADHTEAEEREZEE
HIA e THIR R -

HRRZZMAGEEHRS A w2 M
HE - MEPERANA AL BRI
MER TR Bit - ARORHBEY
PRIEGTESRRIRSRENAH] -

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period

at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual

maturity date.

As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or

deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,

the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected

dates of future cash flows.

T5E
The Group
2014
BAME 3EAMLE 1ENE
23f8A E1E B5E
3 months 1year 5 years
IBEE  1EAR orless o less orless  5EME ity
BE  Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over BES
Total ondemand ~ 1month  1month 3 months Tyear  5years  Undated
BT BT BETn B¥Tn B¥Tn  B%Tn  A¥Tn  A¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EE Assets
BARAEHRT  hRBIT  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMSBEENET  banksand other financial institutions 20,676,200 19,518,657 - - - - - 1,157,543
ERT RRBITREM  Placements with and advances to
SEMBNTERRES  banks central banks and other
financial institutions 43,893,840 - 22,533,026 15,597,146 5,763,668 - - -
REBREE Trading assets 3,291,332 3,280,780 - - - 8,348 - 2,204
REEFRBIR Loans and advances to customers and
EtERE other accounts 153,872,296 6,017,897 19,324,567 16,249,567 45,876,028 42,282,806 19,933,040 4,188,391
ARNEES Available-for-sale securities 26,513,380 - 1,839,021 6,987,625 3,831,146 12,493,724 1277642 84,222
e IE Tax recoverable 2,775 - - - 2,775 - - -
BEREEE Undated assets 891,048 - - - - - - 891,048
EEAE Total assets 249,140,871 28,817,334 43,696,614 38834338 55473617 54,784,878 21,210,682 6,323,408
g Liabilities
R A2 RRED Deposits and balances of banks and
k&R their financial institutions 4129401 1381394 595819 2,152,188 - - - -
EPER Deposits from customers 188,929,559 49,079,142 65,420,892 49,636,226 22,449,123 2,344,176 - -
RHARER Trading liabilties 2974807 2,974,807 - - - - - -
BEAENE Certificates of deposit issued 14,156,976 - 629282 3,761,041 6861723 2,904,930 - -
KHFE Current taxation 162,951 - - - 162,951 - - -
EtEE Other liabilities 7,777,093 - - - - - - 1777,093
ERER Loan capital 8,754,408 - - - - 4603713 4,150,695 -
EIARMAE Undated liabiltes 4327 - - - - . VY,
BE8E Total liabilities 226,889,522 53,435,343 66,645,993 55549455 29,473,797 9,852,819 4,150,695 7,781,420
EE-8EEE Asset-liability gap (24,618,009) (22,949,379) (16,715,117) 25,999,820 44,932,059 17,059,987

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(%)
A58
The Group
2014
EANE 3MEAMLE 1FHE
£3f8A BE EF
3 months 1year 5years
aE HEBEE  1EAR or less or less orless  SEKNL it
Repayable Within ~ butover ~ butover  butover Over A
Total ondemand ~ 1month ~ 1month 3 months Tyear  5years  Undated
BRTn BETn ERTn BETn ERTn B¥Tr  E¥Tn  BRTn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
He: Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
-BAATEEEES - incuded in available-
for-sale securities 4,104,439 - 199478 129,880 2,288,728 1,486,353 - -
ERES Debt securities
-BAARGAEEE - includedin rading assets 8,348 - - - - 8,348 - -
—BHATEEEES  -included inavailable-
for-sale securities 14,217,767 - 257,649 249,646 1,425,459 11,007,371 1,277,642 -
14,226,115 - 257,649 249,646  1,425459 11,015719 1,277,642 -
ERITENE Certificates of deposit issued
- AR FRE - included in non-trading
BERIERES debt securities issued 14,156,976 - 629282 3,761,041 6,861,723 2,904,930 - -
—Z—FR
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43 SERERERE (&) 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEAMREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RIZERTHIEELEBEER B ESIT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(&)
A58
The Group
2013

MEANLE 3EAME  1EME
23EA ks BYE

3months 1 year 5years
AEEE  1ERR of less or less orless  SEMLE B
8% Repayable Within -~ butover  butover  butover QOver B
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated

ARTT RRTT R¥Tn A¥Tn ARt BRTr A%Tn A%Tn
HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS'000

g Assets
BERERT BRET  Cash and balances with banks, central

REMSHEBOET  banksand otherfinancialinstitutions 12621484 10,776,921 - - - - - 1844563
TRT BRBIREM  Placements with and advances to

SEREBNERRES  banks central banks and other

financial institutions 46,089,324 - 17009988 13621681 15322497 35,158 - -

RERREE Trading assets 2398265 2395590 - - - - - 2675
ETARBERIRM  Securities designated at fair value

DhEERES through profit or loss 63,204 - - - 12927 - - 50277
REEFRBIR Loans and advances to customers and

EtEE other accounts 132531544 3301471 1274223 17018866 36643787 36514072 20392862 5918263
AHRHEES Available-for-sale securities 21661781 - 2335891 4253526 5119604 9174797 702201 75,762
e IE Taxrecoverable 6 - i} _ 6 B ) ]
BIRRHEE Undated assets 942298 - - - - - - 4098
EEEE Total assets 216307906 16473982 32188100 34804073 57008821 45724027 21095063 8833838
& Liabilities
HIREMEHMEESN  Deposits and balances of banks and

FRRER other financial institutions 7522382 1259888 4772373 1490121 - - - -
KPR Deposits from customers 154658966 42066739 48034181 39743724 21102404 3711918 - -
RHAREE Trading liabilities 1568640 1568640 - - - - - -
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 16175173 - - 2434127 11551910 2,189,136 - -
BETERES Debt securities isstied 1,151,253 - - - 1,151,253 - - -
RHERIE Current taxation 179,394 - - - 179,394 - - -
EnEE Other liabilites 9,206,405 - - - - - - 9206405
BRER Loan capital 8657552 - - - - T706 6379846 -
BIRRHAE Undated liabilities 12,124 - - - - - - 12,124
BESE Total liahilities 199131880 44895267 52806554 43667972 33984961 8178760 6379846 9218529
BE-EEEE Asset-liability gap (28421285 (20618450)  (8773899) 23,113860 37545267 14715217

166] RIERIT(EIFR)BRAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(%)
A5H
The Group
2013
EANLE 3EAME  1EME
£3fEA el E5F
3months 1 year 5years
AEEE  1ERR of less or less orless  SEMLE B
8% Repayable Within -~ butover  butover  butover QOver B
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
AETT BT A¥Tn BT AETn A% B%Tn  A¥Tr
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
H: Of which:
BENETR Certificates of deposit held
B ATEEEESE - incduded in available-
for-sale securities 6,140,890 - 379,976 678576 3468203 1,614,135 - -
EEES Debt securities
-t ABEAREBEE - incuded in securities designated at
DRMALEEMES  fairvalue through profit or loss 63,04 - - - 12927 - - 50277
—BHATMHERS  -included in available-
for-sale securities 11,231,492 - 280245 1036983 1651401 7,560,662 702,201 -
11,294,69% - 280245 1036983 1664328 7560662 702,201 50,277
ERTERE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAERBRE - included in non-trading
BETERESR debt securities issued 16,175,173 - - 2434127 11551910 2189136 - -

—E-FR
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43 SERERERE (&) 43  Financial risk management (continued)
() FBELRRER (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RIEER T HIREIEL B EEN B EST () Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(&)
K17
The Bank
2014
WEARL 3fEAMLE 1ML
E3f8A 3k B5E
3 months 1year 5years
IBEE  1EAR orless o less orless  SELE B
f%E Repayable  Within  butover  butover  butover Over A
Total ondemand ~ 1month  1month 3 months Tyear  5years  Undated
B¥Tn BETR AR BETn E¥Tn BETr  E¥Tn  BRTn
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EE Assets
BERAERT wRET  Cashand balances with banks, central
REWSBMENLET  banksand other financial institutions 22,390,107 22,350,381 - - - - - 39,726
R PRETREM  Placements with and advances to
SREBHTEIREZE  banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 40,146,716 - 21,240,759 14,533,457 4,372,500 - - -
REREEE Trading assets 3,260,566 3,259,014 - - - 8,348 - 2,204
REENRBIR Loans and advances to customers and
EtiEE other accounts 138,604,532 5,995,370 17,820,362 14,443,387 42,749,340 39,080,202 14,985372 3,530,499
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 24,892,476 - 1839021 6875466 3495363 11320762 1,277,642 84222
G NGE ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 9576105 934949 72074 6021280 1518660 930,492 - 98650
EAAMEE Undated assets 2,103,835 - - - - - - 2103835
BEMAE Total assets 240,983,337 32,539,714 40,972,216 41,873,590 52,135,863 51,339,804 16,263,014 5,859,136
&R Liabilities
FIREMEBEESN  Deposits and balances of banks and
ERReR other financial institutions 4129401 1381394 595819 2,152,188 - - - -
KPR Deposits from customers 182,295,968 48,201,039 64,868,109 48,718,845 20,467,785 40,190 - -
RSEREE Trading liabilities 2,932,304 2,932,304 - - - - - -
BEIERE Certificates of deposit issued 14,156,976 - 629282 3761041 6861723 2,904,930 - -
REIFIE Current taxation 157,610 - - - 157,610 - - -
b= U Other liabilities 7,271,501 - - - - - - 71271,501
ERHER DA Amounts due to subsidiaries 268480 200659 33,618 - 1,678 - - 355
ERER Loan capital 8,754,408 - - - - 4,603,713 4,150,695 -
BIRANEE Undated liabiities 2,658 - - - - - - 2,658
SEEE Total liabilities 219,969,306 52,715,396 66,126,828 54,632,074 27,488,796 7,548,833 4,150,695 7,306,684
EE-8EEE Asset-liability gap (20,175,682) (25,154,612) (12,758,484) 24,647,067 43,790,971 12,112,319
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(&)
A7
The Bank
2014
WEANE 3MEAMLE 1EHE
£3f3A BE EsF
3 months 1year 5 years
HEEE  EAR orless  orless  orless  SEBE EEH
@5 Repayable  Within  butover  butover  butover Over GE
Total ondemand  1month  Tmonth  3months 1year 5years  Undated
B¥Tn BMTR AN BETn E%Tn B¥Tr  B¥Tn  B¥Tn
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
H: Of which:
BENERR Certificates of deposit held
-BAATHIEERES  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 4,104,439 - 199,478 129,880 2,288,728 1,486,353 - -
EHBES Debt securities
-BHAARGREEE - includedin rading assets 8,348 - - - - 8,348 - -
~BAATEEEES  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 12,596,863 - 257649 137,487 1,089,676 9,834,409 1,277,642 -
12,605,211 - 257,649 137,487 1,089,676 9,842,757 1,277,642 -
BRIESE Certificates of deposit issued
- AR ARG - included in non-trading
BRTERES debt securities issued 14,156,976 - 629,282 3,761,041 6,861,723 2,904,930 - -
—Z—FR
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43 SERERERE (&) 43  Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBELEBRESE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RIZERTHIEELEBEER B ESIT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(%)
Af7
The Bank
2013
EANLE 3EAME  1EME
£3fEA el E5F
3months 1 year 5years
AEEE  1ERR of less or less orless  SEMLE B
8% Repayable Within -~ butover  butover  butover QOver B
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
AETT BT A¥Tn BT AETn A% B%Tn  A¥Tr
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
g Assets
BERAEHT mRET  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMERILENLT banks and other financial institutions 12,596,762 12,530,636 - - - - - 66,126
T mRETREMR  Placements with and advances to
SEMENETRSBE  banks central banks and other
financial institutions 41078733 - 14903988 12,040,655 14,134,090 - - -
RHFGEE Trading assets 2361092 2358417 - - - - - 2675
ETABBRRIRE  Securities designated at fair value
N EENESR through profit o loss 63,204 - - - - - 50T
XFEFRBIR Loans and advances to customers and
At other accounts 116349957 3300731 12323216 15560794 31476002 33263223 15352850 5,073,141
I ERS Available-for-sale securities 20,639,086 - 2335891 4253526 5119604 8,152,102 702,201 75,762
BUHEARZA Amounts due from subsidiaries 9,069,712 827,605 250178 5747224 702916 144219 - 99,593
EIPOBEE Undated assets 2,158,247 - - - - - - 2158247
BEAT Total assets 204316793 19017389 29813273 37602199 51445539 42857521 16055051 7525821
8f Liabilities
FIREMSBEES  Deposits and balances of banks and
FRRLER other financial institutions 7239589 1259888 4489580 1490121 - - - -
BPEH Deposits from customers 145204480 40917240 47204100 37924491 18561562 577,004 - -
RoREaE Trading liablties 1540175 1540175 - - - - - -
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 16,175,173 - - 2834127 11551910 2189136 - -
BRIEBER Debt securiies issued 1,151,253 - - - 151053 - - -
REHIA Current taxation 163,447 - - - 163447 - - -
Ehafk Other liabilities 8,180,087 - - - - - - 8180087
ENHEARIZE Amounts due to subsidiaries 236823 177015 25617 - 1676 - - 32515
EHER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - - - T006 6379846 -
BRARSAR Undated liabilities 10062 - - - - - - 10062
EEEH Total liabilities 188558650 43894320 51739297 41848739 31429848 5043936 6379846 8222664
EE-BEEE Asset-liability gap (24876931) (21926024)  (4,246540) 20015691 37813585 9,675,205
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(%)
Af7
The Bank
2013
EANLE 3EAME  1EME
£3fEA RIF B5F
3months 1 year 5years
AEEE  1ERR of less or less orless  SEMLE B
8% Repayable Within -~ butover  butover  butover QOver B
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
AETT BT A¥Tn BT AETn A% B%Tn  A¥Tr
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Hh: Of which:
BENETR Certificates of deposit held
B ATEEEESE - incduded in available-
for-sale securities 6,140,890 - 379976 678576 3468203 1,614,135 - -
EEES Debt securities
-t ABEAREBEE - incuded in securities designated at
DRMALEEMES  fairvalue through profit or loss 63,04 - - - 12927 - - 50277
—~BEAARLERS  -included in available-
for-sale securities 10,208,797 - 280245 1036983 1651401 653797 702,201 -
10,272,001 - 280245 1036983 1664328 6537967 702,201 50,277
ERTERE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAERBRE - included in non-trading
BETERESR debt securities issued 16,175,173 - - 2434127 11551910 2189136 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(0 RBESEAMREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i)  ZEEEFERBRST (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities
AT B FIEREA R 9 AT R AN R & 2 R The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash
THERBENZERENE LR flows of the Group's or the Bank's financial liabilities on the basis
Az # TR AENARITRIRERE © of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

A5H
The Group
2014
AN L 3EANL 1ML
B3fAA 353 333
BeTEHR I EAR 3months 1year 5 years SERE
Gross Repayable Within orless but o less but o less but Over
cash flows on demand Tmonth  overTmonth  over3months over 1 year 5 years
BT TR EBTR BBTR 8T BETT EBTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIREMSBERE  Depositsand balances of banks
HERRER and otherfinancial insttutions 4,150,140 1,381,394 595,898 2,172,848 - - -
ZEER Deposits from customers 190,269,519 49,079,143 65,632,160 49,942,437 23,158,777 2,457,002 -
BRTEE Certificates of deposit issued 14,508,082 - 648,676 3,858,283 6,994,445 3,006,678 -
BEER Loan capital 10,894,029 - - 45,07 451,192 6,387,441 4,010,325
TELBTE Derivative financial instruments 1,806,063 - 90,030 218,286 307,138 1,130,089 60,520
221,627,833 50,460,537 66,966,764 56,236,925 30,911,552 12,981,210 4,070,845
A58
The Group
2013
MHANE EAME 1ENE
B3fEA 2% 5%
ReneLR PEEE 1AM 3months T year 5 years SENE
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but Over
cash flows ondemand Tmonth ~ overTmonth  over3months over 1 year 5years
BT BRI BRI BRI BT BETTL BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FIREMEREE  Deposits and balances of banks
HERRER and other financial nstitutions 753147 1259888 4777835 1493524 - - -
2R Deposits from customers 155,505,707 4066739 48173568 39973009 21490876 3801515 -
BRETELE Certificates of deposit issued 16470729 - 11,198 2485408 1174240 231703 -
BENERES Debt securities issued 1,194,144 - - 11454 1,182,690 - -
ERER Loan capital 11,389,761 - - 45,068 451171 4220943 6,672579
fESRTA Derivative financial instruments 2512443 - 38593 230,189 313,749 1,657,285 2712627
194,604,031 43,326,627 53,001,194 44238652 35180906 11911446 6,945,206

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities

(continued)
Af
The Bank
2014
fEANUE 3EAML 180
53R :3}:3 [3]:3
Rehean IBEE EAR 3 months 1year 5years SENE
Gross Repayable Within or less but o less but orless but Over
cash flows on demand Tmonth  overimonth  over3months over 1 year 5 years
EBTn EBTn EBTR ERTR EBTR EBTR EBTn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIREMSEERE  Depositsand balances of banks
WEZRAER and other financial institutions 4,150,140 1,381,394 595,898 2,172,848 - - -
ZERR Deposits from customers 183,402,422 48,201,039 65,072,023 49,002,220 21,084,527 42613 -
BEAHNE Certificates of deposit issued 14,508,082 - 648,676 3,858,283 6,994,445 3,006,678 -
BRAR Loan capital 10,894,029 - - 45,07 451,192 6,387,441 4,010,325
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,806,063 - 90,030 218,286 307,138 1,130,089 60,520
ERHBARNE Amount due to subsidiaries 235,956 200,658 33,618 - 1,680 - -
214,996,692 49,783,091 66,440,245 55,296,708 28,838,982 10,566,821 4,070,845
AT
The Bank
2013
1AL SEALE 1ENE
£3f8A 1% 55
Benels ARER 1HAR 3Imonths 1 year 5 years SELLE
Gross Repayable Within orless but orless but or less but QOver
cash flows on demand Tmonth  overmonth  over3 months over 1 year 5 years
BETT BETT BETT BETTL BETT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PAREMSTEEE  Deposits and balances of banks
HETRER and other financial institutions 7,048425 1,259,888 4495013 1493524 - - -
REEN Deposits from customers 145,876,126 40917242 47350520 38,112,217 18903,008 593,139 -
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 16470729 - 11,198 2485408 11742420 2231703 -
BRTERES Debt securities issued 1,194,144 - - 11454 1,182,690 - -
BHEX Loan capital 11,389,761 - - 45,068 451171 4220943 6672579
TERBIA Derivative financial instruments 2512443 - 38593 230,189 313,749 1,657,285 272607
ERBARE Amount due to subsidiaries 204309 177015 25617 - 1677 - -
184,895,937 42,354,145 51,920,941 42,377,860 3259715 8,703,070 6,945,206
—E-MFR 173
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business

- tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group as
a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated by its
local banking supervisor. The HKMA requires that the Group maintain
three prescribed minimum risk-weighted capital ratios: Common
Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and Total capital
ratio. Moreover, the HKMA would implement two newly introduced
capital buffers under Basel Ill, namely capital conservation buffer and
countercyclical capital buffer. Such would be gradually phased in
from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019.

The Group adopts the standardised approach of calculating market
risk in its trading portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. Banking operations
are categorised as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted
assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek
to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance
sheet exposures.
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(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to comply with the risk-based
supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated by the HKMA,
the Group conducts ICAAP, which assesses the capital add-on
required for Pillar 2 risks and hence the minimum capital requirement.
Moreover, as part of the capital management policy and to ensure
capital adequacy, the Group conducts capital planning annually,
which takes into account the strategic focus, future business growth
and regulatory requirement. The plan covers the issuance of capital
instruments if required, to ensure the Group's capital ratios are well
above their respective internal triggers and regulatory minimum
and trigger ratios. Regular stress testing is performed to ensure that
the impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the risk profile and
capital position is considered. Stress testing also gives an insight into
the potential impact of significant adverse events and how these
could be mitigated.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio. There have been
no material changes in the Group'’s policy on the management of
capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2014 were computed on
the consolidated basis of the Group and some subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, and are well above the minimum
required ratios set by the HKMA.
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(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management

Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

Governance framework

The Group has established an Operational Risk Governance Framework
("ORGF") to identify, assess, manage, monitor and report operational
risk. The ORGF encompasses every member within the Group and is
governed by policies and guidelines which document the minimum
requirements to ensure a consistent approach to manage operational
risks. Operational risk management ("ORM") relevant matters are under
the oversight of the CRMC, a subcommittee of the Board of Directors,
and the Operational Risk Management Committee (“ORMC"), a
committee led by management. The Group’s ORM plans and tools are
approved by the ORMC and endorsed by the CRMC. Implementation
of ORM plans and tools is driven by the Group’s ORM department and
senior management of business and support units.

Management of operational risk

Day-to-day operational risk management lies with our business and
support units and the Operational Control Officer (“OCO") (renamed as
the Operational Risk and Control Head (“ORCH") in September 2014)
of each unit assists the respective heads in this regard.

The ORM Department assists management in meeting their
responsibility of understanding and managing operational risk
and ensuring the development and consistent application of
operational risk policies, processes and procedures throughout the
Group. Business and support units are responsible for monitoring
operational risk and tracking Key Risk Indicators in their areas. The
ORM Department monitors the Group's overall operational risk
exposures and ensures that all material risks are promptly and
appropriately escalated to the risk management committees and
senior management of the Group for their attention.

The Audit Department examines and evaluates the adequacy and
control effectiveness of the ORGF on an ongoing basis.
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk management (continued)

A web-based learning programme on operational risks is required
for all new joiners and an annual refresher of ORGF is compulsory for
all staff. Training workshops led by the ORM Department for all staff
have also been introduced with the objectives of raising operational
risk awareness and enriching employees’ understanding of the ORGF,
and their roles, responsibilities and accountabilities. This is further
reinforced by strong, visible management support, which encourages
staff to embrace and pursue operational excellence.

Risk assessments are conducted on all outsourcing activities and new
product programs.

Tools and methodologies
The Group measures, monitors and reports on operational risk
through the ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk Self-Assessment ("ORSA") is a tool to identify,
measure and assess the level of risk and effectiveness of control.
ORSA has been rolled out across the business and major
support units under the guidance of the ORM department.
ORSA leaders are nominated by the management of each
business and support unit to conduct self-assessments bi-
annually and identify Key Risk Factors in their daily business and
support functions. Each Risk Factor is assessed and quantified
for financial impact, in terms of the estimated loss impact of
each occurrence and estimated number of occurrences. In
addition to the financial impact assessment, non-financial
impacts including customer, regulatory and reputation impacts
are also assessed, taking into considerations of both likelihood
of the risk materialising and severity of the impact.

- Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs") are statistical tools that take various
risk factors into consideration and serve to provide early
warning signals for management’s monitoring and action.
Through regular monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential
operational control weaknesses can be identified at an early
stage and addressed promptly.

KRIs are developed at two levels: Group level and Business Unit
& Support Unit level. The two form a fundamental part of the
Bank's operational risk management framework.
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(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)
Tools and methodologies (continued)

Group level KRIs are identified and established by the ORM
department, approved by the ORMC and implemented across
the Group. Group level KRIs are identified and established by the
ORM department, approved by the ORMC and implemented
across the Group. The Group level KRI model covers the

following major risk classes:

Process

Risks originating from deficiencies in the Group's
processes, as a result of ineffective design and
management, or errors in execution

External fraud
Risks associated with wrongful acts by third parties to
achieve unfair or unlawful gain

Internal fraud

Risks originating from improper conduct, criminal acts
and other unauthorised activities, with the intention of
personal benefit

Human resources

Risks associated with the management of human
resources, including compliance with labour, health,
safety and anti-discrimination regulations

Business practices

Risks originating from the failure to meet customers’
expectations due to inadequate practices in the sale of
products and the provision of services

Ineffective technology

Risks originating from ineffective system and technology,
whether in terms of design or performance of hardware,
software, the network or communications

Business Unit & Support Unit level KRIs (BU/SU KRIs) are
developed by the respective units having taken into account
the ORSA results, and are monitored and tracked for progress
towards completion of applicable mitigation plans. Thresholds
are established for each BU/SU KRI by reference to the business’
willingness to accept the risk level of each risk factor.
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(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

Tools and methodologies (continued)

- Operational risk incidents are reported into a centralised
operational loss database called the Incident Reporting
System (“IRS"). Through the IRS, the ORM department ensures
all operational risk incidents are properly investigated, with
corrective and preventive actions promptly executed according
to agreed timelines. The IRS data serves as a centralised
database to produce regular reports for senior management,
ORMC and CRMC review of impact of significant incidents
and monitoring of the operational risk trends. An escalation
protocol is in place to ensure that operational risk incidents with
significant impact are reported to the regulatory authorities, if
deemed necessary.

- Operational Risk Dashboard ("ORD") provides management with
an overview of the key operational risk issues and the progress
of the ORSA reviews and KRI evaluation results. This information
is submitted to the ORMC and CEO on a monthly basis and
relevant summarised information is submitted to the CRMC on
a quarterly basis as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update
Report. The Group-wide Risk Status Update Report captures the
implementation status of the ORM initiatives, contains analyses
on the trend of operational losses, highlights incidents that have
a material impact on the Group, and lists incident details during
the month.

With the endorsement of the long-term ORM road map and tools
obtained from the ORMC, the Management Committee and CRMC,
the Group continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational risk
management framework in line with industry developments, and will
work closely with its strategic shareholder and partner.

The Group's long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, encompassing identification,
assessment, mitigation and reporting, and thus achieve operational
excellence through continual robust operational risk management.

T -MER
Annual Report 2014

179



180

B TSR MY

43

TREREE (&)

EERREE
AEREERPAEERNEE S R EERRH
ERMEERE TR NBEET 2
THEGARER  RBETOENEEH NET
HELEKRNEETH - AEETHETR
A ARERASBH BRI 71 & &
FHDERMETE R TE - BHITHOEAE
[ERBRMZF - HASIIBRT Sl ZE
17« REBIRRIL T —IHE R 7 IARER
BRAE - BRI RERERRR - A%
EEAEAMMERREROREREMF X
RIARAIFIGERTATHERZES -
FEELAREEZEENEMERE

AITHYER A M A R AR E AT TR E T 5E
EHRAERNAER  URSHPIRIERE
ERNBR LR UIRBAMEIE - A
FER AR RIEHIEIE © 7£2014%5F - B 47
BRTEAR 2 LR A fn O HE D N T RS RV BIIAL
EZNRMUER S MEEEH - IMEEHK
AR AR SR B R TR B N AR N # RS 7
XEBHREER - HRE - SREINE
B2 EERNERT A RBCHREE R
EPBIBREMNEERTE - 20145 - VAR
BEERBBEERRTHNRTEZRHER
K IRAEN R IRR R RIBEE A KA Bk
B o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

43

(f)

Financial risk management (continued)

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, enhance its systems and processes, and
implement changes as necessary to meet the demands and create
awareness of such requirements. Regular reviews are conducted with
respect to the Group's policies and procedures to ensure the same
reflect the latest legal and regulatory requirements. Issuance of new or
substantially revised policies and procedures are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure legal
and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated. Any
significant matters that arise relating to such risks are reported as
appropriate by either the Legal or Compliance function to the Group's
Audit Committee, the CRMC or senior management.

The Legal Department (“Legal”) and Compliance Department
(“Compliance”) have been key partners in the business, providing
legal and compliance advice and support to all parts of the Group and
working with business and support units to ensure relevant controls
are in place. In 2014, Legal and Compliance were actively involved
in new product launches and new business initiatives, strategically
important transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing
arrangements as well as day-to-day matters arising from the Group's
business. Legal and Compliance will remain heavily involved in
monitoring and ensuring compliance with changing regulatory
requirements in various areas impacting the Group, and will continue
to advise and support the Group in meeting the legal and regulatory
challenges that lay ahead.
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(9)

Financial risk management (continued)

Strategic and reputational risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputation risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity and
information about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee the
Group's strategic and reputation risks. Senior management places
high priority on ensuring that the Group’s business and operational
strategies are appropriately defined and are executed professionally
and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly to enable
the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating and
regulatory environment. Business priorities, set on a bank-wide basis,
as well as for individual business and functional units, are aligned to
support the Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned
to ensure execution excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the
Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This includes
ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of customer
satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory compliance,
public communication and issues management.
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44 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(i) Fairvalue hierarchy

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are

made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

of the financial instruments and relevant market information.

Fair value is determined according to the following fair value

hierarchy:

The Group

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using

R2014E 12831 BNA R EESE

HREER TEMET
BZ12A31A ERMEHRE Ay ET BxnaE
NMEfE (E18) BRNRE (%38)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin (28%) Significant
Fairvalueat  active marketfor  Significant other unobservable
31December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BETR BRI BETR
REENNEETE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ROPGEE Trading assets
~-ERES - Debt securities 8,348 8,348 - -
~-REES - Investment funds 2,204 - - 2,204
—TETANEALEE - Positive fair value of derivatives 3,280,780 13,442 3,067,338 -
3,291,332 21,790 3,267,338 2,204
A EES Available-for-sale securities
-BENGERE - Certificates of deposit held 4,104,439 203,432 3,901,007 -
-BEH(BEMNEES - Treasury bills (including
Zi) Exchange Fund Bills) 8,106,952 8,106,952 - -
—EEES - Debt securities 14,217,767 12,683,088 1,530,679 4,000
—ERES - Equity securities 84,222 60,650 - 23,572
26,513,380 21,054,122 5,431,686 27,572
29,804,712 21,075,912 8,699,024 29,776
af Liabilities
ReFREE Trading liabilities
-ETANRRAEE - Negative fair value of derivatives 2,974,807 1375 2973432 -

182] HIEIRTT (EIR) BRA R
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44 PABEFENEHIA (&) 44
(@) HUAAREEENSHIA () (a)
()  BRGENAEE (E

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A5E

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

The Group

0131283185

NhBETE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2013 using

BREER TEMm*A
HZz1A3A REMISHE Eth 27 BROEE
DAEE (1) BRm3E (831)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin (F2) Significant
Fair value at activemarketfor  Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets ~ observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
REMDNAEETE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
ReMREE Trading assets
-KERe - Investment funds 2675 - - 2675
—TETAMERALEE - Positive fair value of derivatives 2,395,590 14736 2,380,854 -
2,398,265 14,736 2,380,854 2,675
RERBBBEMRE Securities designated at fair value
DR BENES through profit or loss
- EHES - Deb securities 63,204 12,927 - 50277
AREEES Available-for-sale securities
- RRNENE - Certificates of deposit held 6,140890 314,397 5826493 -
-BEH(BENEES ~Treasury bills (including
Zi) Exchange Fund Bills) 4213637 4213637 - -
-EHES - Debt securities 11231492 7,586,688 3640804 4,000
—EnEs - Equity securities 75,762 52,115 - 23647
21,661,781 12,166,837 9,467,297 27,647
24123250 12,194,500 11,848,151 80,599
8 Liabilities
ReMEEE Trading liabilities
—TETANAALEE - Negative fair value of derivatives 1,568,640 451 1,568,189 -

#HZE2014512 8318 X20134F12A31H
B RABEEBREBIRMEHF
IS EERNS R T AMNER -

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were

no significant transfers of financial instruments between Level 1

and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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44 AREEFENEBMIE (B) 44 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
(@) UXAREBEENERIA (&) (@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)
() EBRFTELIEE (B () Fairvalue hierarchy (continued)

ARBEGTERESR TR
MEETSERRE - ERBE
H Bl —REXEN - RETIIAQ

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are

made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

of the financial instruments and relevant market information.

REEBRUEEAAEE Fair value is determined according to the following fair value
hierarchy:
xf
The Bank
R2014F 12831 BN R A EETE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using
RREE® TEMHEA
BZ128318 RRETSHE At ET BENEE
NMEfE (E18) BRNEE (%38)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin ($24) Significant
Fairvalueat  active marketfor  Significant other unobservable
31December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BRI BT BETR
CEMARBEHE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&E Assets
RHBLEE Trading assets
—EKES - Debt securities 8,348 8,348 - -
-RERES - Investment funds 2,204 - - 2,204
~FETAMEARERE - Positive fair values of derivatives 3,259,014 13,442 3,245,572 -
3,269,566 21,790 3,245,572 2,204
AREEES Available-for-sale securities
—RENENE - Certificates of deposit held 4,104,439 203,432 3,901,007 -
-BlEH(BEMNERES - Treasury bills (including
ZK) Exchange Fund Bills) 8,106,952 8,106,952 - -
-EEES - Debt securities 12,596,863 11,062,184 1,530,679 4,000
N Fitopa - Equity securities 84,222 60,650 - 23,572
24,892,476 19,433,218 5,431,686 27,572
28,162,042 19,455,008 8,677,258 29,776
=15 Liabilities
RE5BREE Trading liabilities
—TETANRALEE - Negative fair value of derivatives 2,932,304 1,375 2,930,929 -

184] HRIERIT (EIFR) BRAF
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(@) UXAREBEENERIA (&) (a)
()  BEBRAENAEE (&

Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

0]

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Af

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

The Bank

0131283185

RRBEE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2013 using

HREER TEMHEA
HE12A318 EEMSHE EtxER BRO¥E
RiEfE (F18) BENEE (£38)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin (F#2) Significant
Fair value at activemarketfor ~— Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets ~ observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
REMNAEETR Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
§E Assets
RHBEEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 2675 - - 2675
~STETANEAL(EE ~ Positive fair values of derivatives 2358417 14,736 2,343,681 -
2,361,092 14,736 2,343,681 2675
EThBRERARY Securities designated at fair value
DR BENES through profit or loss
- EBES - Debt securities 63,204 12,927 - 50277
ARLEES Available-for-sale securities
- RRNENE - Certificates of deposit held 6,140,890 314397 5,826,493 -
-BEH(BENEES - Treasury bills (including
ZE) Exchange Fund Bills) 4213637 4213637 - -
- ERES - Debt securities 10,208,797 6,563,993 3,640,804 4,000
—EREs - Equity securities 75,762 52115 - 23647
20,639,086 11,144,142 9,467,297 27,647
23,063,382 11,171,805 11,810978 80,599
=1 Liabilities
RHABEE Trading liabilities
—{TETAMB AR - Negative fair value of
EE derivatives 1,540,175 451 1,539,724 -

#H 22014128318 K2013512 8318
B ARBEERBVENEL
M 2BEEANESHTAEMNER -

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were

no significant transfers of financial instruments between Level 1

and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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44

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i)

Determination of fair value

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
either directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are
observable from market data. This category includes financial
instruments with quoted prices in active markets for similar
instruments; or quoted prices in markets that are considered
less than active for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation technigues using significant unobservable
inputs where the valuation techniques include one or more
significant inputs that are unobservable. This category includes
financial instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect the differences between
the instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, discounted
cash flow models and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters
used in estimating discount rates, bond price and foreign
currency exchange rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) Determination of fair value (continued)

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine the fair value of financial instruments are from
interest rates and currency swaps, which are observable market
data with high reliability, and do not require the significant
involvement of management’s judgement and estimation.
Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the
market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
derivatives and simple over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives
like interest rate swaps. However, the availability of observable
market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
markets, and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
valuation techniques where one or more significant market
inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these financial
instruments are structured investments, OTC structured
derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active
market. For valuation models involving significant unobservable
inputs, a high degree of management judgement or estimation
is required to select the appropriate valuation model, determine
the expected future cash flows on the financial instruments
being valued, determine the probability of counterparty default
and prepayments, and select the appropriate discount rates.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

FABENBEN
AABEAEZHRE
FEMFABRENEE Fair value
HEER Significant measurement sensitivity
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs to unobservable inputs
KEES Ko mE TEA TEA
Investment funds Broker quote Not applicable Not applicable
N . N mERNEREE LT
— RenEman T e R R R BIBIRE 24 (B
BEi5E , Forecasted cash flows and T , ‘
Discounted Significant increase in

Debt securities

cash flow model

RS (&)
Equity securities See note below

REERRIABEFENERES R
SEATHHEES  BXIERNERTS
ETEE - IRRZ RN MS - &
R EBENEERRIERE S RO P R
N REREMARNSN - Bt - £5
BEEMIFAERNBIEITLTERD -

estimated risk-free rate and

) ) the estimated risk-free rate
estimated risk-free rate

would result in a lower fair value

(7) i A
See note below Not applicable
Note:

Equity securities under level 3 fair value measurements are generally
classified as available-for-sale and are not traded in the active market.
In the absence of an active market, the fair value is estimated on the
basis of an analysis of the investee’s financial position, results and other
factors. Accordingly, it is not practical to quote significant unobservable
inputs.

—T-mEH
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44

(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

FEER A EEGTEEN (B) (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
TRETEIBAN @/”C BEERBRY The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to
N EAR R BIE) the closing balance for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy:
REERAS
The Group and the Bank
EEREBR
BHEUARY
DMEBENES
Securities
designated at fair
REREEE  valuethrough MRHERS ag
BE Assets Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
KEES EHES EHES Bid%
Investment funds ~ Debt securities  Debt securities  Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT BETT  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
12014518318 At 1 January 2014 2,675 50,277 4,000 23,647 80,599
A Purchases - - - - i
EH Sales (568) - - - (568)
rg Settlement - (51,137) - - (51,137)
RERFERN Changes in fair value recognised
NnBEE in the income statement
- BEMEESRER - Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - - - (75) (75)
-BERHBRERIGEHER - Gains less losses from trading securities 97 - - - 97
—IREARBERN - Net gain from financial instruments
REAAEEZ designated at fair value through
PBIAFYE profit or loss - 860 - - 860
R2014%12A31R At 31 December 2014 2,204 - 4,000 23,572 29,776
REEBRMBER Total gains or losses for the year
BERFAL included in the income statement
BREARERN for assets held at the end of the
BaREE reporting period recorded in:
-BENENERER - Gains less losses from dealing
in foreign currencies - - - (75) (75)
~BERHRBESNERER - Gains less losses from trading securities 97 - - - 97
—IREARRBERMN - Net gain from financial instruments
REAREEZ designated at fair value through
SRTAFNE profit or oss - 860 - - 860

FREIRT (B BRAH
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AREEFTENESRMIA (&) 44 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
DAREEYERNEHIA (&) (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) FEERALS EETEER (B) (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
REERAT
The Group and the Bank
RERER
BabiRE
AnEBENES
Securities
designated at fair
RHMBEE  valuethrough A EES ek
BE Assets Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
REES EHES EBES ERES
Investment funds ~ Debt securities ~ Debt securities  Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT BETT AT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R013F1 AR At 1 January 2013 2,662 47,383 4,000 23,620 78,165
EA Purchases n - R _ "
B Sales 217) - - - 217)
RERXRRL Changes in fair value recognised
AREEE in the income statement
-BENBWRAEE - Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - - - 27 27
-EERSAREFNEHER - Gains less losses from trading securities 218 - - - 218
— IR BRRRREMN - Net gain from financial instruments
RERREEZ designated at fair value through
cERTAENE profit or loss - 2394 - . 2,304
#2013%12831H At 31 December 2013 2675 50,277 4,000 23,647 80,599
REERNRER Total gains or losses for the year
BERERK included in the income statement
BREETREAN for assets held at the end of the
BmEs: reporting period recorded in:
-BENEWEREE - Gains less losses from dealing
in foreign currencies - - - 27 27
-BERHRREAWEHER - Gains less losses from trading securities 28 - - - 218
— IR BRRERMN - Net gain from financial instruments
RERAEEZ designated at fair value through
cERTAENE profit or loss - 2394 - . 2,304
“E-FH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(iv)

Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions

The fair value of Level 3 financial instruments is measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
based on observable market data. The following table shows
the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due to the
parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair value
to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

ARBRAS
The Group and the Bank

2014%F12A31H
31 December 2014

REMZERERBR

R R H R Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
B () B ()
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETR BETR BETR BETR
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHABEE Trading assets
-REES ~ Investment funds 220 (220) - -
AHHEES Available-for-sale securities
—BBES ~ Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EEES - Equity securities - - 2,357 (2,357)

FREIRT (B BRAH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(iv)  Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions (continued)

AEERAT
The Group and the Bank
2013% 128318
31 December 2013
REMZEK SR
Rz R R Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
B (AH) BH (7))
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
gE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHBBEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 268 (268) - -
EEARBER ARG Securities designated at fair value
DREENES through profit or loss
—ERES - Debt securities 5,028 (5,028) - -
AfHEES Available-for-sale securities
—EBEH - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EREH - Equity securities - - 2,365 (2,365)

HEARNEELATHELEERTA
ManBEMGEZEEN  BAREN
AARBRAIEERTRNRAEE

5 -

The Group and the Bank believe that their estimates of fair value
for the above financial instruments are appropriate but the
use of different methodologies or assumptions could lead to
different measurements of fair value.

—E-FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair value at 31 December 2014 and

2013 unless otherwise stated.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash; placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions;
loans and advances to customers; investments; and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair value of placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions is mainly priced at market interest rates,
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying value
approximate the fair value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which is
mainly repriced within 3 months, equals their carrying amount.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale securities (except for unlisted
available-for-sale debt/equity securities) are stated at fair value
in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(i) Financial liabilities

AAARRBREEAR -

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair value at 31
December 2014 and 2013, except as follows:

KEBRAKT
The Group and the Bank
2014
REEE
Carrying AREE R 24 38k
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BETT BT T BT T BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
ot =R Financial liabilities
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued
—ERHAE ~ Non-trading 14,156,976 14,189,910 - 14,189,910 -
BIEER Loan capital 8,754,408 9,062,529 9,062,529 - -
22,911,384 23,252,439 9,062,529 14,189,910 -
REE RATT
The Group and the Bank
2013
il ]
Carrying “rEE FR F2R FE3R
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT T BETIT BETIT BETIT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THREE Financial liabilities
EEITERE Certificates of deposit issued
—ERXFRE - Non-trading 16,175173 16,193,461 - 16,193,461 -
BEITEBKES Debt securities issued 1,151,253 1,160,906 644,634 516,272 -
BEBER Loan capital 8,657,552 8,878,150 8,878,150 - -
25,983,978 26,232,517 9,522,784 16,709,733 -
—Z—mEFR 193
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45 HTETAR 45 Derivatives
FRTETAEEEEENEE TREPIER The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers as
FRREREMEAEELEEBHN—FHES risk management products is an integral part of the Group’s business
By - EREERABEEREN IR & activities. These instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own
LT Bt @REEERNEE RS FAERNT exposure to market risk as part of its asset and liability management
HRE c NEBANEEITETEREF process. The principal derivative instruments used by the Group
EMEXBBANEL - TERBEINIZHNT are interest and foreign exchange rate-related contracts, which are
TR AEBEHWERISNEENITET primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates in exchange-
BEH) - REBKRZ BTFEEPHERNE traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have
HHhREEREAMBANETIRRR - 3t been entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these
FEMmE  STETEBYEIGEAFEEER and other trading positions. For accounting purposes, derivatives are
RS o classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.
(@) FTEIEMEZ=SHE (@) Notional amounts of derivatives
PTHET AERIERIE—IBZIBERBEESIE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
HHEERETEBENTEELK - ELT the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
BN ZBBERRARTHHRZRZE - LK amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
REREEE transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
N TRAEERATERBEFETAETANS The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
BEENE significant type of derivative entered into by the Group and the Bank:
N3]
The Group
2014 2013
2t (B3 Hin(85
BEEE) BIEEE)
REH Others b=Eap Others
t=Yo) (including e (including
Held for held for Fokc) Held for held for B
hedging trading) Total hedging trading) Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ERfTETHE Currency derivatives
EHRS Forwards - 139,047,500 139,047,500 - 113489808 113489808
BHR5 Swaps - 178,135,526 178,135,526 - 133263896  133,263,8%
PNl Options purchased - 38,197,706 38,197,706 - 47,659,426 47,659,426
B Options written - 34,182,827 34,182,827 — 47040492 47040492
FEHTETE Interest rate derivatives
BEHRRHERS Forwards/Futures - 38,771 38,771 - - -
e Swaps 10,304,627 42,181,334 52,485,961 10200952 64,109,402 74310354
BAHIE Options purchased - - - - - _
il Options written - 77,541 77,541 - - -
10,304,627 431,861,205 442,165,832 10,200,952 405,563,024 415,763,976
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(a) FTTETANBREE (B)

Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Derivatives (continued)

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)

A7
The Bank
2014 2013
Hit (&% Hin (85
BEEE) RHEEE)
AE Others At Others
A  (including HEE (including
Held for held for ok Held for held for Fek
hedging trading) Total hedging trading) Total
BRI BETT BT BT BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ER{TETIR Currency derivatives
BHR S Forwards - 138,672,268 138,672,268 - 11,256,403 11,256,403
BHZ 5 Swaps - 174,540,051 174,540,051 - 132734061 132,734,061
B A Options purchased - 38,197,706 38,197,706 - 47659426 47,659,426
B Options written - 34,182,827 34,182,827 — 47040492 47040492
FETETR Interest rate derivatives
RHRHERS Forwards/Futures - 38,771 38,771 - - -
BHR 5 Swaps 10,304,627 42,204,569 52,509,196 10200952 64035329 74236281
BB Options purchased - - - - - -
B Options written - 77,541 77,541 - - -
10,304,627 427,913,733 438,218,360 10200952 302725711 312,926,663

RHBEAKERATHERTASEER
AR ARTEPHNRZESHNERTE
PMELNEE  URBEHEMRZHITE
MFANEE -

Trading includes the Group's and the Bank's proprietary positions

in financial instruments, positions which arise from the execution of

trade orders from customers and market making, and positions taken

in order to hedge other elements of the trading book.
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(b) FTEIENAIAEEREGERRMNEREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Derivatives (continued)

(b) Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

bS]
The Group
2014 2013

FERK EERR
AAEE AREE MEBE AREE AnEE IEEE
BE 8fF  Creditrisk- BE BfF  Creditrisk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BT BT BT BETFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEfTETA Interest rate derivatives 322,251 52,102 306,374 309,391 143713 337,855
EXR{TAETA Currency derivatives 2,958,529 2,922,705 6,651,175 2,086,199 1,424,927 5,717,249
3,280,780 2,974,807 6,957,549 2,395,590 1,568,640 6,055,104

(HEE20) (FfHEE29) (Fft5E20) (FiE29)

(note 20) (note 29) (note 20) (note 29)

¥V
The Bank
2014 2013

FERR EERR
AREE AREE MEBE ARnfEE AnfEE ISR
BE &%  Creditrisk- BE =R Credit risk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BT BETR BT BETT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEfTETA Interest rate derivatives 321,199 52,469 295,514 305,647 144,049 324,046
EXRTAETA Currency derivatives 2,937,815 2,879,835 6,600,865 2,052,770 1,396,126 5,663,814
3,259,014 2,932,304 6,896,379 2,358,417 1,540,175 5,987,860

(HEE20) (FfHEE29) (Pt5E20) (FiEE29)

(note 20) (note 29) (note 20) (note 29)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Derivatives (continued)

(b)

(9]

Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives
(continued)

The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
adequacy, and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(2013: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
from 0% to 150% (2013: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate
and other derivatives contracts.

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
during the year, and accordingly, these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.

Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The following is a summary of the fair value of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group and the
Bank:

AEBRAST
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
AREE AREE ~rfEE ~rfEE
BE =L BE afE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BET T BT T BT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FEEH Interest rate contracts 301,925 37,532 267,383 74,983

A BEEHEEEMEREETETH
FAELBEND L BEEEDSHELBT
IR B LA RIS o

Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used

to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate assets

or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.
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45 {THEIR (&) 45 Derivatives (continued)

(d) FTTEIEMERTEH (d) Remaining life of derivatives
TRIEHEAEERATRES B EET The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
(BREEENR TEEBHENE) 2oy derivatives of the Group and the Bank by relevant maturity grouping,
PMETERZRSRBON - based on the remaining periods to settlement at the end of the

reporting period:

F5H
The Group
2014 2013
BTEANEREH BRTEHNAESE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

1L 14 F

B5E ELES
#BE 1FHUT Overlyear  5FHE B8 1FHUAT  Overlyear  SEBLE
Total 1yearorless to5years Over5 years Total Tyearorless  to5years Over5years

RRTL  ORMTR  ORWTR  BWTR  BNTR  BNTR  #MTR  #%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FIRGTETER  Interest rate derivatives 52,602,273 30,383,764 18,341,458 3,877,051 74310354 35555991 32,551,370 6,202,993
[ER{TETA  Currency derivatives 389,563,559 289,581,827 99,981,732 - 341453622 227,156,402 114,297,220 -
442,165,832 319,965,591 118,323,190 3,877,051 415763976 262,712,393 146,848,590 6,202,993
&1
The Bank
2014 2013
BRTFANEREH BRTFEHNEESR
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

1550 E 1EHRE

B5F 55
@E  1EHUT  Over1year SENRE @B 1FHAT  Overlyear SENRE
Total 1yearorless to5years Over5 years Total Tyearorless  to5years Over5years
B¥TRT BETz B%Tn E%Tx  BETT  ABRTx A%t BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIRGTETR  Interest rate derivatives 52,625,508 30,386,871 18,361,586 3,877,051 74236281 35487882  32,5454006 6,202,993
EXMTETE  Currency derivatives 385,592,852 285,611,120 99,981,732 - 338690382 224,697,015 113993367 -

438,218,360 315,997,991 118,343,318 3,877,051 412926663 260,184,897 146,538,773 6,202,993

198] HIERIT (B BRAF
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REEE  AENEAE 46
RHFENRBEEERERE ()
UTRBRETERRABENRAENANEHE

B -

Notes to the Financial Statements

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEEFEERER Direct credit substitutes 4,583,293 12,032,661 1,421,771 7,739,228
B SHMMETEE Transaction-related contingencies 681,837 1,007,433 681,837 1,007,433
WMESBEMMNEIEE Trade-related contingencies 2,046,934 3,822,937 2,045,792 3,811,221
E fth A - Other commitments:
— IRIT AR AR BB — which are unconditionally
I ER AR cancellable or automatically
EE AR R cancellable due to deterioration
A B EEUE in the creditworthiness
of the borrower 84,205,202 68,522,761 83,410,874 67,950,363
—RE B R 15k — with an original maturity of
AR not more than 1 year 1,395,605 1,458,250 1,326,294 1,458,250
—REBARME1F AL — with an original maturity of
more than 1 year 1,476,055 1,014,658 1,476,055 1,013,581
94,388,926 87,858,700 90,362,623 82,980,076
=B R INFEEEE Credit risk-weighted amounts 3,466,453 5,840,792 2,770,149 4,851,437

HBERBEMAERREERRNTA 21
EMER - EREBMREHEENEREA
e W RHEREAR FEAZPREERE
BRPEONEERRAER - AHNEREEE
BHREIRIRELERPIERMEAZRR
MER - HRBERA AR
B MaHeRLIFRRRRRERE

BRI E = B R\ AN S5 A9 2 B hAE /i
0%Z150% (20134 : 0%ZE150%) T o

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2013: 0% to 150%).
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R20145F12A31H » ABEAMENRERE
ST X ARET SRR AR B & AR

Notes to the Financial Statements

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
(continued)

Capital commitments
Capital commitments for the purchase of properties and equipment
outstanding at 31 December 2014 not provided for in the financial

s statements are as follows:
AEE &7
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT I BET T T
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
BRI RETAY Authorised and contracted for 51,209 25,303 48,777 23,727
EREBKRETY Authorised but not contracted for 69 295 - -
51,278 25,598 48,777 23,727
() FHEFRE () Lease commitments

R2014F 1274318 - RETA#EREERE
JERRARRSZEA S AT ¢

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

AEH E3h
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT BT T BT BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
WEBEENRLLTHIBE® : Property leases expiring:

15X Within 1 year 234,981 239,909 218,502 225,397
T FESF After 1 year but within 5 years 654,638 705,692 630,260 700,036
5% After 5 years 219,610 338,024 219,610 338,024
1,109,229 1,283,625 1,068,372 1,263,457

RBBERUTHIRIH® © Equipment leases expiring:
1A Within 1 year 1,429 2,969 1,429 1,341
TFEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 1,149 2,678 1,149 2,176
2,578 5,647 2,578 3,517

AREERATRBEEHENTAHBZ R
WK - BRYELRENRTEEH
—RBIEF - AIRNEMR ERREENE &
Mo U EHEG TP RAARE -

(d) BEEEIERZENNEEME (d)
20144 K 2013124318 » REB K EKH
B R RIR B E S Al g H B BGIR U s
PRE R EHERITH o

200 RERAT (BBR) AR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The Group and the Bank lease a number of properties and items
of equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to nine years, with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The Group and its subsidiaries are not involved in any legal action
that would be significant to the financial position of the Group at 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2014, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which is
incorporated in mainland China.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these financial statements; and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes in
assumptions can have a significant impact on the financial statements
in the periods when the assumptions are changed. The application
of assumptions and estimates means that any selection of different
assumptions could cause the Group's reporting to differ. The Group
believes that the assumptions that have been made are appropriate,
and that the financial statements therefore present the financial
position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management held a discussion with the Audit Committee about
the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s significant
accounting policies and estimates, and the application of these
policies and estimates.

T -MER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

49 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 44 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to the fair value of financial instruments respectively.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
the accounting policy note 2(l). If management determines,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence of
impairment exists, expected future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management regularly reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of when
a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a
reasonable time period is judgement-based by nature, so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

49 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted
price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, is not
from a broker or dealer for non-exchange traded financial
instruments or from a readily available latest trading price, the
fair value is estimated using the present value or other valuation
techniques using current market parameters. The fair value
of structured investment vehicles is based on their net asset
value provided by investment managers, having taken into
consideration other risk factors.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values. Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, could be realised in an immediate sale of the
instruments.

—T-mEH
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50

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which were not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

HEF AR A RBER
Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

- (BRUBREELDZFEIERT20102201248H

- (BB EREER ) 2 FE(E5FT20112201347 51

- RIEFKEBGTERDE 65 M(FB G LR

38R BEE X AITE A IE )% |

- (BFAMBRE

- (BARAMBREENDESR M TA]

AEEEAEEELBTHERNRAE
MFE - BIBRIRL  BRCEBMEMEE
A 9% (2@ T A5 NEBBERM
EIERT MR B MR & KA MY BRI & X
TEREANTE -

FR20145F9H - BEGEHMAGEMCE B
SRR B [ MTA] KEX
I AE2EHERRR(EBM B HREE
BIY E395k (2@ T A - HRLAE] I8
ReMEERBBEZOEKTE SREE
AR R EE AR

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

RERNFE 1SR L HEE P A FATRA ]

20145F7 A1 H
1 July 2014
201447 A1H
1 July 2014
20165F1 H1H
1 January 2016

— Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle
— Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
- Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

— HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with 201791 A1 H
customers 1 January 2017

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 20185F1 H1H
1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements except for HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”).

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, which is the comprehensive standards to replace HKAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ("HKAS 39",
and includes requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

The classification and measurement of financial assets will depend
on the entity’s business model for their management and their
contractual cash flow characteristics and result in financial assets
being classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") or fair value through profit or
loss. The classification of financial liabilities is essentially unchanged,
except that, for certain liabilities measured at fair value, gains or losses
relating to changes in the entity’s own credit risk are to be included in
other comprehensive income.

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI, lease receivables, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition,
allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and guarantees)
is required for expected credit losses (“ECL") resulting from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (“12 month ECL").
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or
provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument ("lifetime ECL").

The assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition is performed for each reporting period by
considering the probability of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument, rather than by considering an
increase in ECL. As a result of the final HKFRS 9, the recognition and
measurement of impairment is intended to be more forward-looking
than under HKAS 39.

The general hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify hedge
accounting, creating a stronger link between it and risk management
strategy and permitting the former to be applied to a greater variety
of hedging instruments and risks.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

50 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

The classification and measurement and impairment requirements are
applied retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the
date of initial application, with no requirement to restate comparative
periods. Hedge accounting is generally applied prospectively from
that date.

The mandatory application date for the standard as a whole is 1
January 2018, but it is possible to apply the revised presentation
for certain liabilities measured at fair value at an earlier date. The
Group is currently assessing the impact that the rest of HKFRS 9 will
have on the financial statements, but due to the complexity of the
classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting
requirements and their inter-relationships, it is not possible to quantify
the potential effect at this stage.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit’, of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into effect
from the Bank’s first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014
(i.e. the Bank’s financial year which begins on 1 January 2015) in
accordance with section 358 of the Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it
has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will
primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in
the consolidated financial statements.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 19 March 2015.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial

Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital base

Capital adequacy ratios (“CARs") are complied with in accordance
with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the HKMA. The CARs are
computed on a consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of
its subsidiaries as required by the HKMA. The Bank has adopted the
“standardised approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount

for credit risk and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for

calculating operational risk.

2014 2013
BETT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZBERE—RENX: Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital:
T ERGEHE instruments and reserves
BEETA BB L AR Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
— BRI B REBEIRDSE plus any related share premium 7,566,271 7,566,271
R % A Retained earnings 11,895,973 9,208,893
WEREE Disclosed reserves 478,938 400,856
HBRZEREAZSERE—RER CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 19,941,182 17,176,020
EERE—RER  EERE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
EERIEEERELERIERE RS Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities 27,788 39,347
AEEZARBEEENAGEDN Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
EERRECMES NIES on fair valued liabilities (255,928) (165,522)
ESEZ/NTY Tﬁfﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁiiﬁz Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation of
MEEYMEENEFDEF land and buildings (own use and investment
properties) 108,282 105,440
—RRIRITRMREE B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 2,172,126 1,816,253
EEATETAEGHNNEBRES Debt valuation adjustments in respect of
HEFAE derivative contracts 5,536 1,141
ZERE-RERLERBERERE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 2,057,804 1,796,659
TERE—RER CET1 capital 17,883,378 15,379,361
BEHh—REX Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”) capital
BH—REXBE Total AT1 capital 2,313,467 -
—mEx Tier 1 capital 20,196,845 15,379,361
BN TEREE Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BEWRZHER Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments
KMIEERD RE plus any related share premium 7,277,935 7,893,661
AN EEEGHEFE LM Reserve attributable to fair value gains
MY E £ HE A on revaluation of holdings
EhfFEE of land and buildings 48,727 47,448
BER_AER—MRRITER Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
A REEE reserve for general banking risks eligible
KEEEEE for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,942,736 1,752,118
HMBRREAT N R ER Tier 2 capital base before deductions 9,269,398 9,693,227
ZHRER EERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ZREREETERIE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital - -
ZHREKR Tier 2 capital 9,269,398 9,693,227
BEARBE Total capital
(BRBHE=- —REXN+ ZREX) (Total capital = Tier 1 + Tier 2) 29,466,243 25,072,588
—E_pyER 207
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BB RIZIBASNA B HE /B B (L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(A) EXZR (&) (A) Capital adequacy (continued)
(i) FEEIESE (i) Risk-weighted amount
2014 2013
BT BB T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FERR ~ Credit risk 156,635,831 141,390,871
— M5 EkR ~ Market risk 4,913,000 3,413,838
—ZERMR - Operational risk 9,042,513 7,425,588

170,591,344 152,230,297

(iiiy EXRFTEEEZER (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2014 2013
Lk —RE AR X CET1 capital ratio 10.5% 10.1%
—RERLLE Tier 1 capital ratio 11.8% 10.1%
BER = Total capital ratio 17.3% 16.5%
(ivy EXxTH (iv) Capital instruments
REE T RRE-RER  BIN—REXR The following is a summary of the Group’s CET1, Additional Tier 1
BHERZMERNTHELENT Capital Securities and Tier 2 capital instruments.
20145 2013%F
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EITRTHEBERE-—HRELRIA CET1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
iR Ordinary shares:
BETT R R EAA7,283,341,1760%  7,283,341,176 issued and fully paid ordinary shares 7,566,271 7,283,341
20145 2013%F
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B —REXES Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
T {B 3 7T.300,000,0007T A 7k A& AU Undated non-cumulative subordinated
IEREREELRES capital securities with US$300 million 2,310,168 -

208 RFERAT (BIFR) AR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(A) BEXZZ (&)

(iv)

(v)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

EXTR (&) (iv) Capital instruments (continued)
20145 20134
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
—REATA Tier 2 capital instruments
RITEEAT Issued by the Bank
— 2020 F R EAR B — Subordinated note due 2020
(BRMEIE : 3=4500,000,0007T) (nominal value: US$500 million) 4,150,696 4,098,142
—F2022F B HiR B =5 - Subordinated note due 2022
(BRMEIE : 3=4300,000,0007T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,291,268 2,277,706
— 2024 F R BR1E (B2 — Subordinated note due 2024
(BRMEIE : 3=4300,000,0007T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,312,444 2,281,704
8,754,408 8,657,552

REEHRTE BB KA XEEEE
K17 48 Ihwww.cncbinternational.com X
[EEEEAHE] —& - HE @D
BEARTH UERAKEZD AN 2 B#RE
MEL CERER - [EEBEARER] HH

W E BIE T TIER

- AREEARATAZEZRHEHNERIE -

B AGA ©

- RAZERERWBEERREEAS -
B ERRE-RER  BI—RE
BE o ZHREXR - LANEERIA

- RAZEREBRWBERREEAS -
ERnFHEEEEERERFLNE

ERETER o

(v) Additional information

To comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules (“BDR"), the Group has

& established “Regulatory Disclosure” section on its corporate website,
NEEE www.cncbinternational.com, and included all the information

relating to the disclosure of regulatory capital instruments and the

reconciliation to the Group’s published financial statements. The

Regulatory Disclosure section will include the following information:

conditions of the Group's capital instruments.

A description of the main features and the full terms and

A detailed breakdown of the Group's CET1 capital, Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities, Tier 2 capital and regulatory deductions,
using the standard template as specified by the HKMA.

A full reconciliation between the Group’s accounting and
regulatory balance sheet, using the standard template as
specified by the HKMA.

—B-mEH
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

(vi)

Basis of consolidation

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
annual financial report is prepared according to the consolidation
basis for accounting purposes. The main difference between the
consolidation basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that
the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter
includes the Bank and only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which

are discussed as follows:

The HKMA has granted approval under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking
(Capital) Rules for the Bank to calculate its CAR on a solo consolidated
basis instead of on a solo basis in respect of the following subsidiary:

20145128318
At 31 December 2014

Total assets Total equity

BETT BETT

MEAREE Names of subsidiary TEEH Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
BREEERAR Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —#IBRE - Mortgage financing 23,419 1,365

H—HE - ATARERITE (élei) 1*

On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 3C(1) of the

BI) E3CE - L TIIHB A RIAERE Banking (Capital) Rules to calculate its total capital on a consolidated
FATEHERAER basis in respect of the following subsidiaries:
2014%12A318
At 31 December 2014
BEAH ERAE
Total assets Total equity
BETT BETR
WEAREME Names of subsidiaries FEEK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERERAA Carford International Limited -MERE - Property holding 53,457 10,781
RERITER (RE) CITIC Bank International — 17 - Banking
BRAR (China) Limited 15,741,236 1,802,240
HERBREER AR CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited —Rigiga - Insurance broker 119,136 103,906
CKWB-SN Limited CKWB-SN Limited —BITERE - Issue of structured
ZENRE notes and investments - -
CKWH-UT2 Limited CKWH-UT2 Limited —#{TREZEH - Issue of subordinated notes - -
BRENNBAERAF HKCB Finance Limited —UBES - Consumer financing 6,243,282 544,385
REHRTBERAA Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited — R A% - Inactive 40,324 36,344
EERT(ET)BRAT The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited —{Z7R% - Trustee services 4,844 3,251
EBREBERLA Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —ZBRE - Mortgage financing 23,419 1,365

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R)

(vi)

Capital adequacy (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory purposes
are mainly nominee services companies that are authorised and
supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory arrangements
regarding the maintenance of adequate capital to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for authorised institutions
under the Banking (Capital) Rules and the Banking Ordinance. The
following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank’s capital base

under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

2014F12H31H
At 31 December 2014

EEAE BEREE

Total assets Total equity

BETRT BETT

[ =NGES Names of subsidiaries TEEK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$’000

HAEANRIT(REA)BRAQF The Hongkong Chinese Bank —REBARE - Nominee services 4 4
(Nominees) Limited

EEST(REB)ARAT The Ka Wah Bank —R3B AR — Nominee services 2,279 _
(Nominees) Limited

Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited — R AR - Nominee services - -

FEBEEREARAA Sino-Allied Development Limited ~ —R B %7 - Inactive 10 10

R20145F12A31H » REBWLE B A
e REEMEHIRBSERARENRN
BRENGE FEBATZER -

At 31 December 2014, no subsidiaries were included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation but for which the method of consolidation differs.

BEAh - AR AEAHE AR R BEER
EREMENGEARENR  MARBEEM
SHERAHENR -

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation.

REBEEHLE (B) Liquidity ratio
rEH
The Group
2014 2013
HE1NANHIEFE Average liquidity ratio for
e E b & the year ended 31 December * 64.9% 55.3%
* AEEMFARBESEEREEANRF * The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each

URBESL R ZHEFHH  ARES
ERAGEEBMMBE  BATREET
MEARNEGEE WA EBRTT
SEARDI) KRR LR E -

calendar month'’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the
consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as
required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and is in accordance
with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

—E-FR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and

%o definitions used by the HKMA.
A58
The Group
2014 2013
ERERN (=gl
EFERR EPEFR
BUEH BB
EFERR ARE BPERK BRX
BUEE % of gross BB % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advancesto  and advances advances to
to customers customers to customers customers
BETR covered by BB covered by
HK$'000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
IHEew Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEE — Property development 5,594,282 40 15,227 100
—MEERE — Property investment 17,016,206 82 14,074,440 100
— SR E - Financial concerns 8,429,777 46 4,073,785 33
—RERL - Stockbrokers 771,179 51 255,937 40
-HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 16,727,330 85 13,762,091 91
— Gl - Manufacturing 7,167,172 46 5,843,972 57
— B8 BB R — Transport and transport equipment 2,163,895 40 2,252,707 46
—IRETH) — Recreational activities 273,556 81 271,979 78
—EfEH — Information technology 15,202 100 882,728 5
—Hft - Others 4,663,393 80 2,272,510 57
A Individuals
—-BE[EEEEREE] - - Loansfor the purchase of flats under the
[(RAZRELERE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
HHER[AEEHER Participation Scheme and
2 NEFEER Tenants Purchase Scheme 10,756 100 17,790 100
-BEHMEZMENER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 11,296,562 100 10,254,515 100
— (RN ~ Credit card advances 357,418 - 318,683 -
—Hfth - Others 6,830,531 85 5,853,436 87
EEBERNER Gross loans and advances for
KB ERE use in Hong Kong 81,317,259 74 60,149,800 82
ZomE Trade finance 15,691,063 18 15,489,383 20
EEBUIMERNER Gross loans and advances for
KB ERE use outside Hong Kong 53,711,824 38 51,377,658 34
REER LRI BT Gross loans and advances to customers 150,720,146 55 127,016,841 55

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Q) E-—SoNBEFERRBN (&) (@)

Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)

HEFERNBRAITRI0%FK A L - WIR(E
MEFAED BORETPEREBROMN

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the

individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of

T the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
ARH
The Group
2014
ERERER
%E/(B8)
R EBE
Impairment
AREFR 15l o) HEEF charged to/
EXRRBH HEEE HEERE ERRBA  (written back)
Overdue loans Individual Collective Impaired loans onincome
and advances impairment impairment  and advances statement
to customers allowances allowances  to customers during the year
BETR BETT BETL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WERE Property investment 8,278 - 1,128 11,601 (180)
HERTEES Wholesale and retail trade 3,048 743 56,097 3,048 56,787
ZEI5ME Trade finance 128,344 61,715 169,997 150,865 6,625
EEBLSMERE)  Gross loans and advances for
B R BRABTE use outside Hong Kong 579,992 92,561 6,206 412,503 (2,164)
719,662 155,019 233,428 578,017 61,068
T&E
The Group
2013
FRERER
&/ (%)
HREER
Impairment
BHEP {5 =8 REEP charged to/
ERRER BB AEERE BEHREZ  (written back)
Overdue loans Individual Collective  Impaired loans on income
and advances impairment impairment  and advances statement
to customers allowances allowances to customers  during the year
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WERE Property investment 1,375 - 84 1,375 (1,022)
HERTEES Wholesale and retail trade 4,353 4,354 47,797 4,353 67,189
= Trade finance 197,296 127,773 43,924 197,296 3,962
EEBLMEME)  Gross loans and advances for
B R B ATE use outside Hong Kong 97,271 25,224 156,887 138,180 (3,796)
300,295 157,351 248,692 341,204 066,333
—E-FR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Q) E—ILOoMEFERRBR (2) (C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)
Eih &5 AT By geographical areas
r5E
The Group
2014
EFEX aMmER REXF 15l )
RBY  ERRER  ERRBX REEE REEE
Loansand Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto andadvances and advances impairment impairment
customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
BETT BETR BETR BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
N5 Hong Kong 78,018,916 298,667 402,842 67,166 153,841
Bl A Mainland China 50,439,354 538,048 301,405 93,692 147,056
x5 United States 1,485,746 - - - 5,075
I Singapore 10,826,984 - - - 40,176
Hith Others 9,949,146 7,406 7,391 3,022 27,516
150,720,146 844,121 711,638 163,880 373,664
A&E
The Group
2013
EFER aRER REEF {(ENl Fa
k2% ERRBR ERREX REER AR
Loansand  Overdue loans  Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  andadvances  and advances impairment impairment
customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
BT BB BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 65,078,764 216,992 256,066 102,230 129,448
HEI A Mainland China 44,105,532 103,357 87,403 31917 84,595
XE United States 1,213,184 3,032 26,524 - 1476
AR Singapore 7,377,259 - - - 58,104
Hit Others 9,242,102 36472 36472 26,773 41,432
127,016,841 359,853 406,465 160,920 315,055

bitin R A B IR 5 E FEPTEIE S -

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the

VEEBRKRER - HEXS5EFENTH
BRM— T EREROEERRGEEER
TTHBERARIAS -

counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
BHAE R R BN IESHEEEANER - Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for
more than three months.

BB E RN B R IR E R A LR T B
BREmH ERIFHEHER -

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

214] RFERT (B BRAR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(D) BHEE

(D) Overdue assets

BHEFERRBR Overdue loans and advances to customers
REME
The Group
2014 2013
EEFER HEFER
RBMEE Kasiiazs
BAE ok
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BETIT  advancesto BETIT advancesto
HK$’000 customers HKS$'000 customers
B R EBRAREE The gross amount of loans and advances
B amEpE - has been overdue for periods of:
—3fE A LA F=6fE A — 6 months or less but over 3 months 357,292 0.24 52,155 0.04
—6M AR EZ=14 — 1 year or less but over 6 months 276,202 0.18 117,966 0.09
— 1 F —over 1 year 210,627 0.14 189,732 0.15
844,121 0.56 359,853 0.28
BEFBEAER LB Secured overdue loans and advances 618,750 156,932
EIEFEH A E RS Unsecured overdue loans and advances 225,371 202,921
844,121 359,853
BHEAEMEBAERNE  Market value of collateral held against the
BRI RTE secured overdue loans and advances 722,497 244,069
BB BB 2 Individual impairment allowances made 152,749 160,920

BRBERAZERRER  HHASHF
BEEH  TRELEBNRESR  BIFIE
BHRIE - SHHZER  BEEERA
REEFURA  BERANKRIZIERER
Y/ REREBEERAEBNAOR AR
B8 - MBS E RS s BiEARR - 55
TEBIHABR IR o

HRBMEREBER  NMIBENAKREYD
ERmEZBREHWEY R - ARERMRA
T8 THMEK -

@ HAEMTELINERERTAE
MR REE -

b) ZEEARMSHERE-FMEHH
B K EERE -

© AITEERERBERERNER MDA
RITEWEEENRER) -

Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as
overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the
overdue period in question.

Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
advances, is ‘Eligible Physical Collateral” which mainly comprises real
estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:

(@)  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
reasonably established and verified.

(b)  The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset.

(c)  The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
without impediment.

—E-FR
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(BB RIZIBASNA B HE /B B (L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(D) BHEE (&) (D) Overdue assets (continued)
BREFERKRER (&) Overdue loans and advances to customers (continued)
d) AMTEBFE BRI EE TSI (d)  The Bank is able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
20144 20138 12H31H » A& There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
N 4 5En HA AR @3 E A FSR 1T S H A & it which were overdue for over three months at 31 December
HERE AR o 2014 and 2013.
() REHER (E) Rescheduled loans
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
HEFERRBXK HEFERR B
HEHDE HWHEEHE
% of total loans % of total loans
BET T and advances BT T and advances
HK$'000 to customers HK$'000 to customers
RKEHAER Rescheduled loans 659,530 0.44 728,855 0.57
K BEREFCRIEERA R BB RN EE ok A Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
NHER M E S AR ENEHERE or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
BEAK - B LSBT RE IR SR E of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
S —MEEER - EFPEAERZ R repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
E iz B B3 A I 2 A M 5 (D) FE TR A 8 non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
HRBATR o stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue
for over three months and are reported as overdue advances in note
(D).
R2014F %2013 128318 » AEBWED There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
BAMRITREAM S REERAZK - which were rescheduled at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
(F) BEEE (F) Repossessed assets
xEE
The Group
2014 2013
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEfARFEREBK Included in loans and advances to customers and
R EMARIE other accounts 27,667 3,533
I B EE AR 201412 A31HEREI & E /Gt The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
& assets at 31 December 2014.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(G) BEERE (G) Cross-border claims
SIHERECERRRERRIZZSEFM
EHETE - RIBRARRNETNZZETF
[RB2EE - REXZEHFENTIRBEREN—7
ERERAERRR GEE ERTOERE
P o RITHEM S FEE D THERER R
BleEg = HAIMERRAMIREYF - EREKR
‘IEBEIREERD D 2 T EMERIBEZR
bR A ERENT

Cross-border claims are on-statement of financial position exposures
of counterparties based on the location of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim guaranteed by a
party situated in a country different from the counterparty, risk will be
transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on the branch
of a bank or other financial institution, the risk will be transferred to
the country where its head office is situated. Claims on individual
countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate cross-border claims, are shown as follows:

The Group
2014
RITREAM
SRS
Banks and NEHEE
other financial  Public sector Hity k]
institutions entities Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBLAINE KR Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 52,628,231 100,162 51,177,858 103,906,251
Hrh i of which mainland China 47,098,571 93,619 38,969,292 86,161,482
E A hnig of which Singapore 160,305 621 10,218,723 10,379,649
REE
The Group
2013
RIT R EAM
RS
Banks and NEHE

other financial  Public sector EHih FEkH]
institutions entities Others Total
BT BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABAINEKE Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 53,435,320 267,743 42,926,522 96,629,585
B R of which mainland China 49,224,819 102,346 34,078,518 83,405,683
—E—[NFER
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(H) Non-bank mainland China Exposures

Non-bank mainland China exposures are mainland China exposures

to non-bank counterparties. The categories follow the non-bank

mainland China exposures submitted by the Bank to the HKMA

T2 E RO E R IERITE FE A E

pursuant to Section 63 of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

EEE DR o
2014
BEMRRERA B AR R S &35!
i L B AR I i B B AR I HEERE
On-statement Off-statement Individual
of financial of financial #%  impairment
position exposure position exposure Total allowances
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fh B A 3 R Mainland China entities 65,666,820 8,829,973 74,496,793 92,799
EEHEANFENL Companies and individuals outside
2 IER B A A mainland China where the credit is
RAEA granted for use in mainland China 12,267,824 2,151,472 14,419,296 7,070
B At SRR 1T EY Other counterparties the exposures to
HiZ HEFaREE whorn are considered to be non-bank
mainland China exposures 15,975,333 1,624,931 17,600,264 52,045
93,909,977 12,606,376 106,516,353 151,914
2013
BB R A BRI (I
B [ F A HE B [ B 7 EER
On-statement Off-statement Individual
of financial of financial pcked] impairment
position exposure  position exposure Total allowances
BT BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
PR A 3 R Mainland China entities 44,786,344 16,169,750 60,956,094 82,847
EEERARTEAL Companies and individuals outside
2 FEFR B A A) mainland China where the credit is
R{EA granted for use in mainland China 11,452,121 2,747,418 14,199,539 62
BN FEIRTTHY Other counterparties the exposures to
HEiZ HEFORE whorm are considered to be non-bank
mainland China exposures 19,918,337 3,459,172 23,377,509 72,300
76,156,802 22,376,340 98,533,142 155,209

MEE - A2013F 12 A3 B IENE THESFEE
BIAAERFNZERTR -

218] HEIRT (EIFR) BRAA

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note: Certain comparative figures at the year ended 31 December 2013 have
been restated in order to conform with current year's presentation.
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(i)

(ii)

FERBEENEIME
BEXRE

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(i) Capital requirement

EAm Bt ARE (ERAER) 5H&E A5 The capital requirements of the Group on each class of exposures
BT —HERRBAENERREDNT calculated under the standardised (credit risk) approach at the end of
T each reporting period can be analysed as follows:
rEH
The Group
2014 2013
BETT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R EERER Classes of exposure:
TS Sovereign 22,131 29,872
N Public sector entity 12,059 2,994
R17 Bank 3,076,959 3,021,889
BHRNA Securities firm 103,156 17,202
e Corporate 6,933,772 5,892,221
SRIREE Collective investment scheme 176 214
HEIER Cash items 120,433 62,130
EETE Regulatory retail 368,855 313,144
FERIBER Residential mortgage loans 524,996 511,454
Hofth FE 580 HA [ fe Other exposures which are not past due 280,436 238,758
BLHA Past due 129,574 106,814
B T AR 2= R B A Y Total capital requirements for
WRETHEE on-balance sheet exposures 11,572,547 10,196,692
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 142,127 305,929
B 5 AMMNKEIER Transaction-related contingencies 24,099 38,591
HE S AN EIER Trade-related contingencies 57,979 116,314
H A Other commitments 79,646 63,218
EERESEH Exchange rate and gold contracts 532,094 457,316
FEEH Interest rate contracts 24,445 27,028
BEBMERS Securities financing transactions 571 8,466
TR EEGEFET A Standardised credit valuation adjustment method 150,368 132,687
B RR R INR B AR Y Total capital requirements for
| BEABRE off-balance sheet exposures 1,011,329 1,149,549
EERBEERRE Total capital requirements for credit risk 12,583,876 11,346,241
BEXRER (i) Capital charge
REEZE A REBRERERIBEEEE The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in
EBRBRERBNERERS - accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:
rEH
The Group
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBRERBNERER Capital charge for operational risk 723,401 594,047
—E-FR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(iii) Credit risk exposure
Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and
Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit exposures
mentioned below. The Group follows the process prescribed in Part
4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the ratings to the exposures
booked in the Group's banking book.

An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of exposures at the

[BBRLAT - end of the reporting period is as follows:
358
The Group
2014
BRERAK
AREENE
THAHRE
ZBERE
- BRER  Total exposure
%‘éif%)jﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ REEZ covered by
ZHhBRE BEK BERE recognised
Exposures after recognised BRESE MEHE  Total exposure quarantees
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- coveredby  or recognised
RESE AR REIR AR REFHR  weighted  recognised  credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
AMTn  E¥Tn EMTn E¥Tn ¥R BETR BMTR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHMRAERA On-statement of financial position
i Soverelgn 21,403,164 21,545,906 - 276633 - 276,633 - 19274
DEWE Public sector entity 662905 753,670 - 150,734 - 150,734 - 113,163
Eidh) Bank 69,984,179 87,789,287 4,626,811 36,840,036 1,621,957 38,461,993 - 20,327,579
EHLA Securities firm 2,578,906 388,562 2,190,344 194,281 1,095,172 1,289,453 516,232 -
B Corporate 119,378,081 2,098,077 85,716,673 955,471 85,716,673 86,672,144 2,383,985 -
EEREHE Collective investment scheme 2,204 - 2,204 - 2,204 2,204 - -
% Cash items 260,118 - 9480232 - 1505412 1505412 8,771,837 -
EETE Regulatory retall 6,360,161 - 6147575 - 4610682 4,610,682 140,717 -
AEHIBER Residential mortgage loans 18,513,468 - 18487532 - 6562448 6,562,448 - -
EftirniEk Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 3,589,128 - 3,505,441 - 3,505,464 3,505,464 26,607 -
AR Past due exposures 1,352,214 - 1352214 - 1619673 1619673 167,646 180,427
BRE D Off-statement of financial position
BIMTETARSREE Off-statement of financial
ITETARRMING position exposures
BBHRARNER other than OTC derivative
transactions or credit
derivative contracts 96,116,594 1,461,278 94,655,316 168,183 3,629,947 3,798,130 3,834,178 57,499
FIMTETERS OTC derivative transactions 372,006,932 255184329 116,822,603 2,437,214 4520335 6,957,549 7,147,815 -
ERRERS Securities Financing Transactions 315,507 - 315,507 - 6,321 6,321 288,900 -

TSR R AT ERERAR

220] HERT (EIFR) BRAA

Exposures deducted from capital base

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BR%ErRIZIBASNA B HE /B B (L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
) EERBEENEMEGE () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(continued)
(iiiy EERBRREZ (iii) Credit risk exposure (continued)
r5HE
The Group
2013
ﬁ%%@@%
FEENE
TAAHRE
LERRE
e B2EE  Total exposure
BERVELEAR SEEY  cownedly
}‘zﬁ%z@@%ﬁ‘ . aEk BERE recognised
Exposures afterrecognised _ @Bﬁﬁﬂf&%ﬁ% MEZE  Total exposure quarantees
credit sk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- covered by orrecognised
RERE B REER B REER weighted recognised  credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETT  ABTn  AETn BT BETn BETL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHMRRERA On-statement of financial position
T Sovereign 10503712 10790943 - 373,405 - 373,405 - 287,230
DERE Public sector entity 107823 187,135 - 3747 - 37427 - 99,278
Eidh) Bank 69,850,348 80,200,622 7973863 35,532,805 2240811 37773616 - 13458990
EFHDA Securities firm 783,267 155,645 274401 77822 137,201 215,023 103,009 -
=1 Corporate 97,145,262 439,129 69,711,500 3,941,266 69,711,519 73,652,785 1,249,804 -
ERREE Collective investment scheme 2675 - 2675 - 2675 2675 - -
e Cash items 290,291 - 5372940 - - - 2200313 -
EETE Regulatory retal 544657 - 5219060 - 391425 391495 176,49 -
ERBER Residential mortgage loans 17967032 - 17938664 - 639317 6,393,179 - -
Efrasakn Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 3,111,398 - 2,984,488 - 298449 2,984,49% 18,035 -
Rk Past due exposures 930836 - 930836 - 13T 1335175 62,250 346
BIERR R Off-statement of financial position
FIMTETARAREE Off-statement of financial
ITETEAHLMY position exposures
BBmRARNER other than OTC derivative
transactions or credit
derivative contracts 92210530 4,153,266 88,057,264 1,770,663 4,779,983 6,550,646 8,088,546 1,935,239
BIMTETER S OTC derivative transactions 337194645 226753064 110441581 2338457 3,715,853 6,504,310 9,508,659 -
ERRERS Securities Financing transactions 2,096,019 - 209,019 - 105828 105828 1,884,363 -

TisRRR AT AR AR AR

Exposures deducted from capital base -

1= B &l B b0 #E A1250%H) B 58 A& 58 o

(2013%F : BHE0TT) ©

The amount of credit exposures risk weighted at 1250% is HKSNil
(2013: HKSNIl).

T -MER
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BB RIZIBASNA B HE /B B (L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
I FERBEENEIMIEE () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(continued)
(iv) RBBFEERBAEE (iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures
AEEXEREHIMTETAZ EERRYT The following tables summarise the Group’s main default risk
BT exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions, which are

calculated using the current exposure method:

(1) EBERZEFEERBERENSTOT (1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures.
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
EMTE HIMTAE
IAERS TERS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BET T ok b
HK$’000 HK$'000
IRIEEERS Gross total positive fair value which is not securities
BIERA R (BEERE financing transactions 3,208,411 2,303,067
EERFAENERRD Recognised collateral held:
— EBESZ AN — Other than debt securities 101,544 12,447
MR EEREFRDREBEED Default risk exposures net of
IR AR AR recognised collateral held 10,184,524 9,339,148
JeR\ e e B EE Risk-weighted amounts 6,957,549 6,054,310

222 RFERAT (BB AR AR
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(BR%ErRIZIBASNA B HE /B B (L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
) FERKREENEMIEE) () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(continued)
(iv) REBFEERBEEE) (iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures (continued)
Q BRXSEFEE Mt HRERAENE (2)  Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by
SRR DTN © counterparty type.
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BEIMTE HIMTE
IEXRS TAXRS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BETT BEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEEE Notional amounts:
— R1T — Banks 239,445,620 222,592,233
- ¥ _ Corporates 126,559,765 109,018,251
— Hfth - Others 6,001,547 5,584,161

372,006,932 337,194,645

EEZHRELE Default risk exposures:

— R1T — Banks 5,062,765 5,383,088
— 1E — Corporates 5,082,252 3,940,916
— Hit - Others 39,507 15,144
10,184,524 9,339,148

LB hn e B Risk-weighted amounts:
-’17 ~ Banks 2,244,036 2,403,850
— E - Corporates 4,695,547 3,647,764
— Hfth ~ Others 17,966 2,696
6,957,549 6,054,310

(v) RIEEERBRZH (v) Credit risk mitigation

AEERBISERD - BERAXIR S The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
? B AIMEOEBATH AT R S SR R R A4S entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
e - URIKEER - and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and

agreements be legally established and enforceable.

RIT—MREZHBNEAREELM - Bib Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Group include
B RE R - ERRD - B REMA] land, real estate, equipment & machinery, equity shares, bonds and
HERE S o IRTEEFITER - TR other marketable securities. In determining the loan advancing level,
MEgS| ANERRME -  AEEEXE respective haircuts will be applied on the current market value of
B - B0 - BFHER - |RITHER - & the collateral. The Group also accepts intangible collateral such as
FREREEAER - government guarantees, bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and

personal guarantees.

TR 223
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(vi)

)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

EERREENEIMNEIEE) () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(continued)
% @k (vi) Market risk
AEBGEREREAEEAFET SRR - The Group uses the standardised approach for the calculation of
market risk.
EE
The Group
2014 2013
BERER BAREK
Capital charge Capital charge
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
2= [ B A HE (B 35 B A ) Interest rate exposures (including options) 279,067 188,971
HINEE [ B A HE Foreign exchange exposures
(BiEES L) (including gold and options) 113,973 84,136
393,040 273,107
TEER (J) Corporate governance

AEBEHONREREEE K - EARF
EAMEMBEENSH EANGEERR
MBS E BER T A [ A i 38 A A Y
TEER] R IRROFBGIEIES] ] P
MMRE - AMTEFECRUNA TRESERE
BEZEREBg SEASZEE EAZE8
g FHZEgkEELEREEZES -
SZERE MBI EFIN [BX
EaNEMER ] W EEENER 2 ERFIA
BEA -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
the modules on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” and ‘Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System’ issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors of the Bank
has established a number of committees including the Audit
Committee, Executive Personnel Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Credit & Risk Management Committee.
Their composition and functions are explained in detail in ‘Corporate
governance and other information’, which will be included in the
printed version of the Group's annual report.
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Corporate Governance and
Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has

complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the modules on

“Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” and

“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following

committees:

U]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the policies, procedures,
and internal and statutory regulations. It also assists the Board of
Directors in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the
Bank’s financial reporting process and internal control systems. The
committee comprises five Non-executive Directors of the Bank, three
are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Personnel Committee

The committee provides oversight of the appointment or termination
of, and the succession plan of the senior executives. The committee
comprises six Directors of the Bank, two are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
remuneration-related policies, variable compensation schemes
with reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board and taking into account any legal or regulatory requirements,
remuneration packages of Senior Management and Key Personnel
as defined in the Master Remuneration Policy, and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors. The
committee has to ensure that an annual review of the Bank's
remuneration system and its operations, which includes an assessment
of consistency with the relevant regulatory rules or guidelines, is
conducted independently of management. The committee comprises
five Non-executive Directors of the Bank, four are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The committee assists the Board of Directors in identifying
suitable candidates qualified to become Directors. It also makes
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors, Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Bank. The committee comprises three Directors, two are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

—T-mEH
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(v)

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank's risk management strategy,
appetite/tolerance, profile and capital adequacy. The risks concerned
primarily include credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational,
reputation, legal and strategic risks. It is also responsible for approving
matters relating to Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) and the Reverse Stress Testing (RST) methodology. The
committee carries out its oversight function on the Bank's risk
management through various committees at the Bank's management
level, including: Credit Committee, Non-Performing Loans Committee,
Asset and Liability Committee and Operational Risk Management
Committee. The committee comprises seven Directors of the Bank,
two are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and

sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has put in place the

Master Remuneration Policy and a structured reward system that enables

the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly competitive

manpower market, promote effective risk management, and support the

Bank's business objectives.

In August 2014, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Bank's

Master Remuneration Policy and approved the changes including the

updated list of Senior Management and Key Personnel and the annual salary

review process.

(i)

Reward System

The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework (“TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed component
(Guaranteed Cash), a variable component, and benefits.

The variable component includes short-term reward (in the form
of performance bonus scheme) rewarding performance in the
preceding year, medium-term reward ("MTR") for retention, and long-
term incentive ("LTI") that motivates executives towards increasing
shareholders’ wealth.

Under the Bank's remuneration system, award of variable
remuneration depends on achievement of a set of pre-defined
and assessable performance criteria including both financial and
non-financial factors. The financial and non-financial factors seek
to link performance with remuneration and promote effective risk
management. Performance criteria are reviewed on an annual basis.



FMEE(Z)

(i)

HHRR(E)
BMIEALRTEIRR EYEZI?EEKE’JF&EF'W* 5
REEDIARIPTE - TR - B3&
BITEAL B A RIEPTERT - BIZE E@%Tﬁt
i%ﬂﬁ’]ﬁyxm?ﬁi‘«%mﬂﬁr LEMAEALE

%

HHMMBHERERTISKE - B3It
%Iﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬂ%%&?ﬂfﬁi °

FMBIERE %ai%ﬁﬂ’] ERRMERA

HRERAER - BIRMBHREFIREETER

RBRICALE 2 BB - A IR 5151R

HZRIEN - A AR NS MR RERR -
BRESILARENTIAE S BB R

REBEATT E’\JEM‘%H#/REEE °

2ITHEALE ©MIETE R - ITHAF SRR
FRR B BB AL MEBCETEATEI T DB - B8N
FEBREBEEAANABRITETHAE - 54
%H&ﬁ%ﬁhﬂ’]i R B ARIR IR IR TR
TERIZETER]  BEVE  RBRERE A&
EEH %E&iﬁﬁx)&}\$§ﬁ °

ZRATHY)F B Fr B B0 A AT e P B BB B
B - T2RRARSHAER - RESBF
P RIER A EE A R AT B A CRE(E B (E
R

ERBEE ST - EREBEBURRAITH
ﬁ%;‘%ﬁ&iiiﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁmiﬁ  WREER
ATEEREN - ERRINFEZZIMTERR
Fﬁ%i%&«/ﬁﬂ S BERTESAIREIHA
"X - EHEAE AR E INFMERE
1;@&'@&#@’] °

AN - E BRI 8 T ayF BBz 2 e R T
TR - B B AR 7 B

fEm e MM RIR M E R R R R RS A
E—ERERNSARE - BRE AR
[\ 78 2 HA A o

Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

U]

Reward System (continued)

Under the Performance Bonus Scheme, threshold for payment has
been set, below which, no bonus will be payable. When the threshold
for payment is reached, a percentage of Operating Profit will be
allocated as Performance Bonus based on the schedule approved by
the Remuneration Committee. Under-performance in other financial
ratios against market will lead to reduction of bonus pool.

Non-financial factors include Compliance with external regulatory
requirement and internal audit findings. Unsatisfactory performance
in non-financial factors per advice of Chief Compliance Officer and
Chief Auditor will lead to reduction of Performance Bonus pool.

The provision for Performance Bonus will be finalized based on advice
of Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Bank’s financial position.

After the Bank’s bonus pool is finalized, the Chief Executive Officer
will allocate the pool to individual function and function heads
will in turn allocate the bonus to individual employee according to
their performance. Performance of each function and individual will
be assessed on the achievement against key measures including
financial, risk management, regulatory and compliance, growth, as
well as people and team.

The Bank’s variable remuneration including Performance Bonus and
Medium-term Reward mainly takes the form of cash bonus while the
Long-term Incentive (“LTI") is a form of phantom share scheme (Book
Value Appreciation Rights Scheme).

Under the Long-term Incentive Scheme, payment of incentive is
determined by the appreciation in the Bank's net asset value over
a 3-year period and is made at the end of the performance period.
Payment is deferred until performance results create the economic
value that triggers an award. It is designed to align employees’ reward
with long-term value creation.

In addition, a portion of variable remuneration of selected staff will be
deferred if such exceeds prescribed threshold, to align remuneration
with the time horizon of risk and to allow their performance, including
the associated risks, be validated over a period of time.
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Remuneration Matters (continued)
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(ii)

Reward System (continued)
Payment of deferred remuneration will be made gradually over a
period of three years and no faster than on a pro-rata basis.

Payment of deferred remuneration, when vested, will be made
provided there is no subsequent deterioration in performance
measurement used for determining the bonus at grant. The unvested
deferred remuneration will be also be forfeited where it is later
established that there has been fraud or other malfeasance on the
part of the grantee or violations by the grantee of internal control
policies.

Methodologies and Approaches
Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration arrangement
include but not limited to the followings:

- Total Compensation Framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

- Market Benchmarking to take into account market relativities,
having regard to the need to attract, motivate and retain talents.

- Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position
and therefore corresponding level of reward.

- Performance Management System linked with reward system
to support performance-oriented culture.

- Talent Identification and Classification Method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

- Promotion Committee approves recommendations on
promotion of staff at designated ranks.

- Remuneration Committee to assist the Board in the design
and operation of the remuneration system. The Committee held
3 meetings in 2014. Members of the Remuneration Committee
are non-Executive Directors of the Bank and are paid Directors’
fee.

- Engagement of external consulting firm in verification of
incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be commissioned
by the Chairman of the Board), when necessary.



EERREMER Corporate Governance and Other Information

FMEE(E) Remuneration Matters (continued)

(i) ESREEABREARS THHM (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
EREEBNERTERETEMEBUTE - Senior Management is defined as heads of major functional units
B TARATE RGBS RAEERERSIN and Key Personnel is defined as those whose activities involve the
KA TREERRERIES - assumption of material risk or the taking on of material exposures on

behalf of the Bank.
20145 - BIORBIWEEARREEREA There were 9 employees being classified as Senior Management (“SM")
B 42 BTIWHBERMEET - FINAK and 4 employees being classified as Key Personnel (‘KP") during the
E3EmRERABRERE THHMER financial year of 2014 and aggregate quantitative information on
BWrEWN - remuneration for the 13 SM and KP is set out below:
(@) 20144 %2013 F Bf B 4F /& #) &7 B & (@  Amounts of remuneration for the financial years 2014 and 2013,
B AEEFEN - ¥ BhE INETTE S split into fixed and variable remuneration:
2014 2013
FEE 473 13402 403
Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
BETT BETT BETT BETT
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000)
Bl a4 B B
EBAE BREI EEAE MBEEI EBHAE BHET EEAE HERET
SM KP SM KP SM KP SM KP
EihaEadd] Fixed remuneration
~HeRE - Salary and
allowance 23,299 4,940 - - 20,510 2,844 - -
XAl Variable remuneration
—ERa - Performance
Bonus ("PB") 17,595 3,278 5,094 1,038 15,074 1,746 3,700 315
— R - Medium-term
BE reward ("MTR") - - 6,600 1,912 - - 6,237 1,000
—REREED - Long-term
B incentive ("LTI") - - 6,600 843 - - 6,237 200
() MBEEFRXEFERAZEEHTM - D515 ()  Amounts and form of outstanding deferred variable

2014912 A31H K&20135F12 A31H()

remuneration, split into (i) vested, and (i) unvested as at 31

BE - Re(Gi)mAREIED - ABPELT ¢ December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are set out below:
2014 2013
BETR BETT BT BT
(HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
SREBAE BEeT SREEAE BARET
SM KP SM Kp
(i) EE (i) Vested
— B -PB 1,845 - 1,404 -
— R R 2 - MTR 5,385 400 7,050 180
—REEE 2 ~ LTI 9,934/ - 10,757 -
(i) mAE (i) Unvested
— BRI -PB 8,196 1,353 5,953 315
— R B 2 - MTR 16,796 3,912 16,120 2,400
—REHE 2 ~ LTl 16,311 1,043 15,045 200
A TE20144F 2 E - WHAE2015F 2T © A Vested in 2014 and will be paid in 2015.
—E—[NFER
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(iii)
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18,294,000 7T K& & # 3,793,000 7T ° £
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2017 FE XN - MEESEFH B
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TE5 o £ £ X (a) R (b)) Frig 2 & 5
EVE BN R B B E R R BB R AT
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Remuneration Matters (continued)

(iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel

(continued)

(0)

Amounts of deferred variable remuneration for the financial
year 2014 for Senior Management and Key Personnel were
HK$18,294,000 and HK$3,793,000 respectively. The aforesaid
are the Deferred Performance Bonus, MTR and LTI. According
to the terms of the MTR scheme, the deferred cash will be
payable in 2017. As for the LTI, payment will be determined by
achievement of the long-term goals set for the performance
period of 3 years. The variable remuneration in form of LTI
reported in (a) and (b)(ii) above are the target cash value at
maturity upon achieving the long-term goals.

From a 2014 payment perspective, deferred variable
remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel
amounted to HK$17,164,000 and HK$400,000 respectively
was vested and retirement compensation amounted to
HKS 1,746,000 was paid out. No discount of deferred variable
remuneration was made for performance adjustment.

A deferred joining bonus and guaranteed bonus amounted
to HK$1,050,000 payable in 2015 was granted to 1 Senior
Management during the financial year of 2014.

No Senior Management or Key Personnel has been awarded
with severance payment during financial year of 2014.

BREEH M - 8 TEHHHARESE () Quantitative information about employee’s exposure to implicit
BN and explicit adjustments of deferred remuneration:
2014 2013
BT T BT T
(HKS$’000) (HKS'000)
fed A S A<F 1 D Y PR R sX Total amount of outstanding
B il S B IR ST S BN deferred remuneration and SREREAS
retained remuneration exposed SM 16,311 15,045
to ex post explicit/implicit A E T
adjustment KP 1,043 200
RAB S - BB Total amount of reductions during SAEIRE AR
o B e 58 B 1T H $0 Rk the financial year due to ex post  SM - -
IR E A %E explicit/implicit adjustments B E T
KP - -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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